
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham. 
Date: Thursday, 11 September 2008 

  Time: 9.30 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Communications  
  

 
4. Apologies for Absence  
  

 
5. Declarations of Interest  
  

 
6. Questions from members of the public and the press  
  

 
FOR PRESENTATION 

 
 
7. Councillor Wyatt, Cabinet Member for Sustainability and Innovation  
  

 
8. Health and Safety  
  

 
FOR MONITORING 

 
 
9. Forward Plan 1st June-31st October, 2008 (Pages 1 - 2) 
  

 
10. Service Plan 2008/11 (Pages 3 - 74) 
 - report of John Mansergh, Service Performance Manager 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

 
11. Choice Based Lettings Allocations Policy  

 



 - scope of review 
- customer experience 

 
12. Conference - Housing and Health  
 - report by the Chair  
 
13. Chesterhill Avenue Intensive Neighbourhood Management Pilot - Progress and 

Impact (Pages 75 - 80) 
  

 
14. Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods (Pages 81 - 98) 
 -  minutes of the meetings held on 30th June and 28th July, 2008 
 

MINUTES FOR INFORMATION 
 

 
15. Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel (Pages 99 - 110) 
 - Minutes of the meeting held on 20th July, 2008 
 
16. Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee (Pages 111 - 131) 
 - minutes of the meetings held on 27th June, 11th and 25th July, 2008 

Date of Next Meeting:- 
Thursday, 16 October 2008 

Membership:- 
Chairman – Councillor McNeely 

Vice-Chairman – Councillor  P. A. Russell 
Councillors:-Atkin, Blair, Cutts, Falvey, Gamble, Goulty, Havenhand, Lakin, Nightingale, Walker and 

F. Wright 
Co-optees:- Alex Armitage (Parish Councils), Bernadette Bartholomew (Parish Councils), Mr. J. Carr 

(Environment Protection UK), Derek Corkell (RotherFed) and Andrew Roddison (RotherFed) 
 

 



KEY DECISIONS TO BE MADE BY THE CABINET MEMBER, STRATEGIC DIRECTOR AND DIRECTORS FOR 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ADULT SERVICES 
 
Strategic Director: Tom Cray 
Representations to: The Strategic Director for Neighbourhoods, Rotherham Borough Council, Neighbourhood Services, Norfolk 
House, Walker Place, Rotherham S65 1HX. 

KEY DECISIONS BETWEEN 1 June 2008 AND 31 October 2008 
Matter subject of 
key decision 

Proposed date of 
key decision 

Proposed 
consultees 

Method of 
consultation 

Steps for making 
and date by which 
representations 
must be received 

Documents to be 
considered by 
decision-maker 

and date expected 
to be available* 

September, 2008 
Dog Control Orders  15th September 08 Cab Member for 

N’Hoods  
Report n/a Report  1st 

September 
(Richard Bramall) 

Scam Busters 
 

15th September 08 
 

None 
 

n/a 
 

n/a 
 

Report  1st 
September (Alan 
Pogorzelec) 

Enviro-Crime 
Strategy Refresh  

15th September 08  Cab Member for 
N’Hoods 

Report n/a Report 1st 
September 
(Richard Bramall) 

Out of Hours Noise 
Service Review  

15th September 08 Cab Member for 
N’Hoods 

Report n/a Report 1st 
September (Mark 
Ford) 

Warden Centres 1 September Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods 
 

 Janice Armstrong Report 

Adaptations Grants 
 

1 September Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods 

 Shiv Bhurtun Report 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 9

P
a
g
e
 1



  
Dispersed 
Accommodation 
 

29 September Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods 

 Sandra Tolley Report 

Furnished Homes 
 

29 September Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods 

 Emma Burley Report 
 
 

October, 2008 
Private Sector 
Licensing Options 

27th October 08 Cab Member for 
N’Hoods 

Report n/a Report 13th October 
08 (Lewis Coates) 

 

P
a
g
e
 2



 
 

1.  Meeting: Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel 

2.  Date: 11th September, 2008 

3.  Title: 
Service Plan 2008/11 
 

4. Directorate: 
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services  
All Wards Affected 

 
5.  Summary 
  

5.1 The service plan sets out the strategic direction of Neighbourhoods and 
Adult Services for the next three years. The plan contains our strategic 
objectives which were identified through consultation with our 
customers and shaped by national and local priorities.  

 

6.  Recommendations 
 

6.1 That the Scrutiny Panel notes the contents of the 
Service Plan.  

6.2 That the Scrutiny Panel receives half yearly reports on 
progress against the action plan.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 1

0
P

a
g
e
 3



7.  Proposals and Details 
 

7.1 The service plan contains a look back at our achievements in 2007/08 
and the plans that we have developed to improve outcomes for 
residents and service users over the next three years.  

 
7.2 The Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate merged and re-

structured during 2007/08. Despite this major organisational change, 
the Directorate has been able to evidence significant improvements to 
services. Achievements last year include; 

 

• Contributing to achieving a ‘4 Star’ Council, 

• A ‘2 Star’ rating for Adult Social Care, 

• Substantial contribution to the June 2007 floods, 

• Improving performance on assessments and care reviews, 

• Reducing crime through the Safer Rotherham Partnership, 

• Improving customer access arrangements through Assessment 
Direct, 

• Achievement of and Standard Bearer status for the new Customer 
Service Excellence standard, 

• Improved performance on private sector vacancies brought back 
into use and energy efficiency ratings, 

• Award winning Area Assemblies, and 

• Improving the service for safeguarding adults.  
 

7.3 Our strategic objectives have been identified through consultation with 
our customers and shaped by national and local priorities. They reflect 
the priorities highlighted in the Corporate Plan and Community 
Strategy, focus on delivery against the Adult Social Care Outcomes 
Framework. 

 
7.4 The Directorate has prioritised 7 strategic objectives to improve the 

performance, standards and quality of service. The objectives are; 
 

• To improve access and standards of service where performance 
compares less well with the best to contribute to an excellent rating 
by the year 2009, 

 

• To further reduce the problem of crime and anti-social behaviour in 

P
a
g
e
 4



• To develop innovative services in a way which contributes to 
helping more people live at home by the year 2011, 

 

• To improve services for carers in a way which increases the level of 
support, resources and employment opportunities given by the year 
2011, 

 

• To strengthen our approach to safeguarding adults in a way which 
contributes to reducing cases of abuse and increases the 
perception of our services delivering personal dignity and respect 
by 2011. 

To  
8.  Finance 
  

8.1 Our budgets have been firmly aligned to these priorities. The service 
plan contains information relating to planned efficiencies and budget 
investments. These are agreed annually as part of the budget process. 
In 2008/09 the Neighbourhoods elements of the Directorate has 
invested £416k and plans to make £4.4m in savings. For Adult 
Services, there has been a £3.1m investment and £4.3m savings. Net 
expenditure available for 2008/09 is £73.5m for the whole Directorate.  

 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
 

9.1 There are a number of risks that will be managed using the Council’s 
highly acclaimed risk management system. The risks have action plans 
in place. The main risks are; 

• The rising cost of adult social care, 

• Not shifting the balance of in-house home care to the 
independent sector, 

• Fear of crime, 

• Health and neighbourhood inequalities, 

• Private sector housing investment 

• Delivery of decent homes, and 

• ALMO star rating.  
 
10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

10.1 The national performance and policy framework has changed recently 

P
a
g
e
 5



staff with the right skills in the right places at the right time. £815k will 
be invested in learning and development this year to manage and 
improve the skills and capacity of our own workforce and those working 
in the independent sector. 

 
10.4 The service plan contains a number of measures by which 

stakeholders can judge our success. Our bold ambitions include a 
target to achieve an ‘excellent’ Adult Social Care rating by December 
2009 and top scores for Housing and the Environment aspects of 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) by December 2008.  

 
10.5 There are also actions to improve the way we work with other public 

sector partners and the Community and Voluntary Sector to address 
inequalities which will help prepare us for Comprehensive Area 
Assessment (CAA) from April 2009. CAA replaces CPA and is focused 
on the quality of life in the borough rather than a judgement on the 
effectiveness of the Council.  
 

11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 

11.1 A ‘Visioning Day’ was carried out in March 2008, attended by over 200 
service users and stakeholders to inform the priorities for the 
Directorate over the next three years. Managers and front line workers 
also contributed to the development of the service plan. 

 
Appendix 1 – Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 
2008/11 
 

Contact Name: John Mansergh, Service Performance Manager, Ext 3466 
 email john.mansergh@rotherham.gov.uk  

P
a
g
e
 6



Neighbourhoods & 
Adult Services

Service Plan 2008/11

www.rotherham.gov.uk

P
a
g
e
 7



This service plan sets out the strategic direction of Neighbourhoods and Adult Services over the next three years.   

A ‘Visioning Day’ carried out in March 2008, attended by over 200 service users and stakeholders provided us with an 

overwhelming view about our priorities.  Safety was the biggest concern of our residents - how safe people feel in their own 

homes and in their neighbourhood.  Furthermore concern was expressed about the way people are treated by organisations and 

people who should be caring for them.   Many of the comments were based on anecdotes rather than personal experience. 

As a result we have identified two priorities which focus on improving the safeguarding of vulnerable adults and improving the 

perception of fear of crime by making our Safer Neighbourhood Teams more responsive, accessible and visible. 

The feedback from the audience at the end of the visioning day was very positive with one member of the audience commenting, 

“I wasn’t sure what today was about before I came. Sometimes you get the 

feeling that people are asking your opinion but taking no notice – that wasn’t 

the case today. There were senior people who listened and responded. You 

felt as if what you were saying was being taken seriously and that there 

would be a better future for Rotherham because of mine and others input.” 

This provides us with reassurance that we are gaining the trust of our customers and could be seen as a reflection of the quality 

of the relationships we have established with our customers.   Maintaining and building on this relationship is easy if we continue 

to listen and provide them with more and more control over the things that affect their lives.

Since the Directorate was established just over a year ago we have tackled a number of organisational issues such as:

• Restructuring our services around our customers needs, 

• Effectively dealing with the massive budget pressures, 

•  Introducing stronger financial management arrangements which has lead to the first time achieving a balanced budget 

•  Putting in place strong leadership and communication principles 

• A culture of learning from customers and staff

Executive Summary 

2

P
a
g
e
 8



Without this we would not have achieved the significant performance achievements, and having 

a massive contribution to the Council achieving 4 Star – Excellent in February 2008 such as:

•  Through the Safer Rotherham Partnership, jointly chaired by the Director of Adult Social 

Services since January 2007, we have played a pivotal role in reducing crime by 9% over the 

last 12 months. 

•  Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder Programme -100% delivered with an over-programming 

of £2m spent.

•  Doubling the number of social care assessments, eliminating historical backlogs, trebling the 

number of people who have an annual review and helping 374 more people to live 

at home.

•  Our Area Assemblies receiving the Local Government of Yorkshire and Humberside award 

for ‘Stepping Up To The Challenge’ in December 2007.

We will be putting additional resources into equipping our workforce for the new arrangements 

that are being put in place.  This includes taking time to simply allay fears about independent 

sector.  We will need to continue to support our workforce to successfully adapt to the culture 

change taking place.  

Big difficult decisions have been made over the last 12 months to achieve better value for 

money. Shifting the balance of domiciliary care from in-house services to the independent 

providers will achieve savings of over £1.4m which can be re-invested into helping more people 

live at home.  We have put in place strong arrangements for performance management and 

service quality.  We have also established an Innovations team, which is helping us radically re-

shape services, placing control in the hands of our customers, delivering better outcomes and 

improving value for money.

There have been a number strategic developments undertaken that will shape the future of 

our service and over the course of this plan will deliver significant outcomes for the people of 

Rotherham.  The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, which was developed in partnership with the 

PCT, has provided us with a clear insight into the challenges that faces our service over the next 

15 years.  Delivering the Commissioning Strategy will be vital to this, this sets out how we will 

transform our services to meet future need.  The development of the Housing Strategy will see 

investment of £35m into the borough for the next three years to improve the range, quality and 

choice of housing.

These challenges, developments and most importantly listening to our customers have shaped 

our strategic objectives for the next three years. 

They are:

1.  To improve access and standards of service where performance compares less well with the 

best to contribute to an excellent rating by the year 2009.

2.  To further reduce the problem of crime and anti-social behaviour in a way which contributes 

to the reduction of the fear of crime by the year 2011

3.  To increase affordable housing and make better use of available housing stock in all sectors in 

a way which improves the range and quality of housing by the year 2011

4.  To modernise services so that they are designed in a way which maximises people’s 

independence by the year 2011.

5.  To encourage innovation to develop new services in a way which contributes to helping 

more people live at home by the year 2011.

6.  To improve services for carers in a way which increases the level of support, resources and 

employment opportunities given by the year 2011

7.  To strengthen our approach to safeguarding adults in a way which contributes to reducing 

cases of abuse and increases the perception of our services delivering personal dignity and 

respect by 2011

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

3

“94% of Neighbourhoods Key Performance 

Indicators achieved their target for 2007/08”.

“Achieved 3 out 4 for Housing Performance, 

positively contributing to the 4 Star Comprehensive 

Performance Assessment rating for the Council”

P
a
g
e
 9



‘Services are available in a 
way that enables people to 
exercise power and control 
over their own life.’ 

Our Vision
To provide integrated local services so that:

•  People can exercise choice, retain their independence, be offered 

protection and have equality of access.

•  Communities are active and shape local services to meet their 

characteristics and needs

•  Neighbourhoods are safe, free from crime and places to be proud of.

Our Mission 

4

P
a

g
e
 1

0



In this Service Plan we have also set ourselves higher standards to reach so that we can 

compare with the best in the Country and receive formal recognition in areas where we 

believe we can achieve excellence.  We aim for :

•  Improve the CPA Housing Service Block, Environment Block Score, Older People Block 

Score by December 2008

•  Achieve a Three Star Excellent Annual Performance Assessment Score for Social Care by 

December 2009

•  Achieve a Three Star Housing Management Service by December 2011

•  Achieve a Three Star Strategic and Enabling Service by December 2010

•  Achieve Top Quartile/Top Band status for our high priority Best Value Performance 

Indicators/Comprehensive Performance Assessment Indicators by April 2009

•  Achieve a 2.5% Annual Efficiency Gain across the Directorate each year

•  Achieve Satisfaction Levels within the Top Quartile by March 2010

•  Achieve Local Area Agreement Targets by March 2011

•  Contribute to achieving Level 5 Equalities and Diversity Standard by December 2008

•  Achieve Customer Service Excellence Standard for the whole of Neighbourhoods and 

Adult Services by July 2008

• Retain Investors In People by December 2008

•  Improve our overall Employee Opinion Survey scores by December 2008.

We have adopted an action learning approach which should help us maintain the pace of 

change up to and during a number of critical reviews that will take place in the next twelve 

months.  These include:

•  Adult Services Annual Performance Assessment in July 2008.

•  Audit of Neighbourhoods and Adult Services KPI’s in July 2008

•  Base Budget Reviews of Supporting People, Residential Homes and Area Based Grants by 

October 2008.

•  Customer Service Excellence Standard assessment of all customer facing Neighbourhoods 

and Adult Services in June 2008.

• ALMO Inspection in June 2008

• Investors In People re-assessment in October 2008.

There are some fundamental ways of working that run through the improvements 

being made:

•  Strengthening user involvement, empowerment and personalisation to improve and 

innovate service delivery

•  Adopting a stronger campaigning role in all areas of our activity, particularly in relation to 

community safety. 

•  Strengthening our approach to the safeguarding and protection of adults.

•  Reshaping services through local, integrated ways of working and stronger partnership 

arrangements

•  Challenging commissioning and delivery arrangements to ensure that services are efficient 

and effective and delivering value for money and

•  Improving the involvement and access of BME groups and rural communities and 

addressing disability and gender equality issues

Measuring our Success

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

5

“Achieved Beacon Status in partnership with 

EDS for ‘Better Public Places”.

P
a
g
e
 1

1



Section 1 – Strategic Context 
Our Strategic Framework

The strategic direction of this service plan is also governed by the key drivers set by the 

government’s reforming and modernising agenda and the emphasis on partnership working 

which includes continuous improvement in services for customers.  

The work of Neighbourhoods and Adult Services is structured by a number of statutory pieces 

of legislation, which include: 

• National Assistance Act 1948;

• Chronically Sick & Disabled Persons Act 1986;

• Environmental Protection Act 1990

• Crime and Disorder Act 1998;

• The White Paper “Valuing People” 2001;

• Housing Act 2004;

• The White Paper “Our Health, Our Care, Our Say” 2006;

• The White Paper “Strong and Prosperous Communities” 2006;

• Mental Health Act 2007,

• Housing Green Paper - Homes for the future: more affordable, more sustainable 2007

• Health and Social Care Bill 2007

• The Local Involvement Networks Regulations 2008

This service plan will require continual adaptation to incorporate the key agendas facing 

Neighbourhoods and Adult Services and Local Government as they unfold.  As a directorate we 

will continue to work closely with other directorates within the Council, the Police Authority, the 

Rotherham Primary Care Trust, Doncaster and South Humberside Trust (DASH), Environment 

Agency, 2010 Rotherham Ltd and other partners.  Our drivers come from local and national 

policies and are supported by the Performance Assessment Framework (PAF), the second 

generation of the Local Area Agreement (LAA) and Comprehensive Performance 

Assessment (CPA).  

6

The national performance and policy framework has changed over the last 18 months. 

The publication of the two White Paper in 2006 (‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’ by 

the Department for Communities and Local Government) and (‘Our Health, Our Care, 

Our Say’ by the Department of Health) have become a reality. The new national framework 

consists of the following regulatory frameworks; 

•  Local Area Agreement (LAA) ‘up to 35’ indicators – this is a contract between the 

priorities of local people (Members), local services and Government which goes live from 

June 2008 to 2011. We are in the process of agreeing these indicators which will consist of 

crime, anti social behaviour, affordable housing, health and social care indicators.  

(See Section 4)

•  National Indicator Set (NIS) of 198 measures was published as part of the Comprehensive 

Spending Review (CSR, October 07) based on new and existing Public Service Agreement 

(PSA) and Departmental Strategic Objective (DSO) targets. This goes live from 1 April 

2008 and replaces the 1200 indicators there were previously.   We will be working to 

adopt these new measures in 2008/09. (See Section 4)

•  Outcomes framework - containing 9 social care outcomes. This signals the Government’s 

strategic intention to shift the emphasis of health and social care from acute and intensive 

interventions, towards community and preventative services.  It is also unprecedented in 

that it addresses these issues across health and social care in the same white paper around 

the themes of independence, choice, diversity of providers and well-being. The ‘Putting 

People First’ concordat translates the Department of Health spending into the priorities 

identified in CSR 2007.   

•  Comprehensive AREA Assessment (CAA) goes live in 2009. This will replace 

Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) and will focus on local delivery rather 

than specific organisational performance. E.g. it will assess the quality of housing in an area 

rather than the quality of the different individuals who provide it. Its about the Councils 

community leadership role, the quality of relationships between people and places – what 

do people think we are like, what is quality of the neighbourhood like, do they value their 

involvement and whether it leads to change. 

Our Statutory Frameworks

P
a

g
e
 1

2



Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

7

National Drivers:

A Sure Start for Later Life (2006) The report suggests the approach of Sure Start in re-shaping children’s services can work just as well for older people.  There are a 

number of agreed cross-government action points set out in the report around issues such as health and wealth, housing, quality of life, 

participation and equality and discrimination.

Direct Payments Guidance: 

Community Care, Services for Carers 

and Children’s Services (Direct 

Payments) (2003)

The guidance outlines that instead of a local council providing certain social care services, they are required, in certain circumstances, to 

make direct payments to enable a person to obtain for themselves the services that they are assessed as needing.

Fair Access to Care Services (2003) A national framework from the Department of Health identifies eligibility criteria social care services it provides through.  The framework 

ensures a greater consistency across the country on how decisions are made about whether people have services or not. Decisions about 

who should receive social care services are based on an assessment of the risks to both immediate and long term independence.

National Service Framework for 

Long Term Conditions (2005)

The NSF aims to transform the way health and social care services support people to live with long-term neurological conditions. Key 

themes are independent living, care planned around the needs and choices of the individual, easier, timely access to services and joint 

working across all agencies and disciplines involved.

National Service Framework for Mental 

Health (1999) and the NHS Act 2000

This set the framework for new national standards and service models of care across health and social services for people with mental 

health problems and have influenced the development of integrated and robust crisis services, assertive outreach teams, and early 

intervention teams, as well as setting an agenda of social inclusion. 

National Service Framework for Older 

People (2001)

The framework sets new national standards and service models of care across health and social services for all older people, whether they 

live at home, in residential care or are being looked after in hospital. 

“CSCI rated us as a ‘Good with promising capacity to improve’ Social Care Service, particularly the way we help people to 
make a positive contribution.  The report identifies 60 areas of strength, which far outweigh 29 areas of weakness.”

P
a
g
e
 1

3



8

Our Health, Our Care, Our Say – a new 

direction for community services (2006)

This signals the Government’s strategic intention to shift the emphasis of health and social care from acute and intensive interventions, 

towards community and preventative services. It is also unprecedented in that it addresses these issues across health and social care in the 

same white paper around the themes of independence, choice, diversity of providers, and wellbeing. This signals the Government’s strategic 

intention to shift the emphasis of health and social care from acute and intensive interventions, towards community and preventative 

services. It is also unprecedented in that it addresses these issues across health and social care in the same white paper around the themes 

of independence, choice, diversity of providers, and wellbeing.

The Hills Review (2007) This reports on the future role of the social rented sector and how it was failing to achieve its full potential by contributing to mixed 

communities and providing opportunities for employment. This reports on the future role of the social rented sector and how it was failing 

to achieve its full potential by contributing to mixed communities and providing opportunities for employment.

The Cave Review (2007) This recommends reform in the regulation of social housing, the findings of which have informed the new Housing and Regeneration Bill.  

The purpose of the Bill is to support the delivery of housing, reform social policy regulation and reform social housing. This recommends 

reform in the regulation of social housing, the findings of which have informed the new Housing and Regeneration Bill.  The purpose of the 

Bill is to support the delivery of housing, reform social policy regulation and reform social housing.

Lifetime Homes, Lifetime 

Neighbourhoods: A National Strategy 

for Housing in an Ageing Society (2008)

This strategy sets the governments’ response to the challenge of meeting the housing needs of the ageing of the population through 

creating Lifetime Homes in Lifetime Neighbourhoods.  It outlines plans for making sure that there is enough appropriate housing available in 

future to relieve the forecasted unsustainable pressures on homes, health and social care services.

“150 unsustainable homes demolished and 

families re-housed into decent homes.”

P
a

g
e
 1

4



Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

9

The following table describes the current strategies and plans which Neighbourhoods and Adult Services have in place or to which we contribute.  These strategies are subject to a review 

throughout the year.

Our Key Strategies and Plans

Carers Strategy Recognises the value of carers by undertaking quality needs assessments, raising awareness that creates a culture of providing support for 

carers and ensuring effective use of funding streams.

Children and Young Peoples Plan and 

Well-Being Strategy

Identifies linkages and joint working arrangements to deliver against the Every Child Matters agenda.

Community Safety Strategy Developed through the Safer Rotherham Partnership it focuses on eight overall priorities.  Illegal drugs; offending and re-offending; 

vulnerable people; violent crime; domestic burglary, vehicle and business crime; anti-social behaviour; fear of crime and young people as 

victims and offenders to deliver of section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

Commissioning Strategy Provides a framework for the strategic commissioning of services for adults for the next 15 years based upon the finding of the JSNA.   

It details the commissioning activity, market development and cultural changes that are required to modernise and deliver our statutory 

responsibility, improve performance, value for money and outcomes for our customers.

Joint Commissioning Strategy This strategy focuses on the commissioning intentions of Rotherham MBC and Rotherham PCT in relation to adult services. It presents an 

analysis of local need, describes services that currently exist and highlights gaps in provision. It identifies those service areas where a joint 

approach is most effective and sets out proposals on joint commissioning arrangements, service reconfiguration and resource allocation.  

The joint focus for the next 3 years will be on the management of long term conditions, intermediate care, older people’s mental health and 

preventing avoidable admissions from residential and nursing care to hospital.

Direct Payments Strategy The intention of this strategy is to focus on adopting a user-centred approach to assessment and care management that promotes 

independent living and quality of life, to work in partnership to offer greater choice and flexibility and involving service users and carers in 

the development, delivery and monitoring of direct payments. This strategy will be developed as we define our Directorate’s approach to 

the personalisation agenda.

Enviro-Crime Strategy Aims to strengthen enforcement and educational marketing to improve neighbourhoods, influencing the feeling of pride in local areas and 

developing stronger relationships between service providers and local communities

“Implemented the Smoking ban and achieved business compliance which was over 3 times national average.”  

P
a
g
e
 1

5



Housing Strategy The overarching strategy considers 3 key themes around balancing the housing markets; quality housing and placemaking; and achieving 

inclusion and access.  It contains a number of sub-strategies and plans that sit under the main umbrella which includes homelessness; rural 

housing; private sector housing; BME housing; supporting people; extra care housing and market renewal

Modernisation Strategy In its initial stages the strategy focuses on the provision of high quality residential and extra care housing services. The Extra Care Housing 

Services are  modern, flexible, high quality services which promote independent living and avoid inappropriate admissions to long term care.  

The strategy will be redefined to focus on re-ablement and will be delivered in partnership with the independent sector to demonstrate 

improved value for money.

Public Health Strategy Focuses on a partnership approach with the NHS in three key policy areas – prevention of ill health; protection of health; and health promotion

Regeneration Plan The plan shows the Councils contribution to the regeneration of the borough with a clear focus on improving and promoting the image 

of Rotherham by providing a sustainable environment for business; neighbourhoods of quality, choice and aspiration; an excellent setting for 

people to fulfil their potential; and the achievement of Town Centre Renaissance.

RESPECT Action Plan To deliver significant and sustained reductions in anti-social behaviour, the fear of anti-social behaviour and its underlying causes.

Supporting People Strategy Addresses the diverse needs of vulnerable people by establishing effective partnerships with the PCT, Probation Service and the National 

Offender Management Programme. The strategy also details how reductions in funding will be addressed.

Community Development Strategy The Community Development Strategy sets out how the Council along with its Partners will ensure that Rotherham will be a place where 

residents play a leading role in the development of their own communities and delivery of services. A place where we have “Vibrant and 

engaged communities where individuals and groups are able to work effectively together to regenerate the area, improve and deliver public 

services and generally enhance the quality of life through independent action and mutual support.”

Area Plans Each of the 7 Area Assemblies have an Area Plan which is divided into the five over-arching themes identified in the Community Strategy. 

Within the five themes of the Community Strategy the 7 Area Plans are reflective of the issues raised by local communities. The Area 

plans provide our Customers with details of the key actions that will be taken over the next 12 months by the Council and its partners to 

address the issues raised through the Community planning process.

10

“Area Assembly Team won the Local Government Yorkshire and Humberside ‘Stepping Up to the Challenge’ 

award in December 2007.”

P
a

g
e
 1

6



Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

11

Section 2 – Our Priorities
Our Year Ahead Commitments
The Year Ahead Statement sets out the Council’s key priorities for the coming year.  

It provides an overview of those things which matter most in the near term and sets out the 

action that we will be taking to move the Council forward.  The document pulls together the 

key priorities from across the Directorates,  which in turn form the measurement for overall 

Corporate progress.  

Our Year Ahead Commitments for 2008/09 are our key priorities for the first year of the 

delivery of this Service Plan (identified in bold in the Action plans in Section 3).  These are:

 1.  Shift the balance from in house domiciliary care to the independent sector to provide 

better value for money, while introducing reablement to promote independence and 

quality of life for service users..  

2.  Complete the modernisation of the OT service to improve performance and quality to 

meet other assessment standards.  

3. Develop a Carers Strategy which will significantly increase the support available to carers

4.  Carry out an appraisal of the options for delivering the housing management and 

maintenance services post 2010.  

5. Implement the findings of the review of our Safer Neighbourhood Teams.

6.  Increase the number of affordable housing in Rotherham through the delivery of a range of 

investment vehicles.

7. Evaluate the impact of changing the current FACs criteria in conjunction with service users.  

8.  Express our commitment to the safeguarding agenda by making sure that all NAS staff 

receive adult safeguarding training to raise the level of awareness and vigilance in relation 

to adult protection.

“Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder Programme -100% delivered with an over-programming of £2m spent.”

P
a
g
e
 1

7



Our Strategic Objectives have been identified through consultation with our customers and shaped by national and local priorities.  They also reflect the priorities highlighted in the Corporate 

Plan and Community Strategy, focus on delivery against the Outcomes Framework and drive through the improvements identified through the Councils ‘Our Futures’ work programme.  

These have been identified in areas where we can have a real and major impact in the Borough and as part of the developing integrated financial and business planning process. 

Our budgets have been firmly aligned to these priorities linked to the community strategy.

12

Our Strategic Objectives and Priority Actions 2008 - 2011

Strategic Objective 1:

To improve access and standards of service where performance compares less well, with the 

best to contribute to an excellent rating by the year 2009.

Contributing to Increasing Choice and Control, Maintaining Personal Dignity and Respect and 

Improved Quality of Life and ROTHERHAM ACHIEVING & FAIRNESS

•  Provide customer access 24/7 including web access for all services by December 2008.  

(Kim Curry)

• Implement Assessment Direct across NAS   (Kim Curry)

•  Complete the modernisation of the OT Service to improve performance and quality to 

meet other assessment standards (Kim Curry)

•  Achieving Level 5 of the Equalities Standard specifically testing whether services are 

culturally sensitive.   (Kim Curry)

•  Improve information, advice and support for people who fund their own services.   

(Kim Curry)

•  Increase participation, involvement and satisfaction with opportunities to be involved in 

decision making through Area Assemblies (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Put in place multi-agency performance management framework for measuring the impact 

of the delivery of Neighbourhood Charters/ Standards at Area Assembly level so that 

communities can hold service providers accountable  (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Assessments and provision of service reflects the demographic make up of the population.  

(Sam Newton)

•  Increase performance of the number of people who receive an annual review and 

statement of need to best in class  (Sam Newton)

Strategic Objective 2

To further reduce the problem of crime and anti-social behaviour in a way which contributes 

to the reduction of the fear of crime by the year 2011

Contributing to Freedom from Discrimination and Harassment and ROTHERHAM SAFE

•  Work in partnership with the Safer Rotherham Partnership to reduce by 5% recorded 

domestic violence offences by March 2009 through the delivery of the Domestic Violence 

Strategy. (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Reduce the incidence and impact of anti-social behaviour in our communities from 48% to 

43% by March 09, through the delivery of the RESPECT action plan (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Implement a multi-agency approach to ‘Every Contact Counts’ and a marketing and 

feedback framework to increase community confidence and safeguarding of vulnerable and 

elderly people. (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Increase business compliance from 92.7% to 93.7% with regards to underage alcohol and 

tobacco sales (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Implement the findings of the review of our Safer Neighbourhood Teams 

(Michelle Musgrave)

•  Put in place improved customer access arrangements for reporting community safety 

issues  (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Develop a new community cohesion and tension monitoring service for Rotherham to 

improve the way in which community cohesion and tension is co-ordinated and broadens 

its focus to address all Hate Crime  (Michelle Musgrave)

P
a

g
e
 1

8



Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

13

Strategic Objective 3:

To increase affordable housing and make better use of available housing assets in all sectors in

 a way which improves the range and quality of housing to create lifetime homes and 

sustainable neighbourhoods by the year 2011   

Contributing to Improved Quality of Life and Economic Wellbeing and ROTHERHAM 

PROUD & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

•  Deliver and implement the 2008 – 11 Housing Strategy incorporating the Private Sector, 

Rural and Homelessness Strategies  (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Deliver the 2008-11 27m Housing Market Renewal Investment Programme to regenerate 

communities.  (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Increase the number of affordable housing in Rotherham in 2008/9 by 138 through the 

delivery of a range of investment vehicles (Michelle Musgrave)

•  To reduce the number of private sector empty properties by 60 through the delivery of a 

range of investment vehicles and intervention work (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Deliver 100% Decent Homes Target (Supportive Role)  (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Reduce fuel poverty for the most vulnerable sections of our community through the 

implementation of the private sector investment plan and Affordable Warmth and Energy 

Plan, improving SAP Rating from 60 to 62 in the private sector (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Carry out an appraisal of the options for delivering the housing management and 

maintenance post 2010   (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Deliver the Strategic Landlord Excellence Plan  (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Increasing access to social and affordable housing through the use of Choice Based Lettings 

across all tenures (March 09).  (Kirsty Everson)

•  Develop an accommodation strategy for older people to meet the demographic 

challenges for future years. (Sept 08)  (Kirsty Everson)

•  Review the housing register to facilitate the implementation of the new allocation policy 

and to  improve people’s chances to access social housing (Sept 08) (Kirsty Everson)

“23 Ultra thermally efficient homes built and occupied 

at Henley Rise”

P
a
g
e
 1

9



Strategic Objective 4

To modernise services so that they are designed in a way which maximises peoples 

independence by the year 2011.

Contributing to Improved Health and Wellbeing, Commissioning and Use of Resources and 

ROTHERHAM PROUD

•  Shift the balance from in house domiciliary care to the independent sector (35/65) to 

provide better value for money and introduce reablement to improve independence and 

quality of life for customers  (March 2009) (Shona McFarlane)

•  Review of transport/taxi arrangements to encourage independence  (Dec 08) 

(Shona McFarlane)

•  Reshape the provision of community/meals on wheels services (June 08) 

(Shona McFarlane)  

•  Transform Social Care to increase choice through implementing and increasing the use of 

self directed so that it becomes the default position for those eligible for services 

(Kim Curry)

• Implement the Joint Commissioning Strategy with the PCT (Kim Curry)

• In conjunction with the PCT develop and progress a joint work programme   (Kim Curry)

• Implement the Commissioning Strategy   (Kim Curry)

• Review commissioning options for Day Care services (Kim Curry)

•  Increase the number of high level home care packages so that people remain independent 

for longer from 13.9% to best in class performance of 28% by 2011.   (Sam Newton)

•  Contribute to the delivery of the Obesity Strategy through better utilisation of our 

Community/Neighbourhood Centres for health initiatives (March 09)   (Kirsty Everson)

•  Explore the concept of and establish the need for a fit for purpose ‘Independent Living 

Centre’ (Sept 08)  (Kirsty Everson)

•  Deliver 24 units of move on accommodation to reduce temporary accommodation use.  

(Michelle Musgrave)

•  Modernise the Business Regulation service following Hampton review.  

(Michelle Musgrave)

Strategic Objective 5:

To develop innovative services in a way which contributes to helping more people live at 

home by the year 2011.

Contributing to Increased Choice and Control and ROTHERHAM ALIVE

•  Invest in assistive technology and reconfigure resources for sustainable future options (July 

08) (Kirsty Everson)

•  Fundamentally review our approach to Extra Care in order to meet future demographic 

challenges (Sept 08)   (Kirsty Everson)

•  Redesign the support services to sheltered housing tenants and people in aged person 

accommodation to deliver a responsive, mobile, modernised and fit for the future service. 

(March 09)  (Kirsty Everson)

•  Review  the provision of the Community Equipment Service in line with ‘Putting People 

First’ (Dec 08)   (Kirsty Everson)

•  Modernise the Intermediate Care service in partnership with the PCT  (Shona McFarlane)  

•  Evaluate the impact of changing the current FACs criteria in conjunction with service users.  

(Kim Curry)

• Implement Electronic Social Care Records  (Kim Curry)

•  Hold 4 distinct  ‘Visioning Events’ which each lead to innovative ideas that are low cost but 

provide significant improvements to our customers.    (Kim Curry)

14

“Energy efficiency ratings improving from a rating 

of 61 to 66 meaning that customers have more 

affordable heating systems which should improve 

health outcomes,”

P
a

g
e
 2

0



Strategic Objective 6:

To improve services for carers in a way which increases the level of support, resources and 

employment opportunities given by the year 2011

Contributing to Economic Wellbeing and ROTHERHAM ACHIEVING

•  Hold a ‘Visioning’ event with all stakeholders to identify key improvements to services for 

carers.  (Kim Curry)

•  Develop a Carers Strategy which will significantly increase support available to Carers 

through:  (Kim Curry)

o Increasing the number and quality of assessments and reviews for Carers 

o  Improving the take up and awareness of existing advice and support available 

including electronic marketing:  

o Supporting for carers who wish to work to gain employment. :  

o Commissioning different support options for Carers:  

o Increasing the take-up of the Carers Emergency Scheme:  

Strategic Objective 7

To strengthen our approach to safeguarding adults in a way which contributes to reducing 

cases of abuse and increases the perception of our services delivering personal dignity and 

respect by 2011

Contributing to Personal Dignity and Respect and ROTHERHAM SAFE

• Status and profile of the Safeguarding Adults Committee to be raised (Sam Newton)

• Develop a safeguarding impact and needs assessment  (Sam Newton) 

•  Agree a policy and arrangements with partners to ensure all their staff receive adult 

safeguarding training  (Kim Curry)

•  All NAS staff receive adult safeguarding training to raise the level of vigilance in relation to 

adult protection (Kim Curry)

•  Integrate safeguarding into the Safer Rotherham Partnership agenda  (Kim Curry)

•  Review the information produced for customers and staff for reporting and dealing with 

concerns  (Kim Curry)  

•  Develop a performance management framework for safeguarding adults to drive up 

performance in the following indicators (Kim Curry)

•  Implement a Quality Assurance framework for Residential Homes which incorporate and 

embed the Dignity and Care framework (Kim Curry):

o Availability of single rooms – minimum target of 100% (our score last two years) 

o  Number of referrals – minimum target of 20% increase from last year e.g. 241 

(20% is national average), 

o  Number of completed cases as a % of referrals – minimum target of 71% (national 

average), 

o  Number staff trained in safeguarding and expenditure – minimum target of 71% 

(national average), 

o  % of independent sector staff funded/commissioned by the Council that have been 

trained in safeguarding – minimum target of 31% (national average). 

•  Develop and expand safeguarding measures to protect vulnerable people from ‘rogue 

traders’.  (Michelle Musgrave)

•  Strengthen safeguarding management systems to improve accessibility, responsiveness, 

quality and effectiveness of learning and improving the service as a result.    

(Sam Newton)

15

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

“A new Domestic Violence Strategy has been adopted by and its progress report to the Safer Rotherham Partnership.”

P
a
g
e
 2

1



16

Neighbourhoods and Adult Services –  Service Plan Golden Thread

Rotherham
Achieving

Rotherham
Safe

Rotherham
Learning

Rotherham
Alive

Rotherham
Proud

Objective 6 – To 

improve services for 

carers in a way which 

increases the level of 

support, resources 

and employment 

opportunities given by 

the year 2011.

Contributing to 

Economic Wellbeing

Objective 1 – To 

improve access and 

standards of service 

where performance 

compares less well, with 

the best to contributes 

to achieving an excellent 

rating by the year 2009.  

Contributing to 

Increased Choice and 

Control, Maintaining 

Personal Dignity and 

respect and Improved 

Quality of Life

Making a Positive 

Contribution

Objective 2 – To 

further reduce the 

problem of crime and 

anti-social behaviour 

in a way which 

contributes to the 

reduction of the fear of 

crime by the year 2011.  

Contributing to 

Freedom

from Discrimination 

and Harassment

Objective 7 

– To strengthen 

our approach to 

safeguarding adults in a 

way which contributes 

to reduce cases of 

abuse and increases 

the perception of our 

services delivering 

personal dignity and 

respect by 2011.

Contributing to 

Personal Dignity and 

Respect

Objective 3 – To 

increase affordable 

housing and make 

better use of available 

housing assets in all 

sectors in a way which 

improves the range 

and quality of housing 

to create lifetime 

homes and sustainable 

neighbourhoods by the 

year 2011.  

Contributing to 

Improved Quality of 

Life and Economic 

Wellbeing

Objective 5 – To 

develop innovative 

services in a way 

which contributes to 

helping more people 

live at home by the 

year 2011.  

Contributing to 

Improved Health and 

Economic Wellbeing,  

Commissioning and 

Use of Resources.

Objective 4 – To 

modernise services so 

that they are designed 

in a way which 

maximises peoples 

independence by the 

year 2011.  

Contributing to 

increased choice and 

control.

Economic Well-Being 

– access to income 

and resources sufficient 

for a good diet, 

accommodation and 

participation in family 

and community life.  

Ability to meet costs 

arising from specific 

individual needs

Making a Positive 

Contribution – 

maintaining involvement 

in local activities and 

being involved in policy 

development and 

decision-making

Freedom from 

discrimination or 

harassment – equality 

of access to services 

for all who need them.  

Those who need 

social care have equal 

access to services 

without hindrance 

from discrimination or 

prejudice; people feel 

safe and are safeguarded 

from harm.

Personal Dignity and 

Respect – not being 

subject to abuse.  

Keeping clean and 

comfortable.  Enjoying 

a clean and orderly 

environment.  There is 

availability of appropriate 

personal care.

Improved Quality of 

Life - access to leisure, 

social activities and 

life-long learning and 

to universal, public and 

commercial services.  

Security at home, 

access to transport and 

confidence in safety 

outside the home.

Improved health 

– enjoying good physical 

and mental health 

(including protection 

from abuse and 

exploitation).  Access to 

appropriate treatment 

and support in managing 

long term conditions 

independently.  There are 

opportunities for physical 

activity

Increased Choice and 

Control – through 

maximum independence 

and access to 

information.  Being able 

to choose and control 

services and helped to 

manage risk in personal 

life 

Cross-Cutting - Commissioning and Use of Resources Cross Cutting - Leadership

F
a
ir

n
e
ss

S
u

st
a
in

a
b

le
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

P
a

g
e
 2

2



Neighbourhoods and Adult Services
Following completion of a re-structure during 2007, the Directorate now delivers its services 

through five Departments:-

Commissioning and Partnerships is responsible for the delivery of quality and effective 

services across Neighbourhoods and Adult Services.  The service undertakes research, and 

drives forward future planning, policy-making and development of services to meet local and 

national priorities, and to meet the expectations and requirements of current and future 

customers.  The service is also responsible for the effective commissioning and monitoring 

of services contracted to external providers.  Managing the business and finances of 

Neighbourhoods and Adult Services is also a key role of Commissioning and Partnerships.

Independent Living promotes the independence of adults in Rotherham by providing a range 

of services covering many diverse aspects of housing and support services for vulnerable 

people in the community.  Providing services which evaluate and respond to individual 

housing needs through the Key Choices Property Shop, and housing which meets the needs 

of some of the most vulnerable customers through services such as Extra-Care Housing, 

Adaptations, Independent Support and the RotherCare Community Alarm Scheme.

Assessment and Care Management is responsible for assessing the health and social care 

needs of adults in Rotherham who are older people or have a physical disability or sensory 

impairment.  By delivering a service which manages the process from the first point of 

contact, through to a social care assessment and regular assessment reviews; Assessment 

and Care Management aims to meet the ongoing social care needs of adults in Rotherham 

by identifying services which promote independence.  The service is also responsible for 

safeguarding vulnerable adults in Rotherham who are identified as being at risk from abuse.

Health and Wellbeing delivers social care and support services to adults in Rotherham.  

Health and Wellbeing includes the delivery of home care, meals-on-wheels, laundry and 

transport services to vulnerable adults in the community; as well as residential care, day care 

and intermediate care services.  Health and Wellbeing is responsible for the joint Learning 

Disability Service provided in partnership with Rotherham Primary Care Trust and is linked to 

the integrated mental health services provided by Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber 

Mental Health Foundation Trust (RDASH).

Housing and Neighbourhood Services work across a diverse area to ensure that communities 

are sustainable, stronger and safer.   Teams within this Department drive forward the 

Council’s sustainable communities through investing in deprived communities and managing 

regeneration projects, supported by health and enviro-crime teams protecting both the 

environment and communities by managing healthy Air Quality, Contaminated Land, Animal 

Health and Welfare and Food, Health and Safety, Trading Standards, Licensing and Consumer 

issues.   The Department works with Area Assemblies and other partner agencies to tackle 

Anti-social Behaviour, Community Safety and other public protection work which has a 

visiable presence within communities through Rotherham Wardens and Safer 

Neighbourhood Teams.

Our Achievements
CPA – Contributing to achieving a 4 Star Council

In February the Council achieved 4 Star , Excellent Council status,  following the 2007 

Comprehensive Performance Assessment. This is a major achievement taking into account 

that only four years ago we were rated as “weak” and seen as one of the poorest performing 

Councils in the country.

It is evident in reading the report, which is available on the Council’s website, how significant 

the contribution of Neighbourhoods and Adult Services is to this achievement. The Audit 

Commission highlighted the following areas of strength: 

•  A ‘Good with promising capacity to improve’ Social Care Service, particularly the way we 

help people to make a positive contribution

• Well developed joint working arrangements with health partners

• Through the Safer Rotherham Partnership, overall crime has reduced by 9%.

•  The use of Visioning days to review areas such as Occupational Therapy and 

Intermediate Care

• Using mystery shoppers in care homes and video diaries to capture user experience

17

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Section 3 – Our Profile
Our Structure

P
a
g
e
 2

3



•  Opening of Breathing Space respiratory centre which is contributing to accurate diagnosis 

and smoking cessation.

• Achieving 3 out 4 for Housing and Social Care Performance.

Achieving a ‘Two Star – 

Good’ Adult Social Care Service
The 2007 Social Care Annual Performance Assessment (APA) identifies that Rotherham is a 

two star (Good) Authority with “promising prospects” for improvement.  This maintains the 

score achieved in 2006.  This assessment is based upon the 2006/07 Self Assessment Survey 

submitted in May 2007. Supplementary evidence was requested to support the judgement by 

the Commission of Social Inspectorate (CSCI) and culminated in the Annual Review Meeting 

(ARM) which took place in August 2007.  Our judgements are as follows:

The report identifies 60 areas of strength, which far outweigh the 29 areas of weakness. 

This maintains a platform on which to improve services and raise the standard of services 

towards excellent next year.

Key areas of strength were:

• Well developed working arrangements with health partners

• Strong political and corporate commitment to improving services

• Good range of accessible health information and advice

• The embedded culture of service user involvement and consultation

• Access to a good range of information about services including service standards

• Access to, and high level investment in advocacy

• Promotion of adult protection and the resulting increase in referrals

•  The pilot joint needs assessment for older people that has progressed to an assessment 

across all user groups

• The improved focus on performance

•  The intermediate care service preventing more hospital admissions and the low level of 

delayed discharges

• Expansion of extra care facilities 

• The Beacon Award recognising the extensive involvement of service users 

• Service users inspecting to quality standards

Our Cabinet Member for Adult Services and the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Panel 

endorsed the ‘Annual Performance Assessment Excellence Plan’ to address the areas 

of weakness.  

The key outcomes delivered through this excellence plan are :

• Health & Wellbeing –

o  Increased level of reviews from 45 to 76 (2338 more reviews)

• Improved Quality of Life – 

o Undertaken 638 more assessments

o Reduce the back log of assessments from 300 to 0 

o  We have helped 374 more older people to live at home this year compared to last year, 

o 47 less admissions to residential and nursing care.  

o Reduced waiting times for major adaptations from 183 days to 52 days

o Delivered 3207 additional pieces of equipment in 7 days

• Making a Positive Contribution – 

o Become Standard Bearers for Cabinet Office Customer Service Excellence Standard

• Increased Choice and Control – 

o reduced assessment times from 11 weeks to 1 week

o increased statement of need from 83 to 89 (7190 statements)

o Put in place a 24/7 service and web access to social care assessments

o  Improved complaint response from 72% to 94%, increased complaint satisfaction and 

reduced the number of complaints by 10%.

• Economic Wellbeing – 2

o 46 more carers supported

o Improved number of people on direct payments from 137 to 176

18

Areas for judgement
Delivering Outcomes

Improved health and emotional well–being

Improved quality of life

Making a positive contribution

Increased choice and control 

Freedom from discrimination or harassment

Economic well-being

Maintaining personal dignity and respect

Capacity to Improve (Combined judgement)

Leadership

Commissioning and use of resources 

Star Rating

Grade awarded
Good

Good

Adequate

Excellent

Adequate

Good

Good

Adequate

Promising

2 Stars

P
a

g
e
 2

4



Improve performance on Care Reviews and providing 

Statements of Need
We have significantly improved our performance on reviews over the past 3 months and have 

improved performance from 45% to 76%.  This improvement equates to 2000 more service 

users receiving a review of their needs than in the previous year.

This has been achieved by:

• Establishing a centralised review team.

• Putting in place a support framework for SWIFT input.

• Setting individual and team targets monitored weekly through the use of Performance Clinics.

•  Putting in place new managerial arrangements to strengthen the focus and prioritising 

of reviews.

We have also improved our performance on issuing a statement of need to our services users 

following a review or assessment.  This year 646 more statements of need have been completed, 

improving our performance from 83% to 89%.  This has been achieved through improving our 

focus on delivering this for our customer.  We have put in place streamlined processes that 

ensure that more customers receive statements of need immediately following assessments 

and reviews.  

Reducing Crime through the Safer Rotherham 

Partnership
September 2006 saw the launch of the Safer Rotherham Partnership Performance Management 

Framework.  The framework is based on good practice within the Neighbourhoods and Adult 

Services Directorate of Rotherham MBC, with a clear emphasis of accountability, robust action 

planning and monthly reporting which focused on delivering against Crime and Disorder 

Reduction Partnership’s (CDRP) agreed targets.  Our good practice has been nominated as 

a case study for the Home Office and positively assessed by the Police and Crime Standards 

Directorate within the Home Office. The Government Office for the region are highly 

complimentary of the progress we have made and have endorsed and attended the established 

clinic regime.  

Performance Clinics have allowed the CDRP to focus on delivering improvement to national 

and local standards, delivering against the CDRP’s priorities identified through its strategic 

assessment and the Community Safety Strategy. Performance clinics are focused sessions 

which enable partners and stakeholders to discuss, challenge and identify solutions to rectify 

poor performance. Through monthly performance management reports the Safer Rotherham 

Partnership Board identifies key performance indicators that are causing concern and 

recommends a performance clinic to address them. 

The performance clinic regime has delivered a number of outcomes over the last 12 months, 

and we acknowledge that there is more progress to make in reducing crime and the fear of 

crime, which is a priority identified by our residents. 

• Woundings – DOWN 7.7%

• Robbery – DOWN 6.4%

• Common Assault – DOWN 20%

• Acts of Violence – DOWN 2.5%

• Theft from Person – DOWN 10%

• Domestic Burglary – DOWN 9.5%

• Theft of Vehicle – DOWN 16.5%

• Theft from Vehicle – DOWN 10%

• Vehicle Interference – DOWN 12%

• Criminal Damage – DOWN 7.3%

• Off Road Motor Vehicles – DOWN 53%

• Drug Offenders dealt with – UP 33%

• Arson – DOWN 2.5%

• Overall Crime – DOWN 9%

As well as the significant improvement in performance evidenced earlier the Performance 

Management Framework and most notably the Performance Clinics have allowed the 

partnership drive improvement in key areas such as Drug Misuse and more recently the review 

of the Safer Neighbourhood Teams.  These areas were identified as needing a multi-stakeholder 

focus across the Council, Police, 2010 Rotherham Ltd, PCT and Youth Offending Service.  

19

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

“Motorcycle nuisance 

- 154 motorcycles were 

confiscated and 47 areas of 

the borough were provided 

with fencing, barriers and 

gates to prevent motorcycle 

use. Recorded incidents are 

down by 58% on the levels 

last year.”

P
a
g
e
 2

5



This Clinics have been a catalyst for creative problem solving by all partners and has led to 

improvement in the following indicators:

• Increasing the participation of problem drug misusers

• Driving up the number of offenders dealt with for the supply of controlled drugs 

• Increasing the percentage of people in treatment for 12 weeks or more 

• Reducing incidents of Anti-Social Behaviour in a number of areas of the borough

Customer Access Arrangements – Assessment Direct
We have been working closely with the Department of Health CSED Project over the past 

4 months and have completed business process re-engineering on all our customer access 

channels for conducting assessments.  This has taken into account how customers access the 

service through to them receiving an assessment removing duplication, streamlining back office 

process, and increased accessibility.  ‘Assessment Direct’ went live w/c 31st March, 2008, 

this includes:

•  Radically changing how we deal with the customer face to face to a ‘one stop shop’ approach 

where customers will be given an appointment at the first point of contact.

• Putting in place a ‘golden number’ telephone access point.

• Putting in place 24/7 emergency out of hours services. 

•  Rolling out a further three Customer Service Centres across the borough over the next 

12 months.

A number of back office processes have already been streamlined.  This has resulted in the 

complete reduction of all backlogs and performance since 1st January 2008 is showing that 

100% of all assessments have been seen within 4 weeks of notification, now averaging at 1 week. 

To exemplify this,  638 more assessments have been undertaken so far this year

Standard Bearers for the new Customer Service 

Excellence Standard
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services have been identified as one of the first Authorities to 

receive the Charter Mark Standard Bearers award by the Cabinet Office.  This is in recognition 

of our ‘Learning from Customers’ approach and the high standards of customer service that 

has been seen through recent Charter Mark inspections.  This was formally be announced on 

the 10th March, 2008 at the same time as the launch of the new ‘Customer Service Excellence 

Standard’ which replaces the Charter Mark standard.  We have already agreed a timetable for 

a full assessment of all our services.   Assessment will take place in June 2008 under the new 

methodology.  We will one of the first local authorities to do this.

Area Assemblies
At the Local Government Yorkshire and Humberside Awards Ceremony in Leeds in December 

our Area Assembly Teams went up against all County, District, Metropolitan, Unitary Council’s, 

along with Fire and Rescue Authorities in the Yorkshire and Humber Region to win the ‘Stepping 

up to the Challenge’ Award. 

Area Assembly Team have delivered great successes over the last year in influencing the 

Local Strategic Partnership in Rotherham to put communities at the heart of the decision 

making process.    

20

P
a

g
e
 2

6



Some of our Improvements through Learning from 

our Customers
Customers told us... they were generally dissatisfied that they could only collect their Blue 

Badge from Crinoline House or Swinton Customer Service Centre or wait a week to receive it 

through the post.

We have… opened our third Customer Service Centre at Dinnington where Customers can 

collect their Blue Badges. We then carried out surveys with customers after they have received 

an interview at Dinnington Office for a Blue Badge to ascertain the level of customer care and 

satisfaction with the service. Customers’ felt that 100% of staff explained their role, the Blue Car 

Badge process and offered help to complete forms

Customers told us... that they thought the Council could do more work on noise nuisance 

over the weekend

We have... We have introduced an out of hour’s service where Officers tour the district on 

Friday and Saturday night. We carried out a telephone survey and 100% of Customers found the 

service easy to use.

Customers told us... the experience of the adaptations process was positive overall and they 

were satisfied with the quality and standard of the work carried out. The customer felt that the 

waiting time for a level access shower was too long and that they were not informed at every 

point of the process on progress.

To improve waiting times we have... started using a new company to provide level access 

showers resulting in quicker turn around times and this has contributed to a reduction in waiting 

times for adaptations from 16 weeks to 3 weeks.

Customers told us... the website information was very informative and that the website was 

easy to navigate around.

The review identified that:

• information should be accessed “within a few clicks” 

•  symbols or pictures rather than text to links for further information would improve 

the website

• A to Z of services would be better placed on the front page

To improve the website… we have included customer friendly actions within our 

communications and Marketing Strategy for delivery against.

21

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11
P

a
g
e
 2

7



22

“Neighbourhoods

recognised as 1 of only 

17 nationwide ‘Standard 

Bearers’ for the new 

Government standard 

for customer excellence 

in recognition of our 

commitment and record 

in delivering customer 

focussed services“

P
a

g
e
 2

8



23

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Our Achievements

In 2006/07 Neighbourhoods and Adult Services contributed to the delivery of 16 of our 17 commitments within the Councils Year Ahead Statement.  Only Commitment 43 did not achieve its 

timeline due to the delays of the development of a sub-region approach to waste processing facilities.  

Commitment 55  - Strengthened the Safer Rotherham Partnership structures through involving customers to deliver revised community 

safety priorities – Domestic Violence, Night Time Economy, RESPECT, Fear of Crime, Criminal Damage and Vulnerable 

Communities.  Reduction in crime and partnership working was a significant contribution to the Council’s achievement of 

4 stars in CPA 2007 (see Annual Audit Letter). 

Commitment 56  - Developed a Joint Work Programme and Common Goals with the PCT for a three year period including a joint 

performance management framework.

Commitment 57 - Implemented the ban on smoking in public places fully complying with the Smokefree legislation over 3 times the national 

average.

Commitment 58  - Developed, agreed and approved by Members  a detailed local Councillor Call for Action protocol.

Commitment 59  - Reviewed, developed and implemented multi-agency neighbourhood charters with South Yorkshire Police, PCT, 2010 

Rotherham and Voluntary Sectors.

Commitment 60  - Developed a Commissioning Strategy for Rotherham Social Care following the completion of a Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment.

Commitment 61  - Developed and began to implement a private sector investment plan to increase the proportion of vulnerable households 

living in decent homes in the private sector to 70% by 2010.

Commitment 62  - Failed to achieve step change in all ‘help to live at home’ performance indicators.  The number of assessments that we 

have completed has doubled (from 50 to 100 assessments per week) in this time and we have completed eradicated the 

historic backlog of new assessments. People now wait just one week for an assessment instead of 12 weeks last year. As a 

consequence of us dramatically increasing the number of reviews by 2,000 this year, we have identified significant numbers 

of people who have been inaccurately counted as receiving a service. 

Commitment 63 – Implemented a pilot of Electronic Social Care Records in Maltby, full implementation will take place in November 2008.

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Not achieved

Partially complete

P
a
g
e
 2

9



We have improved upon our ‘4 Star’ rated Performance Management arrangements (Corporate Assessment, 

2006) and are building a strong performance management culture across the Directorate. 

A new performance team was put in place to support Directors in delivering against the range of targets that 

were agreed at the start of 2007/08. 

All indicators had action plans for the first time which was supported by 60 performance clinics held 

throughout the year to help achieve improvement. 

Elected Members on the Adult Services and Health Scrutiny Panel received quarterly reports for the first 

time and had training on performance reports.

Supported 2010 Rotherham Ltd to improve their performance and financial management arrangements 

which was recognised as a success by KPMG in March 2008. 

The Annual Audit Letter showed that our data quality arrangements for performance and financial 

information were assessed as ‘Performing Strongly’, the highest category achievable, which contributed to a 

‘Use of Resources’ score of 4 out of 4 score

Continuous improvement in 

Performance Management

24

“A partnership approved Respect Action Plan demonstrating our 

commitment to improve safer outcomes within neighbourhoods” 

P
a

g
e
 3

0



Shifting the Balance
A decision was reached by Cabinet Member on 10th December 2007 to significantly shift the 

focus and balance of domiciliary care services to maximise the use of available funding and 

demonstrate value for money. Following careful analysis of current unit costs, performance 

and outcomes achieved, it was agreed to shift the balance of services from 65% in-house, 

35% independent sector (HHI September 2007 baseline) and to develop the remaining in-

house service as an enabling/reabling service, based on national examples of good practice 

but focussing specifically on Rotherham’s needs.  There is a steering group in place to deliver 

this challenging agenda, and several workstreams are in place to deliver on the following:

• Developing a Rotherham Vision for reablement, 

•  Developing a workforce plan , revising job descriptions and terms and conditions to create 

a well-trained, supported an informed work force. 

•  The Turnaround Team is undertaking a BPR exercise and seeking to create more efficiency 

in the current and future service. 

• The Commissioning Team is  focused on the development of quality independent services

•  A communication team to ensure that everyone including staff, service users, carers, trades 

unions and the wider service are being kept informed.

Initially there will be a minimal impact from the above actions. However a greater impact 

will be evident over the coming months as the balance moves towards the independent 

sector and re-investment can be utilised into re-ablement and preventative agendas that will 

recognised as a positive change by our customers.

Improving Customer Satisfaction Ratings
During October 2007 the Service Quality Team reviewed Neighbourhoods and Adult 

Services current position in relation to customer feedback across thirty teams including 

customer satisfaction testing, complaints, service standards and user forums. 

As a result we have introduced a new framework to co-ordinate all customer feedback 

across our Directorate on a monthly basis to inform service improvement through the eyes 

of our customers.  

The framework has provided opportunities for real outcomes and service improvements, 

learnt through the eyes of our customers; building on our philosophy of ‘customers told 

us…we have…’  Our revised approaches will also contribute to achieving the updated 

Customer Service Excellence Standard (previously CharterMark), along with Level 4/5 of the 

Equality Standard.

Based on Customer Service Excellence guidance and best practice we have reviewed and 

introduced new outcome based customer satisfaction surveys across forty customer facing 

teams including, Assessment and Care Management, Home Care, Social Care Annual Reviews, 

Home Adaptations, Safer Neighbourhood Teams and much more.  

Following consultation with the Learning from Customers Forum we have also developed 

Customer Satisfaction Local Performance Indicators.  Baseline results from survey activity 

conducted during Quarter Three (October to December 2007) were presented to the 

Learning from Customers Forum and targets were set by the customers for 2007/08 

and 2008/09.  

We are already seeing key improvements in satisfaction ratings in the following areas:

•  Improved from 84% to 89% who feel that due to the services they receive they feel safe in 

their home/community

• Improved from 88% to 90% who feel that services they receive help them to live at home

•  Improved from 83% to 85% who feel that the service helps maintain and promote 

their independence

Over the next 12 months we will be working on strengthening customer satisfaction testing 

further through the development on on-line surveys, focus group work and exploring options 

for surveying individual customers around multiple issues and services.  

Our Developments for 2008 Onwards

25

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11
P

a
g
e
 3

1



Customer Access Arrangements – Out of Hours
Following consultation with our customers and staff in March 2008 there will be the launch 

of a new Adult Social Services 24/7 Emergency Out of Hours Service, which will work 

hand in hand with the new Assessment Direct service.  The service will primarily function 

through the already well established RotherCare service which currently operates a 24/7 

service.  RotherCare will be strengthened through training, improving back office processes 

and increasing accessibility of support workers to deliver a customer focused ‘one-stop-shop’ 

service between 5.30pm and 8.00am (Mon – Thurs) and 5.30pm (Friday) and continuously 

through the weekend to 8.00am (Monday).

Customers will be able to access the service through one ‘Golden Number’ which will be 

publicised by a variety of methods.   The service will be supported by a number of back office 

frameworks to ensure that customers’ needs are fully met and we are providing a seamless 

service.  These include:

• Fast Response Team

• Out of Hours Duty Social Worker and Support Officer

• On Call Senior Management 

• Emergency Home Care provision through Care Force.

• Carers Emergency Scheme with provision through Crossroads

Safeguarding Adults
Our Visioning Day in March identified that “Safeguarding Adults” and “Safety in our 

Neighbourhoods” was our service user’s top priorities.

Our Service Plan sets out safeguarding as a key strategic objective over the next twelve 

months.  We have reviewed how we currently deal with safeguarding issues, assessed 

ourselves against CSCI’s Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOEs) and best practice across the country.  

We are clear about what we need to do to raise awareness for both staff and communities 

to prevent abuse.

Our Commitment

Neighbourhoods and Adult Services is committed to stopping all forms of financial, emotional, 

physical or sexual abuse in its aim to safeguarded and protect all adults living in the Borough.  

Along with the Council, the Directorate and all staff feel that:

• Safeguarding adults is everyone’s responsibility

• Mistreatment of any adult is not acceptable

• Doing nothing is not an option

• Your actions can make a difference

We have statutory responsibilities for vulnerable adults that necessitate us working with 

other agencies that also have responsibilities for their welfare. We share the responsibility to 

develop, implement and enforce policies and procedures in relation to ‘Safeguarding Adults’ 

issues. We are committed to providing training and development for all staff to support them 

in their safeguarding responsibilities.

Our Safeguarding Adults Procedure confirms our commitment to make 

sure that:

• People using our services are safe.

•   We extend help where needed to support those experiencing abuse and neglect in their 

own homes.

• Communities can access safety measures and live safer lives.

26

P
a

g
e
 3

2



An improvement plan containing four strategic objectives was agreed by the Directorate 

Management Team on the 16th May 2008.  This plan shows how the Directorate plans to 

increase its “personal dignity and respect” outcome performance to an excellent rating by 

2008/09.   The objectives are:-

• Improving customer access and service standards

• Improving the quality of case management and strong leadership

• Improving performance

• Developing the skills of the workforce

This Action Plan will be delivered by July 2008.

Safer Neighbourhood Team Review 
May 2008 will see the completion of the review of our approach to Safer Neighbourhoods 

Team in conjunction with South Yorkshire Police.  The review has challenged how SNT’s 

operate across the borough against the national standards of Access, Influence, Interventions 

and Answers.  Performance Clinics have been held to look at how each SNT is targeting 

crime and anti-social behaviour in our most vulnerable neighbourhoods, helping to 

understand how effective partnership working has been in each area.  The review has also 

looked at the recent The Flanagan report, February 2008 which identified a number of 

challenges and opportunities for neighbourhood policing such as:

• Creating effective partnerships

• Spreading the learning and improving delivery without stifling flexibility and innovation

•   Engendering a joined up approach to citizen focused policing and promoting 

community cohesion

Early findings highlight a number of areas for improvement such as accessibility and visibility to 

the public, consistency of the standard of service provided and improving public perception of 

the fear of crime.    A key priority for residents of Rotherham is Safety, this review will inform 

an action plan which, over the next 12 months, will strengthen our approach delivering safer 

neighbourhoods and will make people feel safer as a result.

Home From Home – Quality Assurance of Residential/

Nursing Homes
The ‘Home From Home’ Quality Assurance for Residential Homes Framework brings 

together a number of existing workstreams within the Directorate and will to provide a 

stronger approach to assessing the quality of Rotherham’s residential homes.  

The framework will strengthen the approach taken by the current contracting arrangements 

and put in place a wider support mechanism to which will inform the quality assurance 

process to include Social Workers, Service Quality Officers, Advocacy Services, Customer 

Inspectors and Clinical Professionals.

The framework is based on an accreditation scheme, similar to the CSCI approach to 

inspection, which will annually award a status to each residential home with a view to 

achieving minimum standard plus in all our homes.  The “Gold Plus” award will provide 

financial incentives for driving up standards in Rotherham‘s residential homes.  

27

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

“Through the implementation of the Noise Reduction 

Strategy we have reduced incidences by 9%.”

P
a
g
e
 3

3



2007/08 Key Performance Indicator Results

Achievements in 2007/08
•  Of the 51 Key Performance Indicators – 44 achieved targets (77%) compared to 64% 

last year. 

•  The Housing CPA score remained at least 3 out of 4 due to improved performance on 

private sector housing. If 2010 Rotherham Ltd retains their 2 star status then this could 

increase to 4 out of 4. 

•  Our contribution to the Environment CPA score has benefited from improved energy 

efficiency and regulatory performance. 

•  Despite the directorate loosing 4339 hours due to activities associated with the June 2007 

floods, not one indicator was badly affected.

• Achieved step change step change (either banding or quartile improvement) in 14 indicators.

•  Negotiating the inclusion of carers and helping vulnerable adults live independently within the 

new Local Area Agreement. 

Adult’s elements of the Directorate 
The audited results for 2007/08, show;

6 indicators identified in the CSCI Performance Assessment report;

•  PAF D40 Reviews – increased from 45.66% (3679 reviews) to 75.04% (6017 reviews), an 

improvement from band 2 / 4 to 4 / 4.     

•  PAF C72 Admissions – increased from 106.36 (434 placements) to 90.67 (386 placements), 

an improvement from band 3 / 5 to 4 / 5. 

•  PAF C62 Carers – increased from 4.28% to 9.11%, an increase of 201 assessments and an 

improvement from band 2 / 5 to 3 / 5. 

•  PAF D39 Statement of Need – increased from 85.02% (6749 statements) to 90.88% (7190 

statements) which is significant given the increase in the number of reviews and assessments.   

•  PAF C29 and C32 – deteriorated from 3.05 to 2.73 and from 79.79 to 69.72 respectively. 

There is an inter-relationship between these indicators and the number of reviews and 

assessments that have been completed this year. Through effective performance management 

action, we have undertaken 2,338 more reviews and 638 additional new assessments. By 

increasing the number of reviews we have found that a significant number of people were 

not receiving services as previously reported.  Consequently our performance figures have 

deteriorated.  This drop in performance has been partly offset by actions to free up resources 

through VFM measures, enabling 18 additional care packages to be provided compared to last 

year.  We have also completely eradicated the backlog of 300 assessments so there are now 

no new people waiting for a care package. 

Other improvements; 
•  PAF D55 Acceptable waiting times for assessments - score of 85.24%, improved and increased 

banding compared to 75.94% last year. 

•  Waiting times for adaptations - improved from 130 to 52 days in the public sector and from 

235 days to 52 in the private sector. 

•  PAF C51 Direct Payments – improved from 137 to 159, from band 4 / 5 to 5 / 5. 

•  PAF D55 Waiting times for assessment - improved from75.94% to 85.24%, from band 2 / 5 

to 3 / 5. 

•  PAF E48 Ethnicity of older people receiving services - improved 0.85 to 1.06, from band 2/3 

to 3/3. 

•  BVPI 64 Private sector vacancies brought back into use or demolished - increased from 15 

last year to 79 – moving out of ‘lower threshold’ CPA position (and mitigating risk of not 

retaining 4 stars in CPA 2008). 

•  BVPI 63 Energy Efficiency SAP Rating - rating increased from 61 last year to 66 – moving out 

of bottom quartile for the first time. 

•  Waiting times for adaptations - improved from 130 to 52 days in the public sector and from 

235 days to 52 in the private sector. 

•  xBVPI 203 Families in temporary accommodation - improved from 4.82% to -15.32%, from 

bottom quartile to upper middle. 

Our Performance

28

“2007/08 Decent Home Programme complete and on 

target to achieve 100% by the year 2010.” 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



•  BVPI 213 Homelessness preventions through housing advice - improved from 567 households 

last year to 864, sustaining top quartile. 

•  Trading standards – year ends in June but all targets anticipated to be achieved including 

improvements on business and consumer satisfaction. 

Other deterioration;

•  PAF D54 Equipment – score dropped from 90.67% to 85.3% as a result of data quality work 

with the 3rd party provider which led to a 3% drop on previous reported outturns. There 

were 3,207 more items delivered in 7 days compared to last year and 4,439 additional pieces 

of equipment delivered compared to last year. 

•  PAF C28 Intensive home care – the survey week led to a drop of 13.99 to 13.94. 

This maintains band 4 / 5 but the impact of increased direct payments performance has 

reduced our score by 2 points. 

•  PAF D56 Acceptable waiting times for care packages - score of 85.24% and deteriorated 

compared to 96.74% last year, banding 4 / 5. 

Partnership elements of the Directorate 
Crime - through the Safer Rotherham Partnership, jointly chaired by the Director of Adult Social 

Services, overall crime has reduced by 9% over the last 12 months.  Significant reductions have 

been seen in all crime types such as Robbery (Down 6.4%), Theft from a Person (Down 10%), 

Criminal Damage (Down 7.3%) and Common Assault (Down 20%).  The SRP have placed ‘the 

fear of crime’ as one of its top priorities and through the delivery of its ‘Communication and 

Customer Focus Strategy’ have strengthened our approach to testing perception, learning and 

targeting activity.

2010 Rotherham Ltd - BVPI 184b % change in decent homes improved from 13.80% to 29.7%, 

from lower middle to upper quartile. xBVPI 211a - improved from 32% to 39% but still a long 

way to go to reach Audit Commission best practice levels of 60% planned maintenance. 

BVPI 212 Void relet times – dropped from 16 days to 37 days, from top to bottom quartile. 

Next Steps
The Directorate will be implementing a number of strategic actions for the next three years 

to deliver improvements to services and on the areas of performance that do not compare 

well with the very best. Service plan objective 1 describes the priority actions that have been 

agreed to improve the timeliness of social care assessments, the quality of advice and written 

information we provide to customers, the impact that local people can have on public services in 

their neighbourhood and, for the first time, an action to provide better services for people who 

fund their own care.  

But the other 6 objectives are based on producing better outcomes for people in the borough 

e.g. reducing crime, increasing affordable housing, helping more people to remain at independent, 

supporting more carers and improving our performance on safeguarding vulnerable adults. Our 

service plan this year provides the platform for using our resources more effectively so that we 

prioritise service delivery and improve both customer experience and performance results at 

the same time. 

Key developments for the year ahead are;

• Agreeing targets and action plans for the new Local Area Agreement, 

•  Developing Delivery Plans so that the Directorate is able to perform well on the new 

National Performance Indicators, 

•  Weaning ourselves off national indicators and to replace these with better local and 

neighbourhood performance management arrangements, 

•  Implementing new performance management arrangements with partners like the PCT and 

RDASH, 

•  Setting ambitious efficiency targets so that we can free up more resources to the front-line, 

and

•  Preparing for the introduction of Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), which replaces 

Comprehensive Performance Assessment in April 2009. 

29

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

“A partnership approved Respect Action Plan demonstrating our commitment to improve safer outcomes within neighbourhoods”

P
a
g
e
 3

5



Our Outurn Performance 2007/2008
L
in

e
 N

o
.

D
id

 i
t 

h
it
 

ta
rg

e
t?

M
e
as

u
re

2
0
0
6
/0

7

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

M
ar

ch
/0

8

D
id

 i
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

 

b
e
tt

e
r 

th
an

 

la
st

 y
e
ar

?

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 T

ar
ge

t

PA
F 

B
an

d
in

g 

o
r 

/ A
ll 

E
n
gl

an
d

Q
u
ar

ti
le

 

R
at

in
g

R
e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

/

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 

In
d
ic

at
o
r

M
an

ag
e
r

10 AS LPI PAF C62 Services for Carers 4.28

2 of 5

1.06

Excl MH

6.15 7.8 9.11 9 Band 4 of 5 Sam Newton

Vacant CBS Manager

9 AS LPI PAF C31 Adults with mental health problems 

helped to live at home

4.5

5 of 5

n/a n/a n/a 4.18 4.8 Band 5 of 5 Kim Curry

Janine Parkin / Ian Jerams 

(RDASH)

8 AS LPI PAF C30 Adults with learning disabilities 

helped to live at home

3.13

5 of 5

3.04 2.98 3.02 3.02 3.2 Band 5 of 5 Shona McFarlane

Lucy Pullen

7 AS LPI PAF C29 Adults with physical disabilities 

helped to live at home

3.05

2 of 5

3 2.9 2.6 2.73 4.2 Band 2 of 5 Sam Newton

Cheryle Cartwright

6 BV056.03 (PAF D54) %Equipment <£1000 in 7 days 90.67

5 of 5

82.93 88.51 84.62rev

(87.59)

85.3 95 Band 5 of 5
Top Q93
R= 2nd

Kirsty Everson

 Lynn Keirs

5 BV054 (PAF C32) Older People helped to live 

at home

79.79

2 of 5

72.39

(77.61)

70.95           

(72.29)

68.2 69.72 102

LAA

Band 2 of 5
Top Q100.54

R= 1st

Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

4 BV053 (PAF C28) Intensive home care per 1000 65+ 13.99

4 of 5

15.1

Estimate

14.8

Estimate

13.94 13.94 16 Band 4 of 5
Top Q17.02

R= 3rd

Sam Newton

Vacant CBS Manager

2 AS LPI PAF D41 Number or Delayed Transfers of 

care per 100,000 population aged 65 and over

9

rounded

5 of 

12.31 13.86 15.21 16.87 <20.12 Band 5 of 5 Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

1 AS LPI PAF D40 Adult and Older clients receiving 

a review as a percentage of adult clients receiving 

a service

45.66

2 of 4

14.74 26.41 44.32 75.04 75

LAA

Band 4 of 4 Sam Newton 

Vacant CBS Manager

11 AS LPI 102 Number of protection plans in place 25 8 Accum’ 19

Proj’d 44

Accum’ 30

Proj’d 42

40

(Provisional)

40 Not PAF / banded Sam Newton

G Hallas ?

Outcomes Framework 1: Improving Health and Emotional Well-being

Outcomes Framework 2: Improved Quality of Life

3 AS LPI PAF D41 (RMBC) Number of delayed 

transfers of care per 100,000 population aged 65+

0 0 0 0 0 0 Not PAF / banded Sam Newton

 Mark Joynes

30

P
a

g
e
 3

6



26 CPA 32 Trading Standards: High Risk Visits 100% 7.8% 23.5% 47.1% 100% 100% n/a Michelle Musgrave / 

Trevor Davies

24 CPA 30 Consumer satisfaction with trading 

standards

94.7% 95% 94% 97% 96% 96% n/a Michelle Musgrave / 

Trevor Davies

23 BV 166b Enforcement score for Trading Standards 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Top 100% R = 1st Michelle Musgrave / 

Trevor Davies

22 BV 166a Enforcement score for Environmental 

Health

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Top 100% R = 1st Michelle Musgrave / Mark Ford

21 BV 212 Average Relet Times 16 13 33 35 37 15 Top Q 29 R = 4th 2010 Rotherham Ltd.

20 NM 185 Repairs completed by appointment 97.85% 97.67% 98.01% 97.78% 98.92% 97.85% n/a = 1st ALMO Q 2010 Rotherham Ltd.

19 NM 73 Non-urgent repairs completed in time 10.14 8.86 9.84 9.37 9.42 9.5 n/a 2010 Rotherham Ltd.

17 BV 66d % of tenants evicted 0.44% 0.06% 0.14% 0.19% 0.27% 0.4% Top Q 0% R = 1st 2010 Rotherham Ltd.

16 BV 66c % of tenants with an NSP 14.09% 2.53% 3.11% 4.01% 11.25% 14% Top Q 17.06% 

R = 1st

2010 Rotherham Ltd.

15 BV 66b % of tenants in rent arrears 3.34% 2.64% 2.66% 2.8% 2.89% 3.3% Top Q 4.12% 

R = 1st

2010 Rotherham Ltd.

14 BV 66a % Rent Collection 98.23% 95.4% 98.3% 98.85% 98.85% 98.25% Top Q 98.59%  

R = 2nd

2010 Rotherham Ltd.

13 CS 2 Average time taken to provide adaptations in 

the private sector

235 96 63 63 52 80 N/A Kirsty Everson / Tom Sweetman

12 CS 1 Average time taken to provide adaptations in 

the public sector

130 79 54 47 52 80 N/A  Kirsty Everson / 

Tom Sweetman

18 NM 72 Urgent repairs completed in time 99% n/a = 2nd ALMO Q 2010 Rotherham Ltd.

29 CPA 33iii Trading Standards: Low risk compliance 100% 100% Top Q 72% 

R = 1st

Michelle Musgrave / 

Trevor Davies

28 CPA 33ii Trading Standards: Medium risk compliance 100% 100% n/a Michelle Musgrave / 

Trevor Davies

27 CPA 33i Trading Standards: High risk compliance 99.1% 90% Top Q 84% 

R = 4th

Bob Crosby / 

Adrian Gabriel

25 CPA 31 Business satisfaction with trading standards 93.6% 96% n/a Michelle Musgrave /

 Trevor Davies

L
in

e
 N

o
.

D
id

 i
t 

h
it
 

ta
rg

e
t?

M
e
as

u
re

2
0
0
6
/0

7

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

M
ar

ch
/0

8

D
id

 i
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

 

b
e
tt

e
r 

th
an

 

la
st

 y
e
ar

?

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 T

ar
ge

t

PA
F 

B
an

d
in

g 

o
r 

/ A
ll 

E
n
gl

an
d

Q
u
ar

ti
le

 

R
at

in
g

R
e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

/

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 

In
d
ic

at
o
r

M
an

ag
e
r

98.78% 98.3% 98.11% 98.34% 98.34%

90% 93% 95% 96.2%

100% 83.3% 100% 98%

83% 94.9% 96.8% 99.3%

74% 76.2% 92% 98.2%

31

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11
P

a
g
e
 3

7



36 CPA 32 Trading Standards: High 

Risk Visits

85.77%

3 of 5

84.22% 85.46% 85.23% 86.65% 80% Not PAF / banded Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

33 BV 166b Enforcement score for Trading Standards 106.36

3 of 5

120.44 120.82 112.73
Best est =

98.51

90.67 95 Band 4 of 5 Sam Newton

Vacant CBS Manager

31 BV 91b % Households served by more than 2 

kerbside collections of recylables

96.74

5 of 5

95.11 95.67 95.32 85.24% 98 Band 4 of 5

Top Q92.69

R= 4th

Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

32 BV 166a Enforcement score for Environmental 

Health

137

4 of 5

150 140 154 159 150

LAA

Band 5 of 5

Top Q126.56 R= 4th

Sam Newton

Vacant CBS Manager

30 BV 91a % Households served by a kerbside 

collection of recylables

75.94

2 of 5

77.85 82.58 84.13 85.24 85 Band 3 of 5

Top Q88.35 R= 3rd

Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

35 CPA 31 Business satisfaction with Trading Standards 2.25

4 of 5

1.49 Band 4 of 5 Sam Newton

34 CPA 30 Consumer satisfaction with Trading 

Standards

85.02

2 of 5

97 Band 3 of 5 Sam Newton

Cheryle Cartwright

L
in

e
 N

o
.

D
id

 i
t 

h
it
 

ta
rg

e
t?

M
e
as

u
re

2
0
0
6
/0

7

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

M
ar

ch
/0

8

D
id

 i
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

 

b
e
tt

e
r 

th
an

 

la
st

 y
e
ar

?

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 T

ar
ge

t

PA
F 

B
an

d
in

g 

o
r 

/ A
ll 

E
n
gl

an
d

Q
u
ar

ti
le

 

R
at

in
g

R
e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

/

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 

In
d
ic

at
o
r

M
an

ag
e
r

37 CPA 33i Trading Standards: High risk compliance 98.7% 88.0% 95.0% 96.9% 99% 99% R = Top Threshold Bob Crosby / Dan Swaine

41 BV195 (PAF D55) Acceptable waiting times for 

assessment

0.85%

2 of 3

1.19% 1.17% 1.02% 1.06% 0.91% Band 3 of 3 Sam Newton
Mark Joynes

40 BV 75a % Satisfaction with tenant participation 1.78%

3 of 3

0.88% 0.97% 0.77% 1.09% 1.9% Band 3 of 3 Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

44 AS LPI (PAF C72) Number of admissions of supported 

residents aged 65+ to residential and nursing care

New PI 8 23 32 344 314 N/A Michelle Musgrave / Tom Bell

43 BV201 (PAF C51) Adults receiving direct payments 13.8% 6.35% 10.12% 18.86% 29.7% 15.5% Top Q 31.5% 

R = 2nd

2010 Rotherham Ltd.

42 BV196 (PAF D56) Acceptable wait for care packages 15 9 15 30 79 28 (20) Top Q 95 R = 2nd Top Q 95 R = 2nd

N/A

39

38 CPA 33ii Trading Standards: Medium risk compliance 1.04 0 0.13 0.08 0.27 <10 Not PAF / banded Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

CPA 33iii Trading Standards: Low risk compliance 0.37 0.1 0.1 0.09 0.13 <10 Not PAF / banded Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

86.13 89.13 92.16 90.88

0.19 1.09Acc’

1.49proj

1.42 1.93

Outcomes Framework 4: Increased Choice and Control

Outcomes Framework 5: Freedom from Discrimination

Outcomes Framework 6: Economic Well-being

P
a

g
e
 3

8



56 BV 63 Energy Efficiency SAP Rating
32% 23% 33% 35% 40% n/a = 4th ALMO Q 2010 Rotherham Ltd.38%

48 BV 213 Homelessness cases prevented through housing 

advice casework

2 0 0 0 0 0 Top Q 0 R = 1st Kirsty Everson / Sandra Tolley 

47 AS LPI PAF E 82 Assessments of adults and older people 

leading to a provision of service

0 0 0 0 0 0 Top Q 0 R = 1st Kirsty Everson / Sandra Tolley 

n/a = 4th ALMO Q 2010 Rotherham Ltd.

Top Q 0 R = 1st Kirsty Everson / Sandra Tolley 

Top Q 0 R = 1st

40%

0

0

38%

0

0

35%

0

0

33%

0

0

23%

0

0

32%

2

0

BV 63 Energy Efficiency SAP Rating

BV 213 Homelessness cases prevented through housing 

advice casework

AS LPI PAF E 82 Assessments of adults and older people 

leading to a provision of service

56

48

47 Kirsty Everson / Sandra Tolley 

45 AS LPI (PAF D39) % of people receiving a statement 

of their needs and how they will be met

6% 7% Top Q 10% R = 2nd Top Q 10% R = 2nd

46 AS LPI (PAF C73) Number of admissions of supported 

residents under 65 to residential and nursing care

96% 95% Top Q 100% R = 2nd Michelle Musgrave / 

Lewis Coates

54 CPA 62 Unfit private dwellings made fit / demolished 17.47

5 of 5

n/a
Accum’

16.3
proj’d 34

20.76 21.6 Band 5 of 5 Kim Curry

Nigel Mitchell

55 BV 64 Private sector homes demolished 28 rounded

5 of 5

n/a n/a 29.35est 31 Band 5 of 5 Sam Newton

Vacant CBS Manager

30

57 BV 184b % Change in non-decent homes 109.48% 50.03% 61.25% 79.72% 109.15% n/a Michelle Musgrave / Tom Bell112%

L
in

e
 N

o
.

D
id

 i
t 

h
it
 

ta
rg

e
t?

M
e
as

u
re

2
0
0
6
/0

7

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

M
ar

ch
/0

8

D
id

 i
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

 

b
e
tt

e
r 

th
an

 

la
st

 y
e
ar

?

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 T

ar
ge

t

PA
F 

B
an

d
in

g 

o
r 

/ A
ll 

E
n
gl

an
d

Q
u
ar

ti
le

 

R
at

in
g

R
e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

/

P
e
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 

In
d
ic

at
o
r

M
an

ag
e
r

52 AS LPI PAF E 48 Ethnicity of older people receiving 

services following an assessment
100

5 of 5

99 Band 5 of 5 Kim Curry                                                                                               
Doug Parkes / Maggie Morrison

51 AS LPI PAF E 47 Ethnicity of older people 

receiving assessment
1.01% 3.50% 2.72% 2.56% 1.20% Band 2 of 3 David Hamilton

Paul Billingsley / 
Claire Tester

2.25%

49 Ethnicity KT - Assessment / reviews
4.82% -12.64% -8.5% -21.84% -9.3% Top Q -26.12% 

R = 2nd

Kirsty Everson / Sandra Tolley -15.32%

50 Ethnicity KT - Services
61 61 61 63 62 Top Q 72 R = 3rd Michelle Musgrave / 

Mark Whittle
66

N/A

53 BV 164 Housing Racial Equality Standards
<1 rounded n/a n/a n/a 0 Not PAF / banded Directors??

Outcomes Framework 7: Maintaining Personal Dignity and Respect

Outcomes Framework 8: Leadership

Annual Measure

Proxy measure = 100 Mar 08

Outcomes Framework 9: Commissioning and Use of Resources

 96% Est

7%

P
a
g
e
 3

9



Efficiency and Value For Money
•  The Directorate has demonstrated improved performance in addition to delivering against a 

range of efficiencies. Our services have contributed to the Council’s 4 out of 4 rated Use of 

Resources score and helped the Council to achieve a 4 star rated Council overall. 

The Audit Commission 2007 Value for Money (VfM) report showed that there are some 

services that are performing at better value for money than others. 

The report and our own work identified the following services that are performing well. 

These are;

•  Crime – evidence of investment leading to improved performance e.g. motorcycles and 9% 

fall in overall crime. 

•  Homelessness – rank bottom spend, all indicators in the top quartile and quality of service 

rated by Children’s Joint Area Review.

• Furnished homes – high satisfaction levels and service now self-sufficient. 

•  Housing Market Renewal – track record of spend and delivery has led to more investment in 

the borough. 

•  Pest control – VfM work identified high quality and costs compared well. Members did not 

wish to reduce costs further by reducing the rat service.

The report and our own work has highlighted that the following services were providing poor 

value for money but good progress has been made as a result of VfM measures. 

•  District heating – an action plan is in place and is being managed through the Landlord 

Excellence Improvement framework. 

•  Home Care costs are too high – we have agreed with Elected Members in December 2007 

to shift the more of the balance of home care provision from in house to the independent 

sector and realising efficiency savings of £1.4m. 

•  Commissioning and strategy spending is low – we have freed up resources created in the 

restructure to boost capacity by 15%. 

•  Adaptations – the lack of competition and control over costs will be strengthened through 

the procurement and internal audit processes. £530k efficiencies delivered in adaptations. .

•  Right-to-Buy service – the Landlord Excellence Plan identifies actions needed to gain a better 

understanding of comparable costs and quality. 

•  Procurement - corporate procurement savings of £2,563,466 projected for 07/08 and rated 

best metropolitan last year.

•  Planned maintenance – our ALMO has improved performance following the implementation 

of a strategy but has more to do.

Our VfM activity will be strengthened in 2008/09 as a result of team plans which will be tested 

on a new VfM schedule and the implementation of the new ‘measuring improvement and 

efficiency’ tool. Routine benchmarking on service costs are not in place for all services. 

These actions will assist Directorate in tracking annual achievements against the new efficiency 

target – NI 179 which demands 3% cash releasing savings per annum from the Local 

Our Resources

30

P
a

g
e
 4

0



2008/09 Budget Investments

Department Measure Impact £000

All service areas Investments to sustain the increasing costs 

of existing services.

Enables continuation of existing services to the people of Rotherham. 173

Safer Neighbourhoods Funding to combat motorcycle nuisance Reduced nuisance and anti-social behaviour within parks and open spaces and across the borough. 100

Business Regulation Implementation of new duties regarding 

stray dogs due to legislative change 

(section 68 of the Clean Neighbourhoods 

& Environment Act).

A permanent post in Trading Standards will now be funded. 23

Neighbourhood

Development

Further implementation of devolution, 

empowerment & communities. 

Developing mechanisms for engagement and involvement other than Area Assembly meetings, with 

improved levels of newsletters, promotional materials and other media avenues. Improving access 

to training and development for elected members and parish councillors in respect of community 

leadership role and powers of well being. Improve satisfaction levels of local residents in respect of 

opportunities to become involved from a satisfaction rate of 21% to 30% across Area Assemblies.  

Improve levels of people satisfied with their place to live from 66% to 75% across the borough. 

Improve satisfaction levels for residents to be involved in decision making from 53% to 65% across 

the borough. Reduce levels of fear of crime from current baseline percentage of 32% (Quality Of 

Life Survey) to 27%.

80

Safer Neighbourhoods Funding of Anti-Social Behaviour 

Intervention Scheme - Young People. 

Previously funded through external funding, this post has been successful in promoting activities 

other that Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) for young people and by educating re. ASB issues through 

schools in conjunction with other agencies such as the Police and Youth Offending Service (YOS).  

This is seen by the Government’s RESPECT task group as good practice and is embedded in 

Rotherham’s SRP RESPECT Action Plan. The impact of the post helped the YOS to meet an 

objective to reduce ASBOs.   Reduced ASB contributes to national PSA perception indicator, SRP 

RESPECT KPIs, BVPI 199 and stretch targets within the LAA.

30

31

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Safer Neighbourhoods Implementation of new duties regarding 

stray dogs due to legislative change (section 

68 of the Clean Neighbourhoods & 

Environment Act).

Funding for out of hours kennelling and following day collection. 10

Total 416

P
a
g
e
 4

1



Department Measure Impact £000

Adult Services Investment to sustain the increasing costs of 

services

Enables continuation of existing services to the people of Rotherham. 1,765

Adult Services Demographic  Residential Care pressures Meets demographic demand for residential care services across all client groups including transitions 

from children and young peoples’ services. 

353

Adult Services Demographic pressures within Domiciliary 

Care services

Meets the increase in demand for services to keep people living independently in their own homes. 270

Adult Services Review of Voluntary and Community Sector 

Funding

Investment to manage the outcome of impact assessments of service level agreements within the 

voluntary and community sector, e.g. Age Concern, Yemeni, MIND.

271

Adult Services Changes in joint funding arrangements with 

the Primary Care Trust

To maintain services to manage winter workload pressures and avoid delays in discharges from 

hospital.

270

Adult Services Provide additional Community Support/

Respite Services 

Increased support to meet Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) requirements and enable 

people with Learning Disabilities to manage their everyday lives and continue to live independently.

95

Adult Services Increase drug and alcohol residential 

rehabilitation services.

Increase the number of assessments and provision of drug rehabilitation services for up to 10 

people to meet the Safer Rotherham Drug Action Plan. 

56

Adult Services Introduce electronic forms software Implementation of electronic forms to improve data quality within the social care records system, 

including Key Performance Indicator information. 

28

Adult Services Changes in Housing Benefit rules. To maintain current income levels in respect of the provision of respite care due to changes in 

Housing Benefit rules.

25

Total 3,133

32

“Put in place Multi-agency Charters developed with SYP, PCT, 2010 Rotherham and Voluntary Sector involvement.”

P
a

g
e
 4

2



Department Measure Impact £000

Business Regulation Procurement efficiencies – Food, Health & 

Safety, Licensing & Trading Standards

More efficient procurement through prioritisation in Supplies & Services, Transport and Hired & 

Contracted. Reduced weighbridge hire by block booking.

-26

Total Efficiencies -4,398

2008/09 Efficiencies

Safer Neighbourhoods Changes to the Mediation Service Improved efficiency to contractual  arrangements with MERO (Mediation Rotherham) -15

Safer Neighbourhoods Procurement efficiencies – Neighbourhoods 

& Park Wardens Service.

Reduced garaging costs for Graffiti Remover and reductions in Premises and Supplies & Services 

budgets

-15

Safer Neighbourhoods Neighbourhood Wardens - reallocation of 

funding

This adjustment matches the level of funding required for the service. -270

Safer Neighbourhoods 

&  Neighbourhood 

Development

Review of Medium Term Financial Strategy 

2008/09 funding increases

Costs to be maintained at 2008/09 levels without adverse impact on service delivery. -47

33

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

“Agreed and approved by Member a Protocol for Councillor 

Call for Action.”

P
a
g
e
 4

3



34

Department Measure Impact £000

Adult Services Transfer transitional in-house Home Care 

provision to the Independent sector

Efficiency savings from shifting the balance of existing home care provision from in-house to 

independent sector during 2008/09.

-1440

Total -4,398

2008/09 Efficiencies

Adult Services Review of future demographic pressures on 

the provision of direct Payments

Review of existing investment within the MTFS in respect of the future demand for direct payments 

within Older People and Learning Disability services.independent sector during 2008/09.

-120

Adult Services Additional Non-residential care fees and 

charges

Additional income from the review of non-residential care charges after benchmarking to bring in 

line other neighbouring authorities.

-205

Adult Services Review of revenue implications of Extra 

Care Housing.

Review of existing investment within the MTFS in respect of developments in Extra Care Housing. -300

Adult Services Changes to Adult Social Care training 

grants

Existing investment included in MTFS now no longer required due to the replacement of the existing 

Adult Services training grants with a new area based workforce grant. 

-635

Adult Services Review of revenue implications of 

developing supported living schemes

Review of existing investment within the MTFS has identified slippage in the development of 

supported living mainly due to the availability of suitable accommodation. 

-149

Adult Services Staffing re-structuring within the 

Directorate

Implementation of the new management and staffing structure within the Neighbourhoods and 

Adult Services Directorate.

-394

Adult Services Savings on residential care costs of clients 

with preserved rights

Reducing numbers of people in residential care with preserved rights who require funding by Adult 

Services.

-130

Adult Services General efficiency savings within Mental 

Health Services

Management actions including savings from contract negotiations with service providers and 

capitalisation of equipment.

-71

Adult Services Use of new and existing ringfenced and 

area based grants

Review of allocation of new and increases in existing Adult Services grants. -849

Adult Services Further general savings General efficiency savings across the Directorate including, community support services, small items 

of equipment, reduced transaction charges in collecting domiciliary care income.

-105

P
a

g
e
 4

4



35

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

The following table details the budget for Neighbourhoods and Adult Service for 2008/09. Key Risks

We have identified five key risks to delivering our service objectives and priority actions.  

We have identified actions to mitigate these risks using the Council RISGEN Risk 

Management System, these are reflected within individual delivery plans for each priority 

action.  Our key headline risks for 2008/09 are as follows:

• The pace at which we are able to ‘shift the balance’

• Un-foreseen demands for services 

• Providers may be deterred from responding to opportunities

• Insufficient capacity building taking place within the community and voluntary sector

• The ability of others partners to deliver

• Reducing the perception of the fear of crime

• Delivering Decent Homes

• The ALMO achieving ‘2 Stars’ and maintaining funding for Decent Homes

• Investment in the Private Sector Housing

Service Area

Housing & Neighbourhood Services

Independent Living

Commissioining and Partnerships

Assessment & Care Management

Health & Well Being

Total

Gross 

Expenditure

£000

7,748

7,034

20,225

27,186

52,671

114,864

Gross

Income

£000

 -3,715

 -4,886

 -10,749

 -4,234

 -17,796

 -41,380

Net

Expenditure

£000

4,033

 2,148

9,476

22,952

34,875

73,484

P
a
g
e
 4

5



36

Customer Care
Our customers still regard accessibility as a critical priority for us to deliver on.  This service 

plan sets out a clear commitment to improving access through implementation on 24/7 

services, web based access channels and the roll out of the Assessment Direct approach 

across the whole of the Directorate. This will allow the customer to be dealt right first time 

and will adopt the ‘tell us once’ approach.  Through learning from customers we will improve 

our out of hours emergency response to social care need, homelessness and safeguarding.

Following consultation with customers we have reviewed and improved our service standards, 

ensuring all customers know what kind of service they can expect at the first point of contact 

and our current performance.  We will update our performance on a quarterly basis and aim 

to stretch our targets further over the next 12 months.  

During summer 2008 we are developing a ‘Home from Home’ framework that will routinely 

inspect and assess the standard of residential homes against the national minimum standards.  

Inspections will be carried out by staff and customers consisting of reality check monitoring, 

mystery shopping and focus group discussions with residents and relatives.  

Our learning from customers’ publicity campaign has been strengthened through updated 

posters detailing our achievements, improvements, comments, compliments and suggestions 

and learning from complaints.  We have also introduced real customer case study posters 

demonstrating our contributions to achieving the social care outcomes framework based on 

the Government white paper called ‘Our health, our care, our say’. Over the next 12 months 

we will also be introducing staff case studies and testimonies. 

Our Customer Insight approaches have been identified as best practice by the Cabinet Office 

who has referenced our work within a ‘Customer Experience in Public Services’ publication. 

The Improvement and Development Agency (IDeA) have also invited the Service Quality 

Team to deliver a workshop at their Front Office Shared Services conference in May 2008 

sharing our customer involvement approaches and focusing on our home truths reality TV 

method of testing the quality of services using customer video diaries.  

Over the next 12 months we will be further developing our Customer Insight approaches 

through our REACT (reacting to our customers thoughts) initiative where dissatisfied 

customers are contacted to discuss their experiences and changes required.  We are also 

mapping our customers’ journeys from first point of contact to receiving a service through a 

new ‘Customer Passport’ initiative to help us identify service improvements.

Customer Consultation
This service plan is the product of extensive consultation with residents and other 

stakeholders over the past 12 months.  We use a number of different methodologies to 

consult with customers; scheduled telephone calls, postal questionnaires on a weekly, monthly 

or quarterly basis, ‘Learning from Customers’  forums/groups and the Customer Inspection 

Service where customers quality check our services and look for improvements.  This activity 

is carried out using the framework of the Council’s Annual Consultation Plan.

Consultation results are also published through our ‘Learning from Customers’ poster publicity 

campaign and via the internet explaining what we have done to improve our services as a 

result of customer comments.  

During January 2008 we have refreshed opportunities for customers to become involved 

in consultation through a new initiative called ‘My Say, My Way, which enables customers to 

choose the topics they are interested in and the method of involvement for example surveys, 

focus groups, neighbourhood walk-abouts and mystery shopping.  

We have developed and promoted a database of customers involved in user and focus 

groups across the Directorate and are working on linking this to the new Community 

Engagement Database which helps customers to become more informed about consultation 

and community involvement activities in their area.  During summer 2008 we will also utilise 

the database to enhance customer satisfaction testing further through on-line surveys.

Our Customers

P
a

g
e
 4

6



37

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Learning from Customers Forum & Customer 

Inspection Service
The Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Learning from Customers Forum and Customer 

Inspection Service is made up of approximately 25 real customers who meet for one full day, 

once a month to:

•  Carry out customer inspection activities to check that we are meeting our service 

standards through a range of mystery shopping and reality checking exercises;

•  Identify customer issues and experiences of accessing services within Neighbourhoods and 

Adult Services

•  Look at feedback including complaints and customer satisfaction findings to see what we 

can learn from them and what we can improve on 

•  Provide input into the development of our service standards

•  Consider the wording of leaflets and posters and other customer information to ensure 

that they are classed as ‘easy Read’ and customer approved.

Last year we carried out around 30 mystery shopping activities across the Directorate 

including reception area reality checks, RotherCare Community Alarm Service workshadow, 

Meals on Wheels Mystery Shop, Safer Neighbourhood Teams door knocking surveys and 

much more.  Activities have resulted in some real improvements for our customers which 

have been published in our annual Mystery Shopping Results booklet and displayed at 

reception areas by posters.

Over the next 12 months we will be working on doubling the number of customers involved 

in inspecting our services through targeted publicity campaigns and by linking into existing 

focus groups.

Customer Service Excellence Standard (Charter Mark) 
Through demonstrating our focus on customers and the service they receive the prestigious 

Charter Mark Customer Excellence award was retained for Neighbourhood Services, 

Meals on Wheels, Transport, RotherCare and The Visual Impairment Team during our annual 

continuous improvement assessments in 2007.  

During March 2008, the new Customer Service Excellence Standard was launched (replacing 

CharterMark) with strengthened focus on Customer Insight ‘do you know who your 

customers are’, customer satisfaction and consultation and customer involvement. 

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services have been awarded the ‘Standard Bearer’ status by the 

Cabinet Office for the Customer Service Excellence Standard in recognition of our excellent 

approaches to customer service.  As a Standard Bearer we will be seen and recognised as a 

beacon of good practice across the country and across all sectors.   We will be one of the 

first organisations to be assessed against the new standard, our aim is to be assessed and 

accredited across the whole Directorate by July 2008.

P
a
g
e
 4

7



38

Workforce development is about linking workforce 

needs to the future design of services and must relate 

closely with the Directorate service planning process 

so that we have the right number of staff with the right 

skills in the right places at the right time. 

The Workforce Development Strategy reflects the 

approach to planning, tracking and reviewing the 

performance of individuals and teams at all levels.  It 

works hand in hand with the Service Plan to ensure 

our goals are achieved.

The key objectives for the Strategy are as follows:

• To develop the leadership capacity of the organisation

• To develop the skills and capacity of the workforce

• Developing the Organisation

• Resourcing

• Pay and Rewards

Leadership and Management 
The Directorate continue to develop Leaders as opposed to Managers, as the service moves 

along its modernisation agenda.  Directors are highly competent Leaders who share good 

practice and look to talent management from within its workforce.  Through secondments, 

formal and informal training, projects or opportunities presenting through service 

developments, staff are empowered to take ownership and make change happen.

Our Cabinet Members, Cllr Jahangir Akhtar and Cllr Maurice Kirk will continue to challenge 

how services are delivered and be supportive to change, and along with other Elected 

Members, continue to develop within our Directorate through monthly training sessions 

where they visit our Services, meet teams and experience first hand how services are 

delivered on the frontline. 

Annual strategic planning is led by Directors, via Staff/Customer Roadshows, Team Workshops, 

Visioning Sessions and other events which encourage open consultation so that Service 

Planning and Transformational Change continues to be a two-way process.  

All Managers working within the Council are performance managed through competencies 

which form part of a Manager’s Performance and Development Review.  These competencies 

are continually raised through numerous development processes such as:-

•  The Rotherham MBC Manager Development Centre where Managers undertake a 360 

degree assessment resulting in a personalized development plan which is then fed into 

their PDR.

•  Management into Leadership Programme in partnership with Leeds Metropolitan 

University which enables managers to attain post graduate certificates and diplomas in 

management, all relative to their role within RMBC.

•  Chartered Management Institute (CMI) in partnership with Park Lane College at 

Wakefield, which provides an introduction to management award at levels 3 or 4

•  Rotherham MBC Policy and Practice Workshops that concentrate on Corporate 

Operational Leadership Issues.

•  In-house Accredited Institute of Leadership and Management (ILM) Centre which provides 

the award of ILM Level 3 Introductory Certificate in First Line Management

•  In partnership with the Primary Care Trust a jointly run Leading an Empowered 

Organisation (LEO) programme which enables Managers from both organizations to 

learn together.

•  Post Qualifying Framework Management and Leadership Award for Social Work Education 

and Training which supports our Social Work Managers to undertake continuous 

development in the social care field and pass on new developments to teams.

•  In-house ‘Becoming a Better People Manager’ Peer Group Sessions which are 

complimented with a Guidance Booklet setting out how our Directorate interprets issues 

such as HR, Investors, Workforce, Strategic Planning etc to ensure equality of service for 

all staff.

Our Workforce Development

P
a

g
e
 4

8



39

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Developing Skills and Capacity of the Workforce
Learning and development provision is an essential part of improved service delivery.  

We recognise that a well trained workforce provided with development opportunities will 

help to create a learning culture and move us towards being a learning organisation.  

Professional Development Reviews and issues raised in the Employee Opinion Survey have 

been fed into the Workforce Development Strategy making it a living document, changeable 

on an annual and bi-annual basis.  The PDR/Team Plan process ensures that staff understand:

• What they need to achieve in their job and how their performance is managed,

• How they can work to put Neighbourhoods and Adult Services values into practice,

• How their skills can be developed in their role,

• how their learning and development impacts on the service,

• how well they have performed against agreed objectives/targets.

Learning and Development is aligned into three categories of Service/Team Plan Critical, 

Competency Based, Continued Professional Development and Personal Development.  

Current need has been identified and budgets have been set to respond to the needs and 

ensure that the workforce drive service improvements and raise standards set both locally 

through our Learning from Customers Forums, Nationally through Chartered Institutes or 

Regionally through Skills for Care’s National Minimum Data Set.  

The Department of Health’s National Training Strategy (NTS) and Human Resource 

Development Strategy (HRDS) grants provide the main funding to shape and support 

workforce development.  The table below summarises the budget available to develop social 

care workers in Rotherham for both adults’ social care and children’s services for 2007/2008 

for the NTS and HRDS grants and their sub programmes.

National Training Strategy Grant 

National Minimum Standards

Trainee Social Worker Scheme 

PQ Training

HR Development Strategy Grant 

HR Development

Total budget

£557,213

£419,096

£66,296

£71,821

£258,278

£258,278

£815,491

“Reduced waiting times for major adaptations from 183 days to 52 days”

P
a
g
e
 4

9



40

Performance and Development Reviews (PDR’s)
As part of our performance management protocol, we have re-aligned practices and created a single performance and development planning and monitoring system to ensure that all staff are 

effectively managing change and meeting objectives set out in both Team and individual PDR Plans.

The new system in place which supports the Golden Thread approach moves away from a traditional approach to ‘supervision’ and ensures that all staff from across the Directorate follow 

one system delivering an equality of service and Investor in People culture:-

Evaluation of all learning and development will continue to be undertaken both at a local 

level, through Learning and Development Passports and NAS3 Forms, and at an organisation 

level to ensure that all development improves our professional standards and places our 

Service  in the workplace and creates an environment of continuous improvement.

A centrally managed Learning and Development budget is utilized to commission training 

across the Directorate which supports our drive to create efficiency savings through 

cross-Directorate/External Partnership working.

Performance and Development Process Map

STRATEGIC PLANNING

Corporate Plan/Community Strategy

Service Plan

Team Plans

PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT PLANNING

Annual Performance and Development Review

6th Month Performance and Development Review

PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT MONITORING

Monthly 1-2-1

Team Meetings

Performance Clinics

P
a

g
e
 5

0



41

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Organisational Development
To assist our workforce to gain new skills and work more flexibly, we are introducing flexible/

mobile working solutions for Social Worker Teams which introduces electronic social care 

records fully internet ready.  This initiative has been possible due to efficiency savings which 

have been reinvested into agile working options.  Learning from this will help us to plan a full 

Directiorate-wide scheme in line with the Corporate Agile Working Solution currently 

being devised.

Work continues with the PCT and other Partners into organisational development initiatives.  

Currently Human Resource and Flexible Working has been jointly assessed and learning from 

this will initially feed into the Integrated Services of the Children and Young People Services for 

piloting prior to implementing within our Directorate.  

To ensure that our Private and Voluntary Sector Partners are involved in this, as part of 

the Commissioning process, service level agreements will be created to promote seamless 

organisational protocols so that standards commence at a suitable level and improve alongside 

the Council, PCT and South Yorkshire Police. 

Registration of the the Directorate’s social care workforce has commenced on a phased 

approach to establish a baseline position from which to improve. To maintain the professionalism 

of the workforce it will be necessary to embed a culture of continuing professional development 

and provide learning opportunities to meet both National Minimum Standards and re-

registration requirements of the General Social Care Council.    

ICT and E:Government Strategy
For many years the Council has worked closely with its partners in the Rotherham Health 

Community, including the Primary Care Trust and the Rotherham District Foundation Trust as 

well as the Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber Trust ( RDASH) who provide,  with us, 

mental health services in Rotherham.  We are involved in the PCT’s “Joined Up Information 

Programme Team” which covers the National Programme for IT and Connecting for Health 

initiatives in addition to overseeing the joint work on integration and shared networking 

across the agencies.

Within our Directorate development we have improved how we communicate both 

internally and externally through a review over the last 12 months with staff and customers.  

A fundamental improvement arising from this is the massive improvements being made to the 

intranet and internet systems.  Customers have now more access to services, 24/7, through

the Internet, direct to individual services through the use of e:forms. 

As part of the Communications Strategy, systems are now in place which enable both staff 

and customers to complete surveys, access 24 hour services by email and e-forms and make 

comments, suggestions or complaints online.  Further developments in the Council’s Website will 

enable our Directorate to utilise Instant Customer Satisfaction Testing  and Chat Rooms as a way 

to communicate and access services.

Through continued discussions with Anite (the suppliers of the SWIFT database) new ways of 

working for practitioners are forming that will revolutionise the sector.  On an interim basis, 

to support Our First Contact Initiative to improve our single assessment, care planning and care 

management process, eForms have been introduced to the majority of our frontline services.  

During 2008/09 we intend to transfer from 24 hour email access to eForm access, which has 

been identified as a better and easier mechanism for use by customers.

As part of our intended approach to Agile Working, there is an identified need to ensure that 

all staff whether frontline or strategic are competent in the use of all forms of information 

technology that is utilised.  Greater emphasis over the period of this plan will be placed 

on ensuring a minimum standard is reached, with specialist training for teams who require 

administrator knowledge of systems in order to programme and monitor.

Agile Working
The Council is currently working in line with a corporate approach to Agile Working Solutions. 

Electronic Social Care Records, a Department of Health requirement for all existing and future 

social care case files to be stored and used electronically, is a key driver for our Directorate.  

In response to this and the aspirations of customers to access services more quickly, we aim 

to introduce flexible working for all staff working in the South Social Work and Occupational 

Therapy Teams with effect from July 2008.  Learning from this will shape how we implement 

further agile working solutions across the Directorate.

In respect of Electronic Monitoring of Home Care (EHCM), the use of I.T. solutions is being 

considered to monitor and quality assure the delivery of home care services which will lead to 

increased customer satisfaction, receiving the right amount of care at the right time, improving 

productive time for home carers, reduction in administrative and finance time and improving 

safety for carers.

P
a
g
e
 5

1



42

Accommodation
Agile working sit closely with the new accommodation strategy for our Directorate.  

Introducing a flexible approach to working at home, mobile or  office working will determine 

the amount of accommodation space required.  This will result in initial savings, which need to 

be reinvested into supporting setting up home and mobile working solutions.

Some of our current buildings are unsuitable for future use, whether through age and 

associated repair and maintenance costs, DDA compliance, or simple under-use and 

inefficiency.  Key decisions will be made during 2008/09 to relocate staff into Corporate 

Customer Service Centres, Town Centre Accommodation and locality bases which will have 

both good customer access and are value for money.

Car parking remains an issue as the Council drives forward the green agenda. We  have to 

acknowledge staff who need cars for work purposes and accommodate this need in the most 

effective way.  For staff that do not require cars for work, there will need to be cultural change 

and a shift towards car sharing, as parking is not always a given with accommodation in town 

centre locations. Through the implementation of agile working, one intended outcome is that 

less accommodation and therefore parking will be required, as staff undertake their duties 

either completely from home or from home to customer, thus reducing costs to both staff and 

the Council.

Pay and Rewards
The Single Status Agreement (which includes Job Evaluation) was reached nationally in 1997 

between employers and relevant Trade Unions.  Under this agreement the Council has 

already harmonised working hours at 37 hours per week for all full time employees, giving an 

immediate increase in basic hourly rates and overtime payments to those employees paid on 

the former manual grades.  The Council has also improved annual leave arrangements for this 

group of employees to bring them into line with former staff APT&C grades.

A new pay structure has now been introduced and Job Evaluation for all non-school 

employees currently paid within the range Scale 1 to Scale 3 was implemented on 1st 

April 2006, this included all weekly paid non-school employees covered by the Green Book 

conditions.  All remaining employees covered by the Job Evaluation exercise were assimilated 

to the new salary structure from 1st April 2008.

Investing in our workforce will be critical during the implementation of job evaluation and 

steps are currently being taken to communicate changes and emphasis benefits to all staff 

during this time.  As an Investor in People organization, morale is key to an effective workforce, 

and throughout restructure, job evaluation and shifting the balance, great strides have and will 

continue to be made to keep our workforce morale high.

Workforce Information and Planning 
Accurate information on the skills needed by workers is important for planning the future 

workforce and service delivery.   This information is paramount when it will be used for 

integrated workforce planning across the statutory, private and voluntary sector labour market.   

All staff information is currently held on the HR Yourself IT System, and workforce data is 

extractable in relation to age, ethnicity, pay, recruitment and retention, sickness, learning and 

development, and disciplinary and grievance information.  

The introduction of the National Minimum Data Set Database will compliment the HR data 

and reveal a more informative picture of our workforce and help us to identify hot spot areas 

where concentrated initiatives need to be implemented.

To support the Shifting the Balance and JSNA, we intend to introduce during 2008/09 the 

Population Centric approach to Workforce Planning, a method currently being introduced 

into the PCT and NHS.  This style of workforce planning will help us to centre our service on 

our customer and their needs, and through utilising the population centric topolkit, help us to 

create new types of workers that will need to be introduced to enable our service to develop 

its workforce in response to current and future needs of our communities.  

“Put in place ‘No Cold Calling’ 
zones across the borough.”

P
a

g
e
 5

2



43

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Investors in People and Employee Opinion Survey
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services and the Council as a whole retained the Investors in 

People (IIP) status following an external review early in 2007.  Neighbourhoods and Adult 

Services were fully compliant against all 10 indicators, and have been held up as good practice 

across the Council.   An external IIP review is due to be undertaken in 2009.

The Council’s Employee Opinion Survey was conducted during the Summer of 2006.  Results 

indicated an improvement in Adult Social Services but more significantly in Neighbourhoods 

since the survey was conducted in 2004.  A summary of the key results are below for both 

services compared with the Council average.

A new Survey will be conducted in June 2008, and improvements will be fed into the 

Workforce Strategy Action Plan and all Team Plans as part of the EFQM process.

The Workforce Strategy action plan details initiatives that are needed to improve on 

the employee opinion scores and address staff concerns.  During 2007/08, the following 

improvements were implemented:-

•  Creation of a Weekly AsOne Internal Newsletter was established as we moved through the 

restructure to keep staff informed of the changes.  Since January 2008, this newsletter is now 

produced Monthly and provides an opportunity for staff to publicise their work – detailing 

how this fits into our outcomes and visions, along with articles of celebration, reward and 

recognition. 

•  A Neighbourhoods discussion forum on the intranet where staff can discuss projects that 

others may want to be involved in, pose questions to Senior Managers on any issue or just 

ask colleagues general questions about policy or procedure. This 

is currently being developed into an anonymous chat room to 

answer staff issues.

• Quality testing with staff on relevance, timing, presentation 

and style of information being distributed to staff is regularly 

undertaken across the Directorate.  Changes have been 

made to the Weekly Briefings and our mechanisms for 

producing info as a direct result of feedback.

• The Employee Suggestion Scheme has been promoted with a 

major commitment and dedicated team has been established 

to respond to suggestions.  The system is now working well 

and we regularly include suggestions submitted each month 

into AsOne to raise its profile.

• Leadership Sessions with our new M4, M3, M2 and M1 

Managers were re-established following completion of the 

restructure and are proving very successful.  There is an 

element of competition between Departments on who can 

produce the most informative, interactive and well received 

session, which all Managers then take back to their workplace 

and disseminate to teams.

1 I have the resources to do my job properly

2 I am happy at work*

3 My unit/service is always trying to improve the way we do things

4 I am encouraged to try out new ideas and approaches

41

64

56

49

2
0
0
6
 (

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
ci

al
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s)

 

%
 S

tr
o
n
gl

y 
ag

re
e
/ 
A

gr
e
e

59

72

77

71

2
0
0
6
 (

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s)

 

%
 S

tr
o
n
gl

y 
ag

re
e
/ 
A

gr
e
e

50

68

67

60

%
 J
o
in

t 
R

e
su

lt
s

52

65

68

61

2
0
0
6
 (

C
o
u
n
ci

l o
ve

ra
ll)

 

%
 S

tr
o
n
gl

y 
ag

re
e
/ 
A

gr
e
e

-2

+3

-1

-1

V
ar

ia
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 

o
ve

ra
ll 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



44

• STAR Awards continue to praise an 

Employee and Team each month, 

detailing in AsOne why they have 

won it.  Through feedback, we 

know this award is valued, and have 

streamlined the application to take 

into account more Directorate 

related outcomes rather than 

against the HEART Commitments.  

All submissions are automatically 

entered into the Council’s HEART Awards Scheme and has been proving successful, as we 

have won a large number of awards over the last 12 months.

•  The Director, both by letter, email or in person, along with comments made at Leadership 

Sessions, regularly praises individuals and teams for their commitment.  These messages are 

passed onto staff as part of our culture or valuing everyone’s contribution.

•  Team Plans have been created through the EFQM Excellence Model, and 2008 has seen the 

Directorate adopt a single style approach to creating team plans which will be published on 

the intranet.  More interactive objectives between teams have been identified, along with an 

assurance as part of EFQM that workforce issues are included to address future changes in 

service delivery.

•  All learning and development is monitored and managed by one team who ensure that our 

pre and post evaluation takes place.  All NAS Forms have been updated to identify links with 

Social Care Outcomes and Corporate Visions, along with objectives listed in team plans.

•  Service Standards and “Learning From Customers” has dveloped since 2007, with the 

Directorate now being one of the few Standard Bearers for Customer Excellence across 

the country.  Staff and customers continue to work together to raise the standards, and 

customer service quality is raised through promotional campaigns, e.g. posters on all 

corridors and stairwells in Crinoline and Howard Building, along with customer orientated 

posters on services provided in reception areas.

•  To ensure that all managers deliver an equitable management function across the 

Directorate, we created in 2007, a ‘Becoming a Better People Manager’ booklet.  We 

continue to update this living document, and hold training sessions that cover  HR, H&S, 

Workforce issues.  Managers refer to this booklet to ensure they comply with corporate 

guidance, or to see how certain issues are addressed.  This has resulted in the same level of 

service for staff, removing a large element of interpretation.

Emphasis on core areas will continue during 2008/09 and more initiatives will be included once 

the results of the June 2008 survey are produced:-

• Ensuring all staff receive a Performance and Development Review.

• Maximising access for all staff on Training and Development activities.

• Providing feedback on all staff suggestions and ideas.

• Conducting full staff consultation on organisational change.

• Responding to all employee feedback in a timely manner.

Sickness Levels
Sickness levels across the Council was recognised as a significant area of weakness in the 

Corporate Assessment and the Social Care Annual Performance Assessment.  A corporate 

performance clinic identified particularly high levels of absence in our Directorate because of 

the nature of the work undertaken and the profile of the workforce.  

We continue to set ourselves challenging targets to reduce the sickness levels along with 

strengthening procedures.  Sickness absence is regularly monitored at a senior level and the 

performance management framework is used to monitor further improvements.  

Our performance in 2007/08 was not at the level we would have hoped for and as a result 

we instigated Performance Clinics across all services.  Strategies used to improve performance 

include counselling and welfare facilities, rehabilitation back to work at the earliest opportunity, 

ongoing training and development for managers in the effects of sickness absence and,  

where appropriate, effective redeployment of staff on health grounds, or the use of 

disciplinary procedures.

Additional developments in managing absence in 2008/09 include pilot scheme utilising 

physiotherapy to reduce the incidences of musculo-skeletal absence as well as using 

Performance Clinics more extensively with managers throughout the Directorate resulted in 

over 250,000 staff accessing this service.

P
a

g
e
 5

4



45

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Diversity of the Workforce
A key feature of the modernising and improvement agenda for the Council is to understand 

and meet the needs of an increasingly diverse community.  It is therefore important that 

all employees have a good understanding of why equality and diversity is important and 

demonstrate their commitment to putting this into practice.  The Council’s Workforce 

Development Strategy commit the Council to ensuring adequate training for our employees 

on Equalities and Diversity. 

The Council’s equalities training requirements and the needs of individuals themselves 

will be dependent upon an employee’s position and role within the Council.  Our training 

programmes encompass equalities issues covering both service delivery and employment.  

Increasingly the requirements of the Corporate Performance Assessment (CPA) process 

places an emphasis of raising awareness of equality and diversity amongst our workforce and 

this is necessary to underpin progress through the Equality Standard for Local Government.  

Our trainers will offer training packages covering three target groups aimed at developing the 

awareness, skills and competencies of employees: generic equality and diversity awareness 

training aimed at all employees, equality and diversity training for front-line service delivery 

employees, and equality and diversity training for managers. 

We recognise the importance of having a workforce that reflects the community of 

Rotherham and will take positive actions at job and career fairs and in general recruitment 

advertising to encourage applications from under represented groups.  We will maximise the 

benefits of the internet to recruit from regional, national and potentially international labour 

markets, especially in areas of recruitment ‘hotspots’.   Also, with any future trainee schemes we 

will ensure positive actions where we have under representation in our workforce profile.

Recruitment and Retention
Demographic changes in Rotherham and increased expectations of service users mean that 

recruitment and retention of the workforce is a challenge. Workforce information and planning, 

building leadership and management capacity, providing appropriate learning and development 

opportunities with career pathways, traineeships and rewards collectively help our workforce 

to achieve their potential and remain employed in Neighbourhoods and Adult Services.  

Workforce development is about linking workforce needs to the future design of customer 

services and the interaction with the Directorate service planning.

P
a
g
e
 5

5



46

The Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate suite of key performance indicators for 2008/09 reflects the old and new Local Area Agreement (LAA) targets, the new national 

indicators which cover key national policy areas and some existing indicators that we have retained locally on priorities such as helping people to live at home. The Safer Rotherham 

Partnership also consider a range of community safety performance measures that we also contribute towards. Due to the amount of changes that have taken place for national reporting, we 

are not in a position to confirm all targets and baseline data. We are working closely with the Government departments and national benchmarking groups to produce accurate information. 

Section 4 – Our Plans

NI Definition Baseline 08/09 09/10 10/11 Lead

120
All-age all cause mortality rate 

(per 100,000 population)

821.7 Males (05/06) 764 Males 748 Males 732 Males

584.4 Females (05/06) 538 Females 530 Females 521 Females

135

Carers receiving needs assessment 

or review and a specific carer’s 

service, or advice and information

New measure 16 19 22

135

People supported to live 

independently through social 

services (All Ages)

New measure Under consideration

141
Percentage of vulnerable people 

achieving independent living
Awaiting Info 8078 82

Older People Helped to Live at Home 93.64 102

71.4 155
No.of Adults and Older People using 

Direct Payments

3942 5400
No. of people diagnosed with COPD 

proven by spirometry

PCT

Sam Newton

Sam Newton

Tim Gollins

Sam Newton

Kim Curry

PCT

PCT0 700
No. of people with COPD who have 

received rehabilitation

Sam Newton34.7 69.7Proportion of Clients receiving a Review

2006-2009 Stretch targets

Alive

P
a

g
e
 5

6



47

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

NI Definition Baseline 08/09 09/10 10/11 Lead

Serious acquisitive crime rate
20.48 offences per 1,000 

population (5188 offences)
3% 6% 10% overall reduction in 

three yrs

South Yorkshire Police 

(Rotherham) Crime Manager

17 Perceptions of anti-social behaviour 30% (LGUSS) 1% 3%
5% reduction on 

baseline figure
Steve Parry

Adult re-offending rates for those 

under probation supervision
New measure

TBC - Information still emerging on how to report on this. 

Targets will be set once baseline figure is agreed.
Graham Jones / Steve Parry

Assault with injury crime rate
11.97 offences per 1,000 

population (3031 offences)
2% 5%

8% reduction on 

baseline figure

South Yorkshire Police 

(Rotherham) Crime Manager

Drug users in effective treatment 1,274 3% 4% 5% Anne Charlesworth (PCT)

People killed or seriously injured in 

road traffic accidents

110

(07 Cal Yr)

106

(08 Cal Yr)

101

(09 Cal Yr)
Ken Wheat

93 (2005 calendar year reported 

06/07) 96 (2006 calendar year to 

be reported 2007/08)

First time entrants to the Youth 

Justice System aged 10 - 17
Being validated 3% 6% 10% Improvement Simon Perry

Net additional homes provided 468 (06/07)    (TBC) Further work being undertaken Karl Battersby

Number of affordable homes 

delivered (gross)
Awaiting info Further work being undertaken

Karl Battersby / 

Michelle Musgrave 

% non-decent council homes 64% (2007/08) Michelle Musgrave54% 43% 0%

16

18

20

40

47

111

154

155

158

Safe

P
a
g
e
 5

7



48

NI Definition Baseline 08/09 09/10 10/11 Lead

Percentage of residents reporting 

antisocial behaviour
x 5% reduction Michelle Musgrave

2006-2009 Stretch targets

Arson reduction 2262
Gordon Charlesworth 

(S. Yorks Fire)
2036

Nuisance motorcycles x Steve Parry5% reduction

Repeat Domestic Violence incidents 34.1 Steve Parry29.1

Sanction detection rate 7.5 Steve Parry35

% of people who believe people 

from different backgrounds get on 

well together in their local area

61% (General Survey 06/07)

 31% (QOL Survey 2005/06)
Zafar Saleem

Further work to be undertaken. Targets to be set against the baseline from 

the Place Based survey undertaken in 2008.
1

% of people who feel they can 

influence decisions in their locality

29% (General Survey 2006/07)

13% (QOL Survey 2005/06)

Tracy Holmes/

Jan Layland

Further work to be undertaken. Targets to be set against the baseline from 

the Place Based survey undertaken in 2008.
4

Environment for a thriving 

third sector
New measure Julie Slatter

Further work to be undertaken - Gov’t is looking for a statistically 

significant improvement of 5.1%
7

Proud

P
a

g
e
 5

8



49

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Our Performance Targets
Measure 2007/08

Actual

Top Q/

Band

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Target

20010/11

Target

Lead Director 

8075.04 75 76 90 Sam Newton 1

L
in

e

Outcomes Framework 1: Improving Health and Emotional Well-being

AS LPI PAF D40 Adult and Older clients receiving a review as a percentage of 

adult clients receiving a service (KT)

NI 119 Self-reported measure of people’s overall health and well being No baselines, targets to be set after first Place Survey undertaken this year Shona McFarlane2

1516 16 15.5 14.5 Sam Newton 4 NI 131 Delayed transfers of care from hospitals

tbctbc n/a 75% tbc Michelle Musgrave5 NI 184 Food establishments in the area which are broadly compliant with food 

hygeine law

694569 694 653 735 Sam Newton8 LPI C28 Number of intensive home care per 1,000 65+

Outcomes Framework 2: Improved Quality of Life

tbctbc n/a tbc tbc Shona McFarlane9 NI 125 Achieving indepedence for older people through rehabilitation / 

intermediate care

Being introduced as a survey in 2009/10 Shona McFarlaneNI 127 Self-reported experience of social care users10

Owned by CYP but a transitions measure so some accountability for NAS Shona McFarlaneNI 147 Care leavers in suitable accommodation11

tbctbc n/a tbc tbc Shona McFarlane12 NI 149 Adults in contact with secondary mental health services in settled 

accommodation

103 or 9069.72 101 102 104 or 101 Sam Newton13 NI 149 Adults in contact with secondary mental health services in settled 

accommodation

tbcc.1200 tbc tbc tbc Kirsty Everson14 LPI Average waiting time for an OT assessment

9385.3 91 91 95 Kirsty Everson15 BV056.03 (PAF D54) %Equipment <£1000 in 7 days (KT)

4.72.73 5.2 4.2 5.2 Sam Newton16 AS LPI PAF C29 Adults with physical disabilities helped to live at home

3.073.02 3.2 3.04 3.10 Shona McFarlane17 AS LPI PAF C30 Adults with learning disabilities helped to live at home

4.94.18 4.8 4.8 5 Kim Curry18 AS LPI PAF C31 Adults with mental health problems helped to live at home

P
a
g
e
 5

9



50

Measure 2007/08

Actual

Top Q/

Band

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Target

20010/11

Target

Lead Director 

L
in

e

20%22% 20.7% 20% 30% Sam Newton 19 NI 135 Carers receiving needs assessment of review and a specific carers 

service, or advice and information 

32232803 n/a 3083 3364 Kirsty Everson20 NI 136 People supported to live independently through social services (all ages)

80tbc n/a 78.5 82 Kirsty Everson21 NI 141  Number of vulnerable people achieving independent living

tbctbc n/a tbc tbc Kirsty Everson22 NI 142 Number of vulnerable people who are supported to maintain 

indpendent living

Owned by Probation but NAS need some accountability for rehousing offenders
Kirsty Everson23 NI 143 Offenders under probation supervision living in settled and suitable 

accommodation at the end of their order of licence 

tbctbc tbc tbc tbc Shona McFarlane24 NI 145 Adults with a learning disability in settled accommodation

259.11 11.4 20 30 Sam Newton25 AS LPI PAF C62 Services for Carers

5540 n/a 50 60 Sam Newton26 AS LPI 102 Number of protection plans in place

98.5%98.47% 98.59% 98.49% 98.51% 2010 Rotherham Ltd.29 BV 66a % Rent Collection

2.86%2.89% 4.12% 2.87% 2.85% 2010 Rotherham Ltd.30 BV 66b % of tenants in rent arrears

11.22%11.25% 17.06% 11.23% 11.21% 2010 Rotherham Ltd.31 BV 66c % of tenants with an NSP

0.25%0.27% 0% 0.26% 0.24% 2010 Rotherham Ltd.32 BV 66d % of tenants evicted

99.25%98.48% n/a 99% 99.3% 2010 Rotherham Ltd.33 NM 72 Urgent repairs completed in time

8.759.42 n/a 9 8.5 2010 Rotherham Ltd.34 NM 73 Non-urgent repairs completed in time

80%74% 85% 77% 83% Michelle Musgrave36 NI 160 Local Authority tenants’ satisfaction with landlord services

tbcn/a n/a 70% tbc Michelle Musgrave37 NI 182 Satisfaction of businesses with local authority regulation services

Indicator is being implemented by DCLG in 2009/10 following new Animal Health legislation Michelle Musgrave38 NI 190 Achievement in meeting standards for the control system for animal health

1737 29 18 16 Michelle Musgrave39 BV 212 Average Relet Time

P
a

g
e
 6

0



51

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Measure 2007/08

Actual

Top Q/

Band

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Target

20010/11

Target

Lead Director 

L
in

e

Owned by CEO but NAS accountability required through 

Area Assemblies

Michelle MusgraveNI 3 Civic participation in the local area

Outcomes Framework 3: Making a positive contribution

9185 88 90 92 Sam Newton49 BV195 (PAF D55) Acceptable waiting times for assessment (KT)

48

Outcomes Framework 4: Increased Choice and Control

7662.3 69.6 75 77 Sam Newton50 LPI within 2 weeks BV195 (PAF D55) Acceptable waiting times for assessment 

(KT) [ suggested by Scott]

9185.24 93 93 Sam Newton51 BV196 (PAF D56) Acceptable wait for care packages (KT)

95%86% 88% 90% 100% Sam Newton52 NI 132 Timeliness of social care assessment

95%85% 91% 90% 100% Sam Newton53 NI 133 Timeliness of social care packages

Based on this year’s Place Survey (goes out to random sample of residents and not just 

social care users) so targets set when baseline known

Kirsty Everson54 NI 139 People over 65 who say that they receive the information, assistance and 

support needed to exercise choice and control to live independently

170159 127 165 175 Kim Curry55 BV201 (PAF C51) Adults receiving direct payments (KT)

180159 122 165 200 Kim Curry56 NI 130 Social care clients receiving self directed support (DP/IBs)

8890.67 74 89 87 Sam Newton57 AS LPI (PAF C72) Number of admissions of supported residents aged 65+ to 

residential and nursing care

9890.88 98 96 99 Sam Newton58 AS LPI (PAF D39) % of people receiving a statement of their needs and how 

they will be met

1.41.93 1.4 1.49 1.35 Sam Newton59 AS LPI (PAF C73) Number of admissions of supported residents under 65 to 

residential and nursing care

86%86.02% 80% 86% 86% Sam Newton60 AS LPI PAF E 82 Assessments of adults and older people leading to a provision 

of service

88{874) 5 7 9 Kirsty Everson 61 AS LPI PAF E 82 Assessments of adults and older people leading to a provision 

of service

P
a
g
e
 6

1



52

Measure 2007/08

Actual

Top Q/

Band

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Target

20010/11

Target

Lead Director 

L
in

e

Outcomes Framework 5: Freedom from Discrimination 

0.40.46 0.7 0.45 0.35 Sam Newton

Mark Joynes

62 Ethnicity KT - Assessment / reviews

0.250.34 0.7 0.3 0.2 Sam Newton63 Ethnicity KT - Services

1.48%1.09% 1.46% 1.46% 1.5% Sam Newton64 Ethnicity KT - Services

1.04%1.06% 1.05% 1.05% 1.03% Sam Newton65 AS LPI PAF E 48 Ethnicity of older people receiving services following 

an assessment

13579 95 120 135 Michelle Musgrave ?? SEE John66 BV 64 Private sector homes demolished / made fit

Outcomes Framework 5: Freedom from Discrimination 

176122 n/a 145 213 EDS / Michelle Musgrave67 NI 155 Number of affordable homes delivered

176122 n/a 145 213 EDS / Michelle Musgrave69 NI 155 Number of affordable homes delivered

For introduction in 2009/10
Michelle Musgrave70 NI 12 Refused and deferred HMO license applications leading to immigration 

enforcement activity
For introduction in 2009/10

Michelle Musgrave70 NI 12 Refused and deferred HMO license applications leading to immigration 

enforcement activity

Shona McFarlane71 NI 146 Adults with learning disabilities in employment tbcn/a n/a tbc tbc

Shona McFarlane72 NI 150 Adults in contact with secondary mental health services in employment tbcn/a n/a tbc tbc

Michelle Musgrave73 NI 183 Impact of local authority regulatory services on the fair 

trading environment
tbcn/a n/a tbc tbc

Michelle Musgrave  

?? Fuel survey

74 NI 187 Tackling fuel poverty - people receiving income based benefits living in 

homes with a low energy efficiency rating
64New PI NA 62 66

Kirsty Everson80 NI 156 Number of households living in Temporary Accommodation 4153 NA 51 31

Outcomes Framework 7: Maintaining Personal Dignity and Respect

Sam Newton83 AS LPI (PAF D37) Availability of single rooms 100100 100 100 100

Sam Newton84 LPI Number of Safeguarding reports 302251 276 263 287

Outcomes Framework 6: Economic Well-being

P
a

g
e
 6

2



53

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Measure 2007/08

Actual

Top Q/

Band

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Target

20010/11

Target

Lead Director 

L
in

e

Outcomes Framework 5: Freedom from Discrimination 

298245 208 259 284 Sam Newton85 LPI % safeguarding cases completed

100%93% NA 100% 100% Sam Newton86 LPI % of NAS staff trained in safeguarding

Shona McFarlane87 NI 128 User reported measure of respect and dignity in their treatment For introduction in 2009/10

Owned by PCT but NAS accountability required
Shona McFarlane88 NI 129 End of life access to palliative care enabling people to choose to die 

at home

Outcomes Framework 8: Leadership

0.72.61 0.3 1 0.3 DMT89 Ethnicity KT - Staffing

2620.6 15.9 24.9 27 Kim Curry         90 AS LPI (PAF D75) Practice Learning

Outcomes Framework 9: Commissioning and Use of Resources

31.529 33 30 33 Sam Newton91 AS LPI (PAF B11) Intensive home care as a % of intensive home and residential care

60%39% n/a 53.66% 60% 2010 Rotherham Ltd.92 AM 211a % Expenditure on Planned Work

78%112% n/a 38% 100% Michelle Musgrave 93 HMR2 % Housing Market Renewal Spend

P
a
g
e
 6

3



5
4

Page 64



55

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Strategic Objective 1:

To improve access and standards of service where performance compares less well, with the best to contribute 

to an excellent rating by the year 2009.
Contributing to Increasing Choice and Control, Maintaining Personal Dignity and Respect and Improved Quality of Life and ROTHERHAM ACHIEVING & FAIRNESS

Strategic Objective Action Plan

Ref. Priority Action Lead Director Completion Date

1.1 Provide customer access 24/7 including web access for all services by December 2008. Kim Curry December 2008

1.2 Implement the principles of Assessment Direct across NAS Kim Curry March 2009

1.3 Complete the modernisation of the OT Service to improve performance and quality to meet other assessment standards Kim Curry March 2009

1.4 Increase participation, involvement and satisfaction with opportunities to be involved in decision making through Area 

Assemblies

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

1.5 Put in place multi-agency performance management framework for measuring the impact of the delivery of Neighbourhood 

Charters/Standards at Area Assembly level so that communities can hold service providers accountable

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

1.6 Assessments and provision of service reflects the demographic make up of the population Sam Newton March 2009

1.7 Achieving Level 5 of the Equalities Standard specifically testing whether services are culturally sensitive Kim Curry December 2008

1.8 Improve information, advice and support for people who fund their own services.   Kim Curry March 2009

1.9 Increase performance of the number of people who receive an annual review and statement of need to best in class  Sam Newton March 2009

“Developed a Commissioning Strategy for Rotherham Social Care following 
the completion of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.”

P
a
g
e
 6

5



56

Strategic Objective 2:

To further reduce the problem of crime and anti-social behaviour in a way which contributes to the reduction 

of the fear of crime by the year 2011
Contributing to Freedom from Discrimination and Harassment and ROTHERHAM SAFE

Ref. Priority Action

2.1 Work in partnership with the Safer Rotherham Partnership to reduce by 5% recorded domestic violence offences by March 

2009 through the delivery of the Domestic Violence Strategy. 

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

2.2 Reduce the incidence and impact of anti-social behaviour in our communities from 48% to 43% by March 09, through the 

delivery of the RESPECT action plan 

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

2.3 Implement a multi-agency approach to ‘Every Contact Counts’ and a marketing and feedback framework to increase 

community confidence and safeguarding of vulnerable and elderly people. 

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

2.4 Increase business compliance from 92.7% to 93.7% with regards to underage alcohol and tobacco sales Michelle Musgrave March 2009

2.5 Implement the findings of the review of our Safer Neighbourhood Teams Michelle Musgrave December 2008

2.6 Put in place improved customer access arrangements for reporting community safety Michelle Musgrave March 2009

2.7 Develop a new community cohesion and tension monitoring service for Rotherham to improve the way in which 

community cohesion and tension is co-ordinated and broadens its focus to address all Hate Crime  

Michelle Musgrave December 2008 

“Assessment Direct’ has gone live radically changing how we deal with the 
customer face to face to a ‘one stop shop’ approach where customers will be 
given an appointment at the first point of contact.  A single contact number is 

in place for people accessing the service by telephone.”

P
a

g
e
 6

6



57

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Strategic Objective 3:

To increase affordable housing and make better use of available housing assets in all sectors in a way which improves 

the range and quality of housing to create lifetime homes and sustainable neighbourhoods by the year 2011   
Contributing to Improved Quality of Life and Economic Wellbeing and ROTHERHAM PROUD & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Ref. Priority Action

3.1 Deliver and implement the 2008 – 11 Housing Strategy incorporating the Private Sector, Rural and Homelessness Strategies  Michelle Musgrave March 2011

Lead Director Completion Date

3.2 Deliver the 2008-11 27m Housing Market Renewal Investment Programme to regenerate communities.  Michelle Musgrave March 2011

3.3 Increase the number of affordable housing in Rotherham in 2008/9 by 138 through the delivery of a range of 

investment vehicles 

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

3.4 To reduce the number of private sector empty properties by 60 through the delivery of a range of investment vehicles and 

intervention work

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

3.5 Increasing access to social and affordable housing through the use of Choice Based Lettings across all tenures Kirsty Everson March 2009

3.6 Deliver 100% Decent Homes Target (Supportive Role)  Michelle Musgrave December 2010

3.7 Develop an accommodation strategy for older people to meet the demographic challenges for future years. Kirsty Everson March 2009

3.8 Reduce fuel poverty for the most vulnerable sections of our community through the implementation of the private sector 

investment plan and Affordable Warmth and Energy Plan, improving SAP Rating from 60 to 62 in the private sector 

Michelle Musgrave March 2009

3.9 Review the housing register to facilitate the implementation of the new allocation policy and to  improve people’s chances to 

access social housing

Kirsty Everson March 2009

3.10 Carry out an appraisal of the options for delivering the housing management and maintenance post 2010 Michelle Musgrave March 2009

3.11 Deliver the Strategic Landlord Excellence Plan  Michelle Musgrave September 2008

P
a
g
e
 6

7



58

Strategic Objective 4:

To modernise services so that they are designed in a way which maximises peoples independence by the year 2011.
Contributing to Improved Health and Wellbeing, Commissioning and Use of Resources and ROTHERHAM PROUD

Ref. Priority Action

4.1 Shift the balance from in house domiciliary care to the independent sector (35/65) to provide better value for money Shona McFarlane March 2009

Lead Director Completion Date

4.2 Transform Social Care to increase choice through implementing and increasing the use of self directed so that it becomes the 

default position for those eligible for services

Kim Curry March 2009

4.3 Implement the Joint Commissioning Strategy with the PCT Kim Curry March 2011

4.4 In conjunction with the PCT develop and progress a joint work programme   Kim Curry March 2009

4.5 Increase the number of high level home care packages so that people remain independent for longer from 13.9% to best in 

class performance of 28% by 2011.   

Sam Newton March 2011

4.6 Contribute to the delivery of the Obesity Strategy through better utilisation of our Community/Neighbourhood Centres for 

health initiatives

Kirsty Everson March 2009

4.7 Explore the concept of and establish the need for a fit for purpose ‘Independent Living Centre’ Kirsty Everson December 2008

4.8 Deliver 24 units of move on accommodation to reduce temporary accommodation use Michelle Musgrave March 2009

4.9 Modernise the Business Regulation service following Hampton review Michelle Musgrave March 2009

4.10 Implement the Commissioning Strategy   Kim Curry March 2011

4.11 Review of transport/taxi arrangements to encourage independence  Shona McFarlane March 2009

4.12 Reshape the provision of community/meals on wheels services Shona McFarlane March 2009

4.13 Review commissioning options for Day Care services Kim Curry March 2009

P
a

g
e
 6

8



59

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Strategic Objective 5:

To develop innovative services in a way which contributes to helping more people live at home by the year 2011.
Contributing to Increased Choice and Control and ROTHERHAM ALIVE

Ref. Priority Action

5.1 Invest in assistive technology and reconfigure resources for sustainable future options Kirsty Everson March 2009

Lead Director Completion Date

5.2 Modernise the Intermediate Care service in partnership with the PCT Shona McFarlane March 2009

5.3 Review  the provision of the Community Equipment Service in line with ‘Putting People First’ Kirsty Everson March 2009

5.4 Evaluate the impact of changing the current FACs criteria in conjunction with service users.  Kim Curry March 2009

5.5 Fundamentally review our approach to Extra Care in order to meet future demographic challenges Kirsty Everson March 2009

5.6 Redesign the support services to sheltered housing tenants and people in aged person accommodation to deliver a 

responsive, mobile, modernised and fit for the future service.

Kirsty Everson March 2009

5.7 Implement Electronic Social Care Records Kim Curry December 2008

5.8 Hold 4 distinct  ‘Visioning Events’ which each lead to innovative ideas that are low cost but provide significant improvements 

to our customers.    

Kim Curry December 2008

“Established a Carers Emergency Scheme which has had more than 50 carers 
expressing an interest in joining the scheme prior to a launch taking place.”

P
a
g
e
 6

9



60

Strategic Objective 6:

To improve services for carers in a way which increases the level of support, resources and employment 

opportunities given by the year 2011   
Contributing to Economic Wellbeing and ROTHERHAM ACHIEVING

Ref. Priority Action

6.1 Hold a ‘Visioning’ event with all stakeholders to identify key improvements to services for carers Kim Curry July 2008

Lead Director

6.2 Develop a Carers Strategy which will significantly increase support available to Carers through:  

o Increasing the number and quality of assessments and reviews for Carers 

o Improving the take up and awareness of existing advice and support available including electronic marketing:  

o Supporting for carers who wish to work to gain employment. : 

o Commissioning different support options for Carers

o Increasing the take-up of the Carers Emergency Scheme 

Kim Curry September 2008

Completion Date

P
a

g
e
 7

0



61

Neighbourhoods & Adult Services Service Plan 2008/11

Strategic Objective 7:

To strengthen our approach to safeguarding adults in a way which contributes to reducing cases of abuse and 

increases the perception of our services delivering personal dignity and respect by 2011
Contributing to Personal Dignity and Respect and ROTHERHAM SAFE

Ref. Priority Action

7.1 Status and profile of the Safeguarding Adults Committee to be raised Sam Newton July 2008

Lead Director Completion Date

7.2 Agree a policy and arrangements with partners to ensure all their staff receive adult safeguarding training Kim Curry August 2008

7.3 All NAS staff receive adult safeguarding training to raise the level of vigilance in relation to adult protection Kim Curry March 2009

7.4 Integrate safeguarding into the Safer Rotherham Partnership agenda  Kim Curry July 2008

7.5 Develop a performance management framework for safeguarding adults to drive up performance in the following indicators

o Availability of single rooms – minimum target of 100% (our score last two years) 

o Number of referrals – minimum target of 20% increase from last year e.g. 241 (20% is national average), 

o Number of completed cases as a % of referrals – minimum target of 71% (national average), 

o Number staff trained in safeguarding and expenditure – minimum target of 71% (national average), 

o  % of independent sector staff funded/commissioned by the Council that have been trained in safeguarding – minimum 

target of 31% (national average). 

Kim Curry June 2008

7.6 Develop a safeguarding impact and needs assessment  Sam Newton December 2008

7.7 Develop and expand safeguarding measures to protect vulnerable people from ‘rogue traders’ Michelle Musgrave March 2009

7.8 Review the information produced for customers and staff for reporting and dealing with concerns  Kim Curry September 2008

7.9 Strengthen safeguarding management systems to improve accessibility, responsiveness, quality and effectiveness of learning 

and improving the service as a result.    

Sam Newton September 2008

7.10 Implement a Quality Assurance framework for Residential Homes which incorporate and embed the Dignity and Care 

framework

Kim Curry September 2008

P
a
g
e
 7

1



Page 72



Page 73



Ref. 19827A / 08  Produced by RBT Design and Print – Tel 01709 823550  Supporting the Forest Stewardship Council by using FSC-certified paper

This document can be made available in your language and in alternative formats such as Braille, 

large print, electronic and audio-tape versions.

Contact us at:

minicom 01709 823 536

www.rotherham.gov.uk

Veuillez nous contacter si vous désirez ce document dans une autre langue et/ou dans d’autres formats.

P
a

g
e
 7

4



 
 
 

1.  Meeting: Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel 

2.  Date: 11th September 2008 

3.  Title: Chesterhill Intensive Neighbourhood Management 
Pilot progress and impact report 

4.  Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 
 
 
 
 

5.  Summary 
 
Chesterhill Avenue was identified in 2007 as the most vulnerable community 
in Rotherham and in need of intensive neighbourhood management 
arrangements. A pre-defined neighbourhood, taking into account the streets 
and community surrounding Chesterhill Ave was established covering around 
650 households. A twelve month period of intensive management began in 
September 2007. This report outlines the progress and impact made by the 
Intensive Neighbourhood Management Pilot and next steps. 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

• Members note the progress and impact of the pilot along with 
the planned exit strategy and evaluation of the pilot due in the 
autumn of 2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 13Page 75



 
7.  Proposals and Details 
7.1  Background 
 
In Rotherham’s first Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment in March 2007, 
the Safer Rotherham Partnership employed the Vulnerable Localities Index 
(VLI) as a method of prioritising neighbourhoods. At five times the average for 
the borough, Chesterhill Avenue in Thrybergh was identified as the most 
vulnerable community in Rotherham and in need of immediate action.  
  
As a direct response a high level partnership strategic group was established 
in summer 2007 to steer the development of the intensive neighbourhood 
management pilot and identify a pre-defined pilot boundary (650 households 
in total). By September 2007, a Neighbourhood Initiatives Manager was 
appointed through mainstream RMBC funding and the twelve month intensive 
neighbourhood management pilot began. The pilot has worked with the 
community in collaboration with local service providers and local ward 
members to make their neighbourhood a better place to live. The pilot has 
focused on: 
 

• Stabilising crime and ensuring community safety. 
• Increasing community involvement, trust and communication. 

 
7.1.1 Housing Market Renewal  
 
In September 2007 Housing Market Renewal activity began in the area with 
Chesterhill Avenue earmarked for redevelopment. A total of 143 
unsustainable properties are due to be demolished. To date around 70% of all 
tenants have been re-housed and dispersed across the borough. Various 
mechanisms have been put in place to ensure individuals and families at risk 
receive the support they require and lettings are managed ‘sensitively’ taking 
into account the needs of the individual and the concerns of local partners. 
Demolition has already begun and will continue steadily over the coming 
months. 
 
7.2 The 12 month Plan 
 
The pilot has been intensive and had a clear and concise 12 month delivery 
plan from the outset which included: 

 
• Creating a clear vision for the pilot which partners and the local 

community could identify with – ‘Neighbourhood Pride’. 
• Assessing community need and priorities to focus on key priorities. 
• Establishing governance structures to enable partner agencies to 

‘work together’ and deliver services more effectively. 
• Delivering ‘quick win’ interventions to stabilise issues including 

mainstream service improvements. 
• Establishing mechanisms for the local community to get involved 

and empowering a group of individuals to form a fully constituted 

Page 76



residents group to enable them to work with partner agencies to 
make their neighbourhood a better place to live. 

• Bending and re-prioritising mainstream service delivery. 
• Challenging and making changes to the ‘way things are done’ which 

have included changes in procedures and behavioural change 
amongst officers. 

 
7.3  Impact  
 
Intensive neighbourhood management delivered over a 12 month period 
shows that crime & anti-social behaviour can be reduced in an area and levels 
of community involvement, engagement and trust can be increased. Longer 
term issues around health and worklessness are much harder to impact on in 
such a short period of time but can be identified and long term delivery plans 
implemented with partners to address. 
 

Crime & Anti-social behaviour 
 

• Reduction in overall crime by 50% (across the pilot area) 
• Pilot area moved from the highest Vulnerable Locality in 2007 to 5th 

highest  in 2008 
• 70% reduction in anti-social behaviour (across the pilot area) 
• Significant increase in referrals to support agencies 

(parenting/mediation) 
• Fire Calls and arson have reduced with officers reporting enhanced 

trust 
 

Community Involvement, trust and communication 
 
Resident comment prior to the pilot in September 2007: 
 
“We never knew who we could talk to or contact if we had a problem…We 
didn’t know the people or individuals who were working in our 
neighbourhood….we never felt we had any say in what was happening to our 
neighbourhood….the people who lived here and the people who work here 
just didn’t seem to care. Living here was horrendous.”  
 
Resident comment after 10 months delivery of the pilot in July 2008: 
 
“The pilot has made our neighbourhood more open…we’re keyed up now 
about who’s who…we know we have a voice and we can make changes and 
we have…we have the full support of the council and the police and our local 
Councillors and we are being listened to …..There’s a real buzz around the 
place and things are definitely changing for the better.”  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



7.4 What’s worked?  
 
A mid-term review was undertaken with partners and residents to establish 
the contributing factors to the success of the pilot.  The key factors are 
outlined below: 
 

• Piloting the delivery of two dedicated 2010 impact officers offering a 
two-tier approach to housing support and tenant management 
separating enforcement and housing support issues has led to a 
significant rise in the number of referrals to supporting agencies. 
This approach has shown that anti-social behaviour issues can be 
pro-actively addressed without the need for enforcement. It has also 
highlighted the high number of vulnerable and high risk tenants 
concentrated in one single neighbourhood and their need for 
continued and sometimes intensive support. 

• The strategic support from partners and awarding the area priority 
status across the borough has provided leverage to bend 
mainstream provision. 

• High visibility, presence, communication and the ability to ‘get 
things done’ has vastly improved contact, trust and involvement 
between the council and it’s partners and the local community. 

• The community leadership and continued drive, commitment and 
proactive support from local Ward Members has been invaluable to 
making impact and making links between partners and the local 
community. 

• The linking in and linking things together particularly around the 
HMR agenda.  

• The partnership approach to managing lettings more sensitively and 
effectively through the creation of ‘trigger lists’ prompting the need 
for partnership risk assessments. Also the re-aligning of the Local 
Lettings Policy to vulnerable localities and the management of void 
properties in vulnerable localities. 

• Being co-located in a young people’s centre has contributed to the 
pro-active work with young people and local schools. 

• Pro-active multi-agency working has resulted in accountability and 
ownership of issues which has resulted in faster responses to 
issues.  

• Creation of a multi-agency steering group to deliver more joined up 
working and the formation of a residents group who are actively 
involved in plans for the area. 

• Re-prioritisation of decent homes works bringing significant 
investment into the pilot area which meets resident priorities. 

 
 
7.5 The Key Challenges 
 
The pilot has highlighted a number of key challenges with the way services 
are delivered at a neighbourhood level: 
 

Page 78



• The pilot has highlighted the ‘normal’ lack of co-ordination and 
collaboration between residents and service providers. In addition 
the lack of co-ordination between officers working ‘on the ground’. 

• The two-tier approach to housing management and tenant support 
has highlighted the challenges concentrated in vulnerable 
neighbourhoods; both from a support and enforcement perspective 
and the need for intensive impact and delivery in vulnerable 
neighbourhoods. 

• How the approach can ‘fit’ into existing mainstream area based 
structures once the pilot is complete. 

• The importance of keeping residents and partner agencies informed 
and engaged throughout the regeneration of the area and not losing 
momentum. Residents want to be involved and kept up to date on 
progress and are eager to see change. 

• Challenging the ‘can’t do’ attitude amongst officers. 
 
7.6 Next Steps 
 
An Exit Strategy will be in place by Autumn 2008 which contains: 
• Long Term Delivery Plan for the area which will be mainstreamed in to 

the Wentworth South Area Plan and focuses on 4 key priorities around 
Environmental improvements; Regeneration; Worklessness & Enterprise; 
Young People. 

• Sustainability Plan which will clearly identify roles and responsibilities of 
all partners in continuing to deliver and embed the structures created 
over the past 12 months. 

• Signs of Change report which will highlight perceptual/attitudinal and 
actual change across the pilot in 12 months. 

• Evaluation & Learning which will include a model for delivering intensive 
neighbourhood management, potential options for roll out and key 
learning. 

 
8.  Finance 
The pilot was funded by Neighbourhoods & Adult Services mainstream 
budget to support the post of Neighbourhood Initiatives Manager for a 12 
month period. A small budget of around £15,000 was made available to 
support quick win interventions including communication. A total of £60,000 of 
Housing Market Renewal funding has also been invested from the Rotherham 
East ADF budget to support the additional resource provided by the 2010 
estate officers and 2010 housing support officer. 
 
All other key stakeholders report no additional cost in supporting the pilot. 
Resources from all the key stakeholders have been utilised effectively to 
target and impact where there is a clear and identified need. The Pilot clearly 
provides a cost effective intensive approach to stabilising and re-connecting 
vulnerable neighbourhoods. The benefit of a dedicated officer to lead and co-
ordinate activity in a locality has resulted in improved and tailored service 
delivery.  The approach is different from other programmes in that it is about 

Page 79



bending mainstream services and re-engineering the way services are 
delivered rather than delivering large scale projects or putting in significant 
new money.  
 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 
The structures for ‘joined up’ working now exist within the pilot area and 
resident’s capacity for involvement and empowerment have grown.  The exit 
strategy will need to recognise and support the need for these structures to 
continue to grow and the model embedded, fully supported and monitored 
through more of a ‘lighter touch’ approach within existing mainstream 
structures. 
 
The success of the pilot demonstrates that services at neighbourhood level 
can be delivered more cost effectively and efficiently. The evaluation due in 
the Autumn of 2008 will identify options for rolling out the approach at which 
stage consideration will need to be given on the most cost effective way of 
delivering intensive neighbourhood management in Rotherham to vulnerable 
neighbourhoods and indeed how the learning can be shared. 
 
10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
The pilot contributes to the following Outcome Framework objectives: 
 
Improved Health  - by promoting and facilitating the health and emotional well-
being of those living in the pilot area. 
 
Making a Positive Contribution – by encouraging and enabling residents to 
participate fully in their community and by valuing their contribution equally 
with other people. 
 
Economic Well-being – by ensuring that people are not disadvantaged 
financially and have access to economic opportunity and appropriate resource 
to achieve this. 
 
The pilot also delivers on all the Community Strategy themes particularly the 
SAFE theme and PROUD theme. Tackling anti-social behaviour is a priority of 
the Safer Rotherham Partnership. 
 
Implementing intensive management arrangements was a key 
recommendation of the report of Our Future Group 3 and is linked to the 
Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy.  
. 

The pilot has an important part to play in the delivery of LAA outcomes 
including building respect in communities and empowering local people to 
have a greater choice and influence over decision-making 
 
 
 
Contact Name:   Catherine Dale, Neighbourhood Initiatives Manager   

       Tel: 07825 863853 
       Email: catherine.dale@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 80



NEIGHBOURHOODS - 30/06/08 19C 
 

 

NEIGHBOURHOODS 
30th June, 2008 

 
Present:- Councillor Akhtar (in the Chair); Councillors Sims and Kaye (Policy 
Advisors). 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors McNeely and P. A. Russell.  
 
30. OBJECTION TO THE REMOVAL OF THE CARETAKER FROM THE 

LANES, EAST DENE  
 

 Resolved:-  That the report be deferred until the 14th July, 2008, to enable 
the officer concerned to be in attendance to present the report. 
 

31. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2007/08  
 

 The Service Accountant (Neighbourhoods) submitted a report showing 
that the HRA’s financial outturn position for 2007/08 was a deficit of 
£2.111M.  The report summarised the key income and expenditure 
variances from the budget.  The key variance was the use of £1M to fund 
the upgrade of the ROCC IT system from the HRA on an Invest to Save 
basis which was not included in the original budget but approved during 
the course of the year 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with issues raised and clarified 
regarding:- 
 
− Value of Council stock for accounting purposes 
− Responsive repairs and planned maintenance outturns compared to 

2006/07 position 
− Impact of Decent Homes works on the need for planned 

maintenance 
− Decent Homes and Value for Money 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the report be noted. 
 
(2)  That budget monitoring reports be submitted on a monthly basis in 
2008/09. 
 

32. HOUSING INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2008/09 - REVISED 
PROGRAMME  
 

 The Service Accountant (Neighbourhoods) submitted details of the 
proposed revisions to the Housing Investment Programme (HIP) for 
2008/09 and the relevant supporting resources. 
 
The 2008/09 HIP of £82457M was approved on 31st March, 2008 (Minute 
No. 222 refers) to match the estimated available resources.  It was 
proposed to reduce the HIP as resources were lower than originally 
anticipated due to:- 

Agenda Item 14Page 81



20C  NEIGHBOURHOODS - 30/06/08 
  
 

 
− 2007/08 Decent Homes overspend 
− Reduced allocation of Regional Housing Board funding 
− Reduction in forecasted Capital Receipts 
 
The proposed revised Programme for RMBC-managed schemes 
maximised the resources available and reduced the pressures in other 
areas where grant funding was not available. 
 
Resolved:-  That the revised 2008/09 Housing Investment Programme of 
£79011M be approved. 
 

33. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 Resolved:-  That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in those paragraphs indicated below of 
Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

34. INTRODUCTORY TENANT'S PANEL REVIEW  
 

 It was noted that an Appeals Panel had been held on 18th June, 2008, 
comprising Councillors Goulty (in the Chair), Falvey and Havenhand, to 
review a decision to terminate an Introductory Tenancy. 
 
The Panel had not confirmed the decision made on 3rd June, 2008, given 
the substantial improvement in the condition of the front and rear gardens. 
 
Resolved:-  That the Panel's decision be noted. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act - information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) 
 

35. PREFERRED PARTNER FOR THE ADAPTATIONS SERVICE  
 

 Further to Minute No. 219(3) of 31st March, 2008, the Director of 
Independent Living reported on the outcome of the tendering process for 
the remaining parts of the Adaptations Service. 
 
Out of the 40 companies who had expressed an interest and requested 
packs, there had been a low submission of tenders.  The final decision for 
the main contract was decided between 2 companies with 2 specialist 
aspects of the contract already awarded.  The tender panel had 
recommended that 2010 Rotherham Ltd. be awarded the contract subject 
to confirmation of some final details.   
 
The terms of the new contract allowed a break period.  It was proposed 
that 6 monthly performance reports be used to determine how the new 
contractual framework was being managed. 

Page 82



NEIGHBOURHOODS - 30/06/08 21C 
 

 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the remaining aspects of the tender be awarded by 
way of a contract to 2010 Rotherham Ltd. 
 
(2)  That a report be submitted in 6 months on the performance of 2010 
Rotherham Ltd. under the new contract, including an analysis of savings 
made as a result of the tender process and performance improvements 
anticipated by the new contractual terms. 
 
(3)  That “mystery shopper” be included as part of the Customers Forum. 
 
(4)  That contact be made with those companies who had expressed an 
interest to ascertain why they had not submitted a bid. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act – contains contractual and financial 
information) 
 

36. PETITION - DOROTHY TAYLOR  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 14 of 19th May, 2008, the Older Peoples 
Housing Services Manager reported on the actions that had taken place 
since receipt of the petition. 
 
There had been no further complaints from the service users about the 
level of service being provided.  A letter had been sent to the lead 
petitioner who had also been visited by the Independent Support Manager 
to explain that the role of a Relief Warden was to cover in a range of 
areas across the Borough as and when required.  Although they may 
cover a scheme for a lengthy period, it did not mean that they became a 
permanent fixture to that scheme. 
 
The current Warden Service/Independent Support Service was under 
review and the roles of the ISC were being looked at in terms of it 
becoming more flexible which may include staff working in a more mobile 
way. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report and action taken be noted. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act - information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) 
 

37. PUBLIC APPLICATION EXCEEDING DELEGATED POWERS WARD 
10  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 27 of 16th June, 2008, the Director of 
Independent Living submitted a further report on the circumstances 
surrounding application No. 22132 including clarification from Legal 
Services. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That application No. 22132 be approved for the provision 

Page 83



22C  NEIGHBOURHOODS - 30/06/08 
  
 

of a modular unit. 
 
(2)  That, should there be an urgent need for the adjacent property, 
consideration be given to the occupant being offered a smaller property. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act - information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) 
 

38. PUBLIC SECTOR APPLICATION EXCEEDING DELEGATED POWERS  
WARD 12  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 16 of 16th June, 2008, the Director of 
Independent Living submitted application No. 21372 with the original 2 
options considered. 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolved:-  That applicant No. 21372 be approved, Option A, in the sum 
of £36,734.47 provided that the works are carried out:- 
 
(a)  substantially in accordance with plans and specifications submitted by 
the Adaptations Team Leader; 
 
(b)  within a period of 12 months of the application being approved. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act – information likely to reveal the 
identity of applicants) 
 

 

Page 84



1C CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 
 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS 
Monday, 28th July, 2008 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Akhtar (in the Chair); Councillors Sims, Kaye and McNeely 
(Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel). 
 
Councillor Cutts was in attendance for Minute Nos. 39-47. 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor P. A. Russell.  
 
39. OBJECTION TO REMOVAL OF CARETAKER AT THE LANES  

 
 In accordance with Minute No. 212 of 17th March, 2008, the Safer Estate 

Manager, 2010 Rotherham Ltd., reported on the actions taken since 
receipt of the petition. 
 
A meeting had been held on 30th April with the main petitioner with an 
estate action week the week commencing 19th May.  32 residents  had 
been contacted on 22nd May with the majority saying that the estate was 
kept clean and tidy and free from litter.  This was due to the good work by 
the caretaker (Estate Officer). 
 
There was some confusion regarding the petition with some not being 
able to remember signing it and thought that it was to keep the 
Independent Living Champion on site who was the resident who 
conducted the petition. 
 
The Estate Officer will conduct a daily estate inspection and would clear 
any glass, debris or litter.  Any reports regarding flytipping will be dealt 
with by the Estate Service and Streetpride. 
 
A follow up letter had been sent to residents including useful contact 
numbers.  Posters were also on display regarding reporting issues 
involving anti-social behaviour including numbers for Crimestoppers. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the action taken be noted. 
 
(2)  That the situation be monitored for 6 months. 
 

40. GARAGE SITE REVIEW AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME  
 

 The Director of Housing and Neighbourhood Services submitted a 
position statement with regard to the outcomes of the Garage Site Review 
to date detailing the current position relating to the Garage Site 
Investment Programme and work being undertaken by 2010 Rotherham 
Ltd. 
 
A database of garage sites and garage plot sites compiled by the 
Neighbourhood Investment Team had identified 451 Council-owned 

Page 85



CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 2C 
 

garage sites spread throughout the Borough.  They had been assessed 
for site sustainability using a traffic light method i.e. red (recommend for 
decommissioning), amber (further consideration required following 
completion of HMR masterplanning and consultation) and green 
(sustainable and to be retained as existing use). 
 
The analysis of sites now undertaken had recommended that 59% of sites 
be retained and improved, 26% of the remaining sites to be considered 
further following masterplanning and consultation and 15% to be 
decommissioned.  Further progress had been made in identifying sites 
potentially suitable for disposal subject to further consultation with 
Members and Neighbourhood Teams. 
 
A final report on the findings of the review and consultation would be 
submitted to the Cabinet Member in October. 
 
Councillor McNeely thanked Paul Walsh, Programme Manager, 
Neighbourhood Investment, for his presentation to the recent Sustainable 
Communities Scrutiny Panel and commented that he had provided all 
Members with the information requested and copies of the respective part 
of the report for their Ward. 
 
Discussion ensued on the rent freeze which had been ongoing whilst the 
sites had been improved.  The Investment Programme was well advanced 
and discussions would now need to commence with regard to any 
increase in rent. 
 
Consideration was also being given to the introduction of quality control of 
the work carried out so far within the garage site investment programme 
to include customer feedback from garage tenants as to workmanship and 
site management. 
 
It was noted that the next round of information to Members was to be 
released later that week. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted. 
 

41. TENANCY AGREEMENT REVISION  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 6(2)  of 19th May, 2008, the Director of 
Independent Living reported that meetings had been held with and 
Advisor, a Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel representative, 2010 
Rotherham Ltd. and RotherFed to consider the wording of the proposed 
revisions to the Tenancy Agreement. 
 
The workshop had sought to ensure that the draft Agreement successfully 
incorporated a number of points highlighted following discussions with 
2010.  The main area that has not be included in the draft to date, related 
to the charging arrangements for Rothercare and sheltered housing.  That 
has been left out at present due to the ongoing work reviewing the 

Page 86



3C CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 
 

 

Council’s current policies in this area.  It was envisaged that, before the 
consultation period came to an end, the Council would be in a position to 
amend the draft Agreement to reflect any new arrangements in relation to 
these services. 
 
Discussion ensued on the draft Agreement with input from Cllrs McNeely 
and Sims who had formed part of the workshop.  A number of issues were 
highlighted which the Director would seek clarification from Legal 
Services. 
 
Resolved:-  That the draft Tenancy Agreement be approved to go forward 
as part of the statutory consultation and the revised timeline and project 
work. 
 

42. DRAFT FAIR ACCESS HOUSING DESIGN PROTOCOL  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 165 of 21st January, 2008, the Director of 
Housing and Neighbourhood Services submitted the draft Fair Access 
Housing Design Protocol for consideration incorporating an agreed 
approach to delivering standard housing which was flexible in design to 
meet the needs of all communities in Rotherham. 
 
It was anticipated that the Protocol would be used in the planning process 
and should be used as reference document to demonstrate how housing 
developers addressed the Fair Access requirements in the Design and 
Access Statement element of a planning application. 
 
Discussions were ongoing with Planning officers to determine the best 
means of giving the Protocol planning weight.  It was anticipated that the 
Council’s Interim Planning Statement on ‘Sustainable Development’ would 
site the Protocol as a key document during the design and planning 
process.  However, in the short term it would continue to be a voluntary 
planning policy for the private sector. 
 
The new Protocol would be taken to the Registered Social Landlord 
Partnership for adoption and would be incorporated into the Affordable 
Housing Development Programme 2008-11. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the Fair Access Design Protocol be approved. 
 
(2)  That a progress report be submitted in 12 months’ time. 
 
(3)  That the report be referred to the Cabinet Member for Regeneration 
and Development Services. 
 

43. SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL NOMINATIONS  
 

 The Cabinet Member noted the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny 
Panel’s nominations for representation on outside bodies/working groups. 
 

Page 87



CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 4C 
 

44. 2010 - BUSINESS PLAN  
 

 The Interim Chief Executive, 2010 Rotherham Ltd., submitted a 1 year 
business plan which had been agreed by the 2010 Board on 5th June, 
2008. 
 
The draft plan had taken into account comments made by tenants and 
had been circulated to key stakeholders. 
 
The plan contained prescribed budget and performance target information 
in accordance with Council requirements.   
 
Colin Earl drew particular attention to the following Key Performance 
Indicators:- 
 
o BV72 (urgent repairs completed in time) – There had still been very 

good performance but had suffered due to the impact of the June 
floods 

 
o BV211a (% of total repairs expenditure spent on emergency and 

urgent repairs) – Just outside of the target.  Plans were in place to 
ensure last year’s performance was exceeded and in fact a higher 
target of 54% had been set.  Strategies had been put into place to 
manage resources which had come in part way through 2007/08.  It 
was the intention to increase the amount of pre-inspection work to 
reduce the number of emergency repairs.  A number of operatives 
had been put into the RBT Connect Centre so they could talk direct 
to tenants and make sure jobs were allocated to the right category 

 
o BV212 (average relet time from termination to start (days) – This had 

deteriorated since the previous year and was cause for some 
concern.  A workshop with the 2010 Performance Committee was to 
be held the following day.  Progress on average relet times would be 
monitored very closely over the next few months 

 
The Cabinet Member indicated that at this point he would not agree to 
proceeding with the MOT scheme for planned repairs and that further 
discussions were needed with the Director of Housing and 
Neighbourhood Services regarding the scheme and its value for money. 
 
The Cabinet Member asked that the action plan be amended to include 
an action regarding delivery against the Audit Commission 
recommendations. 
 
Resolved:-  That the 2010 business plan for 2008-09 be approved subject 
to the above. 
 

45. 2010 - DECENT HOMES AFFORDABILITY  
 

 The Interim Chief Executive, 2010 Rotherham ltd. submitted an update on 

Page 88



5C CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 
 

 

the affordability of the Decent Homes investment programme in 
Rotherham taking into account the following changes:- 
 
a. An increase in the costs to be paid from the Decent Homes budget 

such as asbestos surveys and loft insulation costs; 
 
b. An estimated reduction in the amount of works to be carried out 

during 2008/09 due to an acceleration of the programme in 2007/08 
and 100% actual survey data being available for analysis; 

 
c. An increase in the amount of carry over costs relating to year 

2007/08 contracts to be pad from 2008/09 budget and 
 
d. Closure of the final accounts for 2006/07 and identification of 

previous underpayments to contractors now due to be paid from 
2008/09 budget. 

 
As at 1st April, 2008, 2010 had managed a housing stock of 21,163 units.  
The Delivery Plan originally anticipated a reduction in stock numbers to 
18,000 by the end of 2010/11 as a result of “Right to Buy” sales and 
demolitions, however, the number of sales had slowed significantly.  200 
Council properties had been sold during 2006/07 and was forecast to 
reduce by 20% every year.  The number of demolitions had reduced from 
an average of 200 per year to 130.  The estimated number of properties 
to be managed by 2010 in 2010/11 was approximately 20,000, 2,000 
more than in the Delivery Plan. 
 
The report set out the estimated cost of Decent Homes, the funds 
required from the Government, Council funding and the actual resources 
available for investment.  Other issues to be taken into account included 
non-traditional properties, sheltered schemes and environmental 
improvements. 
 
No refusals had been taken into account when calculating the investment 
requirements for the homes managed by 2010 from April, 2008 to March, 
2011.  Currently the industry average for refusals was 9-10%.  Table 3 of 
the report set out an affordability analysis for a refusal rate of 5%. 
 
Feedback from tenants, appeals and refusals whilst delivery the 
Programme, showed that tenants would prefer to have an option of 
including showers over baths.  This would be consistent with the Council’s 
Investment Plan aspirations.  To include showers over baths to all 
properties being refurbished between 2008-11 would cost £3.37M and 
based on the current affordability model calculations.   
 
The 2010 Board requests that the Cabinet Member of Neighbourhood 
keeps under review the possibility of providing showers over baths and if 
the opportunity arose to investigate ways of providing this option to 
tenants either as part of the Decent Homes programme or through any 
other HIP funding. 

Page 89



CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 6C 
 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the current affordability position of the decent homes 
programme be noted.. 
 
(2)  The 2010 Board’s comments about the possible provision of showers 
over baths be noted. 
 

46. 2010 - WINDOWS PROCUREMENT  
 

 The Interim Chief Executive, 2010 Rotherham Ltd., reported on action 
required to address the identified gap in supply for windows and doors to 
Decent Homes.  
 
Taking into consideration current stock data analysis results in regard to 
windows and doors replacement works, 2010 was likely to reach and 
exceed the OJEU tendered sum of £30,000,000.  The advice from Legal 
Services was that any variance in excess of 5% or the original value 
would require a re-tendering exercise. 
 
There was a requirement for additional capacity to be procured to meet 
the needs of Decent Homes Security packages on a supply and fit basis 
for windows and doors.  The estimated value of the works to be tendered 
was £10,000,000 to be spent between 2009 and 2011. 
 
Resolved:-  That a new OJEU notice be issued to procure additional 
capacity to meet the needs of Decent Homes security packages on a 
supply and fit based for windows and doors. 
 

47. 2010 - ALLOCATION OF WORKS  
 

 The Interim Chief Executive, 2010 Rotherham Ltd., submitted proposals 
to change the values of the 2008/09 contracts allocated to the 
refurbishment contractors that were currently employed by the Council to 
carry out Decent Homes works to its homes. 
 
Minute No. 28 of 16th June, 2008, approved a reduction in the 2008/09 
Decent Homes programme by an amount equivalent to the 2007/08 
overspend in order to use ALMO borrowing approval to repay the 
prudential borrowing utilised this year. 
 
The new contract values had been calculated taking into account a 
reduction of £1,881,000 in the Decent Homes budget for 2008/09. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the proposed contract reductions identified in the 
report be approved. 
 
(2)  That the extra costs to be paid from the contractors’ budget which 
would reduce the allocation for refurbishment works on site be noted. 
 

48. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

Page 90



7C CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 
 

 

 
 Resolved:-  That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in those paragraphs indicated below of 
Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

49. INVESTMENT REVIEW OF NON-TRADITIONAL AIREY 
CONSTRUCTION PROPERTIES AT DALTON  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 289 of 30th April, 2007, the Director of 
Housing and Neighbourhood Servces submitted a review of non-
traditional stock at Dalton together with a rationale for investment in the 
Council-owned non-traditional Airey type homes in that area. 
 
There were 50 non-traditional Airey type properties at Dalton consisting of 
18 owner-occupied properties and 32 Council-owned properties.   
 
A public meeting had been held with Council tenants, owner occupiers 
and Ward Members.  The outcome of the meeting was that the majority of 
attendees strongly favoured the option of retention and investment.  
Investment was the preferred option by the majority of stakeholders due 
to the retention of high demand affordable housing in the area where 135 
Council properties had already been approved for demolition. 
   
It was noted that a budgetary allocation had been made within the 2008-
09 Housing Investment Programme which could be profiled to support 
investment in this stock.  However, further resources to deliver investment 
in the remaining non-traditional properties in the Borough would need to 
be identified and profiled, including a possible submission for resources to 
the Corporate Capital Programme. 
                                                                                                                                               
Resolved:-  (1)  That investment in the non-traditional properties at Dalton 
be approved. 
 
(2)  That structural works to provide a 30 year life and Decent Homes 
work to the Rotherham standard be completed. 
 
(3)  That Ward Members be informed of the above decision. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act - contains contractual and financial 
information)  
 

50. INVESTMENT REVIEW OF NON-TRADITIONAL AIREY 
CONSTRUCTION PROPERTIES AT CATCLIFFE  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 289 of 30th April, 2007, the Director of 
Housing and Neighbourhood Services submitted a review of non-
traditional stock at Catcliffe together with a rationale for investment in the 
Council-owned non-traditional Airey type homes in that area. 

Page 91



CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 8C 
 

 
There were 253 Council properties at Catcliffe including 21 non-traditional 
Airey type properties at Catcliffe consisting of 1 owner-occupied property 
and 19 Council-owned properties.  Only 12 properties had become 
available for from April, 2007 to May, 2008, 4 of which were bungalows 
and 5 were houses.  If the Council pursued an option of disinvestment in 
the non-traditional properties and opted for demolition, the possibility of 
relocating the tenants in alternative Council properties in the immediate 
locality within a short time scale would be remote. 
 
Having reviewed the various options and issues and consultation 
undertaken with residents and Ward Members, investment was the 
preferred option by the majority of stakeholders. 
 
It was noted that a budgetary allocation had been made within the 2008-
09 Housing Investment Programme which could be profiled to support 
investment in this stock.  However, further resources to deliver investment 
in the remaining non-traditional properties in the Borough would need to 
be identified and profiled, including a possible submission for resources to 
the Corporate Capital Programme. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That investment in the non-traditional properties at 
Catcliffe be approved. 
 
(2)  That structural works to provide a 30 year life and Decent Homes 
work to the Rotherham standard be completed. 
 
(3)  That Ward Members be informed of the above decision. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act - contains contractual and financial 
information)  
 

51. INVESTMENT REVIEW OF NON-TRADITIONAL AIREY 
CONSTRUCTION PROPERTIES AT ULLEY  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 289 of 30th April, 2007, the Director of 
Housing and Neighbourhood Services submitted a review of non-
traditional stock at Ulley together with a rationale for investment in the 
Council-owned non-traditional Airey type homes in that area. 
 
There were only 10 Council-owned properties at Ulley consisting of 3 non-
traditional constructed houses, 4 traditional constructed houses and 3 
traditional constructed bungalows.  None of the Council properties had 
become available for let from April, 2007 to May, 2008.  The area was in 
high demand for affordable housing with only a limited turnover of stock.  
If the Council pursued an option of disinvestment in the non-traditional 
properties and opted for demolition, the possibility of relocating the 
tenants in alternative Council properties in the area was very low.   
 
Following on from a questionnaire, a public meeting was held with Council 

Page 92



9C CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 
 

 

tenants, owner occupiers and Ward Members the outcome of which was 
100% strongly favoured the option of retention and investment. 
 
Having reviewed the various options and issues and consultation 
undertaken with residents and Ward Members, investment was the 
preferred option by all stakeholders. 
 
It was noted that a budgetary allocation had been made within the 2008-
09 Housing Investment Programme which could be profiled to support 
investment in this stock.  However, further resources to deliver investment 
in the remaining non-traditional properties in the Borough would need to 
be identified and profiled, including a possible submission for resources to 
the Corporate Capital Programme. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That investment in the non-traditional properties at Dalton 
be approved. 
 
(2)  That structural works to provide a 30 year life and Decent Homes 
work to the Rotherham standard be completed. 
 
(3)  That Ward Members be informed of the above decision. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act - contains contractual and financial 
information)  
 

52. EXCEPTIONAL CASES REQUEST FOR REHOUSING - MALTBY 
TARRANS REDEVELOPMENT AREA  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 9 of 19th May, 2008, the Director of 
Housing and Neighbourhood Services submitted requests for special 
priority rehousing of 2 vulnerable elderly residents from the Maltby 
Tarrans area. 
 
The full range of rehousing options had been explored with the residents 
to facilitate early rehousing.  Alternative accommodation had been 
identified in their specific area of choice but the accommodation was 
classified as sheltered accommodation for which the 2 residents did not 
qualify.   
 
It was requested that rehousing be approved to the properties identified 
on an exceptional case basis and as a matter of special priority to 
progress immediate rehousing. 
 
Resolved:-  That the 2 residents be granted special priority over other 
applications fore rehousing to sheltered housing accommodation at Bevan 
Crescent, Maltby. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act - contains contractual and financial 
information)  
 

Page 93



CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 10C 
 

53. PRIVATE SECTOR ENGAGEMENT IN DALTON AND EAST 
HERRINGTHORPE  
 

 The Director of Housing and Neighbourhood Services submitted 2 options 
for consideration that would enable the redevelopment and regeneration 
of the Dalton and East Herringthorpe area:- 
 
− Establishment a joint venture company through a public private 

partnership 
− Direct market sale of individual sites 
 
The Dalton and East Herringthorpe (draft) Masterplan set out the vision 
and aspirations for the area and formed the basis for what was built on 
each of the sites.  The scale of change proposed was large with over 
2,000 new homes constructed and 473 demolished over a 12 year period. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the report be referred to the Regeneration and Asset 
Management Board with option 1 recommended for approval. 
 
(2)  That subject to option 1 being approved, a competitive dialogue 
procurement process be commenced to select a private sector partner for 
a joint venture company to support the renewal of Dalton and East 
Herringthorpe. 
 
(3)  That 6 monthly update reports be submitted to the Cabinet Member. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act - contains contractual and financial 
information)  
 

54. TOWN CENTRE RESIDENTIAL STRATEGY  
 

 The Quality and Design Co-ordinator submitted an outline phasing 
programme for the Town Centre based on site potential which would form 
part of the evidence base to assist in preparing the Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy and Site Allocation development plan 
documents. 
 
Knight Frank Residential Research had been commissioned to advise a 
medium to long term approach to realising the ambition and potential in 
Rotherham for building a new population basis in the Town Centre taking 
account of Housing Market Renewal funding opportunities and market 
conditions.  However, during the course of the commission, the residential 
market nationwide had been exposed to a downturn in investor 
confidence and, although the long term prospects for residential 
development remained good, continuing public sector enabling 
investment was likely to be a pre-requisite for the foreseeable future.  This 
had resulted in the submission of the phasing programme. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with issues raised around car parking 
and Reading Council who had completed a similar strategy. 

Page 94



11C CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 
 

 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the completion by Knight Frank Residential 
Research of a Residential Forward Strategy for Rotherham Town Centre 
be noted and its recommendations be approved as a basis for ongoing 
prioritisation of investment. 
 
(2)  That it be noted that the Residential Forward Strategy will form part of 
the evidence base to assist in preparing Local Development Framework 
documents. 
 
(3)  That contact be made with Reading Council with view to a visit being 
made to discuss their experiences with their residential strategy. 
 
(4)  That the report, amended to reflect the comments on parking, be 
referred to the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Development 
Services and the Local Development Framework Members Steering 
Group for consideration. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act - contains contractual and financial 
information)  
 

55. PARK AVENUE, NORTH ANSTON  
 

 The Director of Housing and Neighbourhood Services submitted a request 
to acquire a property at Park Avenue, North Anston, which would enable 
the potential development of a land locked site in Council ownership to 
the rear of the property on Walnut Drive.  It was considered a strategic 
acquisition which would facilitate the release of the site to support the 
delivery of new homes. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the acquisition of No. 8 Park Avenue, North Anston, 
be approved. 
 
(2)  That the matter be referred to the Regeneration and Asset Board. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 3 of the Act - contains contractual and financial 
information)  
 

56. PETITION UPDATE - BRAMPTON BIERLOW  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 157 of 7th January, 2008, a further update 
was submitted on the alleged anti-social behaviour of an occupant and 
the actions taken following receipt of the petition. 
 
Efforts had been made to ensure that residents, Ward Members and the 
local MP were kept informed of progress of the case.   
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the report and the steps taken to address the 
concerns of the petitioners be noted. 
 

Page 95



CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 12C 
 

(2)  That enforcement continue with a further update be submitted in 6 
months’ time. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act - information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) 
 

57. PETITION UPDATE - AUGHTON  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 13 of 19th May, 2008, the Director of 
Independent Living submitted details of how the Council and 2010 
Rotherham Ltd. had responded to the issues raised. 
 
There was an ongoing separate complaint but the investigation 
surrounding the petition had found no evidence of the allegations made.  
The Assistant Neighbourhood and Involvement Manager had concluded 
that no action should be taken by 2010 against any of the alleged 
perpetrators.  A letter had been sent to the lead petition signatory on 21st 
April explaining the process which was to be followed up by a letter 
detailing the outcome of the investigation. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act - information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) 
 

58. PETITION UPDATE - WATH UPON DEARNE  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 156 of 7th January, 2008, an update was 
submitted on the actions taken in response to the petition received. 
 
Since receipt of the petition, there had been persistent complaints of 
mainly low level anti-social behaviour.  Agencies had continued to support 
the family and take appropriate enforcement action.  The Introductory 
Tenancy had been extended and the family engaged on the Family 
Intervention Project. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report and action taken be noted. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act - information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) 
 

59. STAGE 3 COMPLAINTS PANEL  
 

 It was noted that a meeting of a Complaints Panel had been held on 1st 
July, 2008, comprising Councillors Atkin (in the Chair), Billington and St. 
John.  The Panel heard a number of complaints received from Mrs. C. 
relating to the alleged removal and disposal of items of value, new items 
and personal documents from her property by the Public Protection Unit 
during the clear up of her property. 
 

Page 96



13C CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 
 

 

The Panel had not upheld Mrs. C.’s complaint or request for 
compensation and reimbursement. 
 
Resolved:-  That the Panel’s findings be noted. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act – information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual) 
 

60. PUBLIC SECTOR APPLICATION EXCEEDING DELEGATED POWERS  
 

 The Director of Independent Living submitted 1 Disabled Facility Grant 
(public sector) for consideration. 
 
The applicant had suffered a serious injury following an industrial accident 
some years ago and had severe difficulties walking.  He and his family 
had moved into the property in 2005.  Following a complaint made by him 
in 2006 it appeared that he had been offered the property by 2010 
Rotherham Ltd. without an occupational therapy assessment having taken 
place in terms of its suitability for his disability.  To enable it to be made 
suitable for his needs major adaptations are required including a ground 
floor double bedroom, shower room, lobby, ramp, hardstanding and 
wheelchair accessible kitchen. 
 
Discussion ensued on the application with the following issues 
highlighted:- 
 
− The applicant had always indicated his intention to buy the property 

and should this be pursued, the Council would lose the property for 
future use 

− The applicant had requested that bespoke requirements above and 
beyond the adaptations work, given his intention to buy the property, 
be completed as part of the building work.   There could be no 
guarantee that the adaptation would be reflected in the price of the 
property 

− No means test had taken place as the application had been made in 
2005 (prior Policy change in 2006), therefore, it was not known if he 
had been in receipt of any industrial compensation or his current 
means.  The bespoke work that the applicant was requesting, which 
he was to fund, amounted to £8,000 

− If a modular unit was provided and right to buy was exercised, the 
unit would not be part of the sale.  However, the Adaptations Team 
Manager present at the meeting confirmed that the cost of the 
modular would be significantly more than the proposed adaptations 

− The applicant had been waiting for over 2 years and persistently has 
indicated that a complaint relating to stress/anxiety would be made 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That application No. 20393 be approved in the sum of 
£53,000 provided that the works are carried out:- 
 
(a)  substantially in accordance with plans and specifications submitted by 

Page 97



CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS - 28/07/08 14C 
 

the Adaptations Team Leader, Independent Living; 
 
(b)  within a period of 12 months of the application being approved. 
 
(2)  That the Council only fund the standard adaptations (to the sum of 
£53,000) with the applicant to pay for the additional bespoke items. 
 
(Exempt under Paragraph 2 of the Act – information likely to reveal the 
identity of applicant) 
 

 

Page 98



1D SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 
 

 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 
Thursday, 10th July, 2008 

 
 
Present:- Councillor McNeely (in the Chair); Councillors Atkin, Blair, Cutts, Falvey, 
Goulty, Havenhand, Nightingale, P. A. Russell, Walker and F. Wright. together with 
Alex Armitage (Parish Councils), Bernadette Bartholomew (Parish Councils), Derek 
Corkell (RotherFed) and Andrew Roddison (RotherFed) 
 
Councillor Akhtar was in attendance at the invitation of the Chair. 
 
Councillors Austen and Gosling were in attendance for Minute No. 19. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Gamble and Lakin and Mr. 
Carr.  
 
13. COMMUNICATIONS  

 
 The Chair welcomed Alex Armitage and Bernadette Bartholomew to their 

first meeting of the Scrutiny Panel. 
 
It was reported that Paul, Director of Neighbourhood Development, 2010 
Rotherham Ltd., had recently had a heart attack. 
 
Resolved:-  That the scrutiny Panel’s best wishes be conveyed to Mr. 
Webb for a speedy recovery. 
 

14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 There were no Declarations of Interest made at the meeting. 
 

15. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

 There were no questions from the public and press. 
 

16. PRIORITIES AND WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 This item was deferred until the next meeting. 
 

17. AIR QUALITY TEAM  
 

 Lewis Coates, Public Protection Manager, gave a powerpoint presentation 
as follows:- 
 
The Local Authority’s Role 
− Part IV Environment Act 1995 

o Required Government to produce a National Air Quality 
Strategy 

o Placed a duty on local authorities to review and assess air 
quality in their areas 

Agenda Item 15Page 99



SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 2D 
 

 
Why is air quality important? 
− Air is cleaner in overall terms than at any time since the industrial 

revolution 
− Traffic pollution is now a major source as opposed to industrial 

sources 
− AND it still causes serious adverse effects 
− Air pollution is estimated to reduce the life expectancy of every 

person in the UK by an average of 7-8 months 
− There is still more to do to reduce the risk to health and the 

environment 
 
What does Review and Assessment mean? 
− REVIEW air quality 

o What are the current levels of pollution 
o Monitoring of air quality 

− ASSESS air quality 
o Assess against the National objectives 
o Modelling of air quality 

− Declare Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) where relevant 
− Produce Air Quality Action Plans 
 
Air Quality Monitoring 
− 10 automatic monitors 
− over 100 passive sampling locations 
− monitoring for nitrogen dioxide, fine particles, ozone and sulphur 

dioxide 
 
Air Quality Modelling 
− Rotherham has an internet based Airviro dispersion model 
− Modelling can be carried out for future years 
− Assessments of transport measures and planning applications 
 
Declaration of Air Quality Management Areas 
− In the UK there are 494 AQMAs spread across 225 local authorities 
− Rotherham has declared 6 AQMAs 
− 3 areas near the M1: Brinsworth, Catcliffe and Wales – traffic 

pollution 
− 3 areas in the town centre: Fitzwilliam Road, Wellgate and Wortley 

Road – traffic pollution 
 
Fitzwilliam Road Air Quality Management Area 
− Rotherham East ward is the most deprived Ward in Rotherham with 

almost all neighbourhoods affected 
− 4,460 residents live within the AQMA 
− More residents report suffering from limiting long term illness than 

the Rotherham average 
− 2 schools are in the AQMA 
− 47% of households have no car 

Page 100



3D SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 
 

 

 
What can be done to improve air quality? 
− Air quality improved in Brampton Bierlow 
− X78 buses on A630 Fitzwilliam Road 
− Vehicle emission testing 
− Care4air campaign 
 
Industrial Pollution Control 
− Environmental Protection Act 1990 
− Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 
− Environmental Protection Permitting Regulations 2007 
− 111 processes (4 Part A2, 54 Part B, 54 PVR, WOB, Dry cleaners) 
− Guidance specifies 2 visits/year for Part A2 and B processes and 1 

visit/year for PVR, WOB and Dry cleanders 
− Predicted outturn 222 inspections 
− Requests for service from the public 578 in 2006/07, 516 in 2007/08 
− Overall reduction by 11% 
− 96% of industrial processes achieve compliance 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 
− Across the Borough, the overall air quality had improved  
− As more car owners converted from petrol to diesel there would be 

an increase in nitrogen dioxide fallout within 6 m of the road 
− There were certain species of trees which absorbed pollution 
− PM2.5 was also measured 
− Due to the increase use of diesel there would be areas that would 

require careful monitoring 
− There was passive monitoring equipment situated along the A631 

Maltby to Rotherham where there were issues with regard to air 
pollution but did not meet the national standard 

− Although Brampton Bierlow was no longer an Air Quality 
Management Area, passive monitoring still took place 

 
Lewis was thanked for his presentation. 
 

18. RMBC HOUSING STRATEGY 2008/11  
 

 Amanda Coyne, Policy and Planning Officer, gave a powerpoint 
presentation as follows:- 
 
Housing Strategy 2008-11 
− Last Housing Strategy ran out in April, 2008 – was awarded fit for 

purpose status by Government 
− Major changes in housing, nationally and locally since 2005 
− 12 months of consultation and development 
− Fourth draft now produced 
− Cabinet Member agreed the Strategy on 16th June, 2008 
− Web publication of the main Strategy by the end of August, 2008 

Page 101



SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 4D 
 

− Hard copy Strategy summary document 
 
What’s it for? 
“every resident should have a decent home that meets the needs of their 
household” 
− Good or bad housing has an effect on other issues – health, 

education, economic success, sustainability 
− Changing role of the strategy housing authority 

o All tenures 
o Influencing and intervening – not providing 
 

Main Housing Issues 
− More homes in all tenures 
− Tackle poor housing conditions and multiple deprivation 
− Decent Homes standard – public and private 
− Lack of affordable rural housing 
− Housing and support needs of vulnerable groups 
− Preventing homelessness and extending choice 
− Future management and growth of Council housing 
− Addressing fuel poverty 
− High quality design and environmental sustainability 
 
3 Priorities/Themes 
− Balancing housing markets 

o Delivery phase 2 of Housing Market Renewal – investing £27M 
in regenerating neighbourhoods and homes 

o Developing hundreds of new affordable homes every year for 
rent and low cost home ownership 

o Remodelling housing estates such as Eastwood in partnership 
with 2010 Rotherham Ltd. 

o Ensuring that new housing meets the highest standards for 
design and environmental sustainability 

o Developing more affordable housing in rural areas 
o Working with planners to maximise the amount of new housing 

provided through planning gain (S106) 
o Exploring new delivery vehicles for developing social housing 
 

− Quality housing and place making 
o Working with Rotherham 2010 to complete the Decent Homes 

Programme for all Council homes 
o Investing £34.2M in private sector housing programmes- 

targeting vulnerable households and the private rented sector 
o Helping home owners to improve their homes through Home 

Appreciation Loans and Home Improvement Agency activity 
o Producing masterplans and design guides for urban centres 

including Maltby and Dinnington 
o Investing in neighbourhood centres and green spaces to ensure 

their long term sustainability 
o Increasing Safer Neighbourhood Team activity to targeted 

Page 102



5D SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 
 

 

estates 
o Increasing energy efficiency referrals by 20% 
o Developing more carbon neutral homes 
 

− Inclusion and access 
o Extending Key Choices to other tenures 
o Providing high quality housing advice and guidance 
o Developing a gateway service for all emergency 

accommodation 
o Building all new affordable homes to Lifetime Homes standards 

by 2011 
o Providing more Supported Living schemes for people with 

learning disabilities 
o Commissioning more new housing that meets BME needs 
o Continuing to develop innovative extra care schemes for older 

people 
o Providing and developing a new local authority site for gypsies 

and travellers 
 

Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/clarified:- 
 
− At a recent meeting with the 3 local MPs discussion had taken place 

on the need for Council housing.   
− An option was being explored with the Housing Corporation in terms 

of securing grant money to assist in purchasing properties on the 
open market at affordable rates to enable the Council to then let 
them at an affordable rent.  This also included houses that had been 
subject to Right to Buy 

− Within the Strategy was the need to look at the housing needs of 
older people 

− Work was taking place to bring forward housing options that were 
truly affordable e.g. 25% stake with the ability to buy additional 
stakes and % in the property as income allowed 

 
Amanda was thanked for her presentation. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the Housing Strategy 2008-11 be supported. 
 
(2)  That future agendas include affordable housing and shared 
ownership. 
 
(3)  That the action plan arising from the Strategy be submitted to the next 
meeting of the Panel. 
 

19. GARAGE SITE REVIEW AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 87 of 13th December, 2007, Paul Walsh, 
Programme and Asset Manager, submitted a report setting out the 
position statement with regard to the outcomes of the review to date 

Page 103



SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 6D 
 

detailing the current position relating to the garage site investment 
programme together with work being undertaken by 2010 Rotherham Ltd.  
A powerpoint presentation was given illustrating:- 
 
− A breakdown of the 451 Borough-wide, 302 purpose built and 149 

plot sites by Area Assembly Area 
 
− Recommended 81% retention and 19% decommission 
 
− Findings supported investment 
 
− Decommissioned sites supporting regeneration activity including 

affordable housing 
 
− Recommendations to be submitted for approval 
 
− Garage Site Investment Programme  

o 2006/07 - £649,061 
o 2007/08 - £570,000 
o 2008/09 - £570,000 allocated 
o Annual Investment Programme 
o £500,000 Capital (HIP) 
o £75,000 Revenue (HRA) 
o Year on Year Programme 
 

− Investment Programme 
o Renewal of defective garage doors and frames 
o Repairs to roofs 
o Repair of defective brickwork 
o Repair of defective tarmac to garage forecourts 
o Repairs to boundary treatments 
o Clearing drainage gullies 
o Repairs/improvements to access ways 
o Additional works on a site-by-site basis 

 
− Sites to be Decommissioned 

o 19% of sites to be decommissioned – 33% purpose built and 67% 
plot sites 

o Sites appraised 
o Planning and transportation opinion sought 
o Further consultation and approval to be sought 
o Timing of decommissioning to be agreed 

 
− Decommissioning Sites 

o Consultation 
o Strategic appraisal and valuation 
o Planning appraisal 
o Options for future use 
o Timing issues 
o Approval process 

Page 104



7D SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 
 

 

 
− Site Management Issues 

o Liaison between Neighbourhood Investment and 2010 
o General condition of sites/inspections 
o Site management protocols 
o Addressing derelict/damaged garages 
o Enforcing Tenancy conditions 
o Demand and usage 
o Ongoing review 

 
− Next Steps 

o Monitor delivery of Garage Site Investment Programme 
o Submit review recommendations to Cabinet Member for approval 
o Submit report to Regeneration and Asset Board 
o Further address management issues with 2010 
o Work with RSLs to deliver existing housing development on sites 
o Work with RSLs to develop proposals for further decommissioned 

sites to support affordable housing delivery 
o Work with EDS colleagues to release sites to the market 

 
A discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 
o Whitehill garage site cleared some years ago but nothing had 

happened to it since and had become a dumping ground 
o Letters would be sent and visits made to garage tenants advising 

them of decommissioning but also offering them a solution to their 
parking problem 

o Ward Councillors and 2010 Rotherham Ltd. would be kept informed 
o A number of the garage sites would support housing 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  The report and presentation be noted. 
 
(2)  That Ward Councillors be involved in discussions about the future use 
of garage sites in their Wards. 
 
(3) That the report containing the final recommendations for proposed 
decommissioned sites be also submitted to this Scrutiny Panel. 
 

20. CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY  
 

 In accordance with Minute No. 33 of 27th June, 2008, meeting of the 
Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee, consideration was given 
to a report presented by Mark Evans, Customer Services Client Manager, 
which introduced the refreshed Customer Access Strategy that had been 
updated to cover the period 2008-2011, which had been endorsed by the 
Corporate Management Team on 9th June, 2008. 
 
Members were informed that the Council adopted its first Customer 
Access Strategy in 2005. To ensure that the Strategy remained 
appropriate going forward the Council made a commitment within its 

Page 105



SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 8D 
 

2007/08 Year Ahead Statement to carry out a review of the Strategy. 
  
At the same time the ICT Strategy had also been refreshed and both 
documents had been developed concurrently to ensure that there was a 
co-ordinated and strategic approach to delivery. 
 
Delivering the overall vision of the Customer Access Strategy had been 
built around five strategic objectives. These were:- 
 
• Strategic Objective 1 Improving the customer experience – Using 

customer information to shape service delivery around our 
customers needs so that they are delivered responsively, accurately 
and cost effectively. 

 
• Strategic Objective 2 Refocusing our priorities - Ensuring that we are 

an efficient and effective Council. One that continually reviews its 
processes and technological requirements to deliver cost efficient 
quality services in a timely manner that are appropriate to our 
customers needs. 

 
• Strategic Objective 3 Joined-up service delivery - Proactively 

seeking out opportunities to work collaboratively with our partners to 
improve continually  access to information and services provided to 
our customers. 

 
• Strategic Objective 4 Marketing and promoting ways to access our 

services - Encouraging self service where this is appropriate, for 
those who are able to contact the Council in this way, and publishing 
our achievements. 

 
• Strategic Objective 5 Learning, development and training - Providing 

empowered, well-trained, professional and knowledgeable staff to 
support the delivery of services and assist customers to be confident 
and competent users of ICT based access. 

 
Delivery of significant elements of this Strategy would be supported by the 
refreshed ICT Strategy which would be funded from the existing ICT 
Capital Programme and existing Council budgets. Any additional funding 
for the Customer Access Strategy would be identified in the 
implementation plan and individual business cases developed as 
appropriate. 
 
The Committee considered the Customer Access Strategy in detail and 
discussed the feasibility of delivering and developing processes for the 
giving of any amendments to details once. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were raised and clarified:- 
− The emphasis of the Strategy was to extend all access channels not 

close them.  There were no plan to close local offices 

Page 106



9D SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 
 

 

− There were big differences between local offices on how members of 
staff dealt with members of the public.  Mystery shopping had been 
introduced by Neighbourhoods and Adult Services with its 
introduction being considered corporately.  The Rotherham Access 
Audit Group was to undertake mystery shopping across Customer 
Service Centres and telephone contact centre.  A quarterly report 
would be received in their experiences 

− The technology element of the Strategy would be strongly supported 
by the investment that had already been agreed by the Council.  
There were additional costs that the Strategy was likely to require 
which would be presented to Council on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Resolved:-  That the Customer Access Strategy 2008/2011 be supported. 
 

21. NEIGHBOURHOODS HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2007/08 
OUTTURN REPORT  
 

 Mike Clements, Service Accountant (Neighbourhoods), submitted a report 
showing that the Housing Revenue Account’s (HRA) financial outturn 
position for 2007/08 was a deficit of £2.111M.  This was met by HRA 
balances which had reduced to £6.480M.   
 
The key income and expenditure variances were set out in the report.  
The principal reasons for the overall reduction in the HRA balance were:- 
 
− An additional revenue contribution made to support capital 

expenditure (RCCO) of £1.028M to fund the cost of upgrading the 
ROCC IT system to support the implementation of handheld 
technology for repairs operatives.  The cost would be funded over 
the next 3-4 years on an Invest to Save basis by the efficiency 
savings achieved by 2010 Rotherham Ltd. 

− Supervision and Management costs, particularly the cost of District 
Heating schemes (£0.455M principally due to increased gas prices) 
and the cost of administering abortive Right to Buy applications 
(£0.150M) which could be offset against receipts from the sales in 
the same way that the cost of administering completing sales could 

− The cost of interest on debts to be repaid was greater than expected 
(£0.416M) 

− The Management Fee to 2010 Rotherham Ltd. was increased by 
£0.198M to fund additional pension costs in line with the 
Management Agreement 

 
Discussion ensued on the report with issues raised and clarified 
regarding:- 
 
o Monthly monitoring reports were to be submitted to the Cabinet 

Member 
o In the new financial year there would be no repeat of the ROCC IT 

expenditure, but there may be some increase in the management fee 
with regard to pension related costs.  The district heating charges 

Page 107



SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 10D 
 

where to be re-evaluated as the gas contract was about to be re-let 
 
Resolved:-   That the report be noted. 
 

22. NEIGHBOURHOODS GENERAL FUND OUTTURN 2007-08  
 

 Mike Clements, Service Accountant (Neighbourhoods), reported that the 
Neighbourhoods General Fund Revenue Account had outturned at a net 
underspend of £136,000, as follows:- 
 
Neighbourhood Services – An overspend of £51,000 due to under 
recovery of Crematorium and Cemeteries income. 
 
Neighbourhood Standards – An underspend of £239,000  made up of an 
overspend of £78,000 regarding closed landfill sites needing urgent work 
due to Environmental, Legal and Health and Safety issues together with a 
number of underspends mainly due to staff vacancies.  There had also 
been unbudgeted income relating to Patented Grant (£21,000) and the 
Gambling Act (£50,000). 
 
Community Safety – An underspend of £419,000 due to the effect of staff 
vacancies and an underspending on Neighbourhood Wardens.  There 
had also been unbudgeted grant income of £50,000 relating to anti-social 
behaviour. 
 
Neighbourhood Management – An overspend of £17,000 due to a below 
budget level of interest income received relating to Housing Association 
mortgages and Home Improvement Loans. 
 
Community Services – An overspend of £455,000.  The 2 main reasons 
were income related SIPs of £153,000 not achieved as charges for 
communal room hire in sheltered accommodation were not reviewed and 
an overspend by the Independent Support Service of £285,000. 
 
Neighbourhood Development – Outturned on budget as anticipated. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report.  Members raised concerns at the large 
differences between over and underspends between the various sections 
and how the budgets could have been so out of kilter.  It was clarified:- 
 
− There was agreement that any underspend on the Community 

Leadership Fund could be rolled over into the next financial year.  
Some of the issues were due to timing issues 

− The overspend in Neighbourhood Services (Crematorium and 
Cemeteries) was a historic problem where revenue expectation was 
set too high 

− The underspend in Community Safety was due to allocation of 
additional funding which was not planned for.  It had been adjusted 
for the new financial year 

− A review of the Warden Service and also the designation of 

Page 108



11D SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 
 

 

sheltered housing and bungalows was underway.  One of the 
impacts of the previous property review led by EDS was that a 
number of properties had been de-designated.  And income 
associated with them, therefore, changed.  The main reason for the 
overspending, however, was that the overall level of income did not 
coincide with expenditure based on the current service model.   

 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted. 
 

23. HOUNG INVESTMENT PROGRAMME  OUTTURN 2007/08  
 

 Mike Clements, Service Accountant (Neighbourhoods), submitted the final 
outturn position for the 2007/08 Housing Investment Programme (HIP). 
 
By 31st March, 2008, £86,851M had been spent against the approved 
Programme of £33,040M, an overall underspend of £1.188M.  This 
included an overspend of £2.233M on schemes managed by 2010 
Rotherham Ltd. and an underspend on Council managed schemes of 
£3.422M. 
 
For the schemes managed by 2010 Rotherham Ltd., £75.596M had been 
spent which equated to an overspend of £2.233M against the approved 
Programme.  The main reasons for the overspend were:- 
 
Decent Homes – Phase 2 – overspent by £1.871M 
 
Flood costs - £1.118M 
 
The main variances to the remainder of the Programme managed by the 
Council (£14.677M) were:- 
 
Pathfinder Projects – Budget £5.099M Expenditure £4.181M 
 
Gypsy and Traveller Site – Budget £1.6M Expenditure Nil 
 
Unsustainable and Non-Traditional Properties  - Budget £860,000 
Expenditure £277,000 
 
Non-Traditional Investment – Budget £250,000 Expenditure £369 
 
Sheltered Housing Modifications – Budget £900,000 Expenditure 
£158,000 
 
Fair Access to All – Budget £2.865M Expenditure £3.967M 
 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted 
 

24. CABINET MEMBER FOR NEIGHBOURHOODS  
 

 The Panel noted the decisions made under delegated powers by the 

Page 109



SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 10/07/08 12D 
 

Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods held on 16th June, 2008. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report to be submitted to the Cabinet Member in 
October, 2008, on the impact of the New Stray Dog Provisions and new 
arrangements be also submitted to this Scrutiny Panel. 
 

25. SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL  
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 12th June, 2008, were noted. 
 

26. PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE  
 

 The minutes of the Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee held 
on 25th and 13th June, 2008 were noted. 
 

27. NEW ARRIVALS WORKING PARTY  
 

 The minutes of the above Working Party held on 13th June, 2008, 
attended by Councillors Sharman (in the Chair) , Akhtar and Hussain, be 
noted. 
 

28. MEMBERS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY GROUP  
 

 The minutes of the above Advisory Group held on 13th June, 2008, 
attended by Councillors Wyatt (in the Chair), Gosling and Pickering, be 
noted. 
 

 

Page 110



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 27/06/08  
 

 

18T 

PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
27th June, 2008 

 
Present:- Councillor Whelbourn (in the Chair); The Mayor (Councillor G. A. Russell); 
Councillors Austen, Boyes, Burton, Gilding, McNeely, P. A. Russell and Swift. 
 
Councillor Kaye was in attendance for Minute No. 37. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. Hamilton and Jack.  
 
31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest made at this meeting. 

 
32. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
 There were no questions from members of the public or the press. 

 
33. CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY  

 
 Consideration was given to a report presented by Mark Evans, Customer 

Services Client Manager, which introduced the refreshed Customer 
Access Strategy that had been updated to cover the period 2008-2011, 
which had been endorsed by the Corporate Management Team on 9th 
June, 2008. 
 
Members were informed that the Council adopted its first Customer 
Access Strategy in 2005. To ensure that the Strategy remained 
appropriate going forward, the Council made a commitment within its 
2007/08 Year Ahead Statement to carry out a review of the Strategy. 
  
At the same time the ICT Strategy had also been refreshed and both 
documents had been developed concurrently to ensure that there was a 
co-ordinated and strategic approach to delivery. 
 
Delivering the overall vision of the Customer Access Strategy had been 
built around five strategic objectives. These were:- 
 
• Strategic Objective 1 Improving the customer experience – Using 

customer information to shape service delivery around our 
customers needs so that they are delivered responsively, accurately 
and cost effectively. 

 
• Strategic Objective 2 Refocusing our priorities - Ensuring that we are 

an efficient and effective Council. One that continually reviews its 
processes and technological requirements to deliver cost efficient 
quality services in a timely manner that are appropriate to our 
customers needs. 

 
• Strategic Objective 3 Joined-up service delivery - Proactively 

Agenda Item 16Page 111



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 27/06/08 
 

 

19T 

seeking out opportunities to work collaboratively with our partners to 
improve continually  access to information and services provided to 
our customers. 

 
 
• Strategic Objective 4 Marketing and promoting ways to access our 

services - Encouraging self service where this is appropriate, for 
those who are able to contact the Council in this way, and publishing 
our achievements. 

 
• Strategic Objective 5 Learning, development and training - Providing 

empowered, well-trained, professional and knowledgeable staff to 
support the delivery of services and assist customers to be confident 
and competent users of ICT based access. 

 
Delivery of significant elements of this Strategy would be supported by the 
refreshed ICT Strategy which would be funded from the existing ICT 
Capital Programme and existing Council budgets. Any additional funding 
for the Customer Access Strategy would be identified in the 
implementation plan and individual business cases developed as 
appropriate. 
 
The Committee considered the Customer Access Strategy in detail and 
discussed the feasibility of delivering and developing processes for the 
giving of any amendments to details once. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were raised and clarified:- 
 
- “Tell Us Once” Pilot Project and joined up services. 
- Communication of the Strategy in plain language and for this to be 

assessed by the Communications and Marketing Team. 
- Scrutiny of the Strategy by other Scrutiny Panels for their own areas 

of responsibility. 
- Established framework for consulting with the public through 

Neighbourhoods and Adult Services. 
- Use and development of ACORN, the software package for 

gathering data and the type of information being stored. 
- Alternative data sources. 
- Accuracy of information relating to Neighbourhood Offices. 
- Inclusion of 2010 Rotherham Ltd. in the consultation process. 
- Current and planned customer access point locations in Rotherham 

and the delivery of services by rural Post Offices in the less 
populated south of the Borough. 

- Meeting to be held in September to look at issues around the 
national programme of proposed Post Office closures. 

- Suggestions for the formulation of a rural access strategy. 
- Proposed removal of the British Telecom telephone boxes. 
- Colour production of the location map of the current and planned 

customer access points in Rotherham. 

Page 112



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 27/06/08  
 

 

20T 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the Customer Access Strategy 2008/2011 be 
supported. 
 
(2)  That the Customer Access Strategy 2008/2011 be submitted to the 
Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel and any issues reported back to 
this Committee. 
 
 
(3)  That the Customer Access Strategy be monitored by this Committee 
on an annual basis. 
 

34. 2007/08 YEAR END PERFORMANCE  
 

 Tim Littlewood, Principal Officer Performance Management, presented, 
with the aid of powerpoint, the submitted report which showed the position 
at the end of 2007/08 as being 61% of the corporate plan indicators hitting 
their target with 67% showing improvement or maintaining their best 
score. 
 
The estimated Comprehensive Performance Assessment Direction of 
Travel improvement rate was 68%, compared to last year’s performance 
of 55% which was just below the national average.  
 
The projected Comprehensive Performance Assessment scores for this 
year’s service blocks were included in the report which indicated that it 
was possible to retain the overall 4 star ‘Excellent’ status.  However, there 
were indicators in both the culture and benefits blocks that placed this 
status at risk. 
 
The presentation drew specific attention to:- 
 
• Corporate Key Performance Indicators. 
• Quarter 4 Performance. 
• Quarter 4 Direction of Travel. 
• Areas of Strong Improvement. 
• Corporate Plan Issues. 
• Comprehensive Performance Assessment Direction of Travel. 
• Comprehensive Performance Assessment Block Scores. 
• Comprehensive Performance Assessment Risks. 
• Priorities for 2008/09. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were raised and clarified;- 
 
- Public perception, satisfaction with Council services and the actions 

being taken to address this. 
- Healthy School Status and the need to improve the C16 current 

score for school sports. 
- Performance monitoring by all Scrutiny Panels for their areas of 

Page 113



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 27/06/08 
 

 

21T 

responsibility with this Committee having the overview. 
- Review of the health curriculum. 
- Withdrawal of the weekly black bin collection lowering satisfaction 

levels. 
- Use of arrows confusing and the need to use the traffic light system 

for performance monitoring. 
- Local accountability through the Area Assembly network. 
- Involvement of local people in improving service delivery and impact 

at a local level. 
- Data quality and clarification of issues. 
- Proposed joint scrutiny review to address some of the concerns 

raised. 
 
 
 
Resolved:-  (1)   That “red” measures highlighted within each theme have 
action plans produced and actions be undertaken to improve the 
performance of the measure. 
 
(2)  That performance clinics be conducted in Quarter 1 and be based on 
existing areas of concern and a risk assessment of the new national 
indicator set. 
 
(3)  That the overall position and direction of travel in relation to 
performance be noted. 
 
(4)  That the overall position in relation to the Audit Commission’s CPA 
Direction of Travel Indicators performance be noted. 
 
(5)  That this last report of the Corporate Plan 2005-2010 be noted and 
the first quarter 2008-2009 of the new Corporate Plan and the new 
national indicator set be welcomed, together with other key local 
performance indicators. 
 
(6)  That the proposed performance reporting schedule for 2008/09 be 
supported. 
 
(7)  That a copy of action being taken to address the problems associated 
with the C16 Indicator be made available to the Chairman of the 
Regeneration Scrutiny Panel and the Chairman of this Committee. 
 

35. YEAR AHEAD FINAL UPDATE 2007/08  
 

 This item was deferred to the next meeting. 
 

36. YEAR AHEAD 2008/09  
 

 This item was deferred to the next meeting. 
 

37. FUTURE CHALLENGES FOR THE YOUTH SERVICE - SCRUTINY 

Page 114



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 27/06/08  
 

 

22T 

REVIEW  
 

 Councillor Kaye, Chair of the Scrutiny Review “Future Challenges for the 
Youth Service”, introduced the final draft of the report, which was set up to 
examine whether Rotherham had the capacity to delivery the new 
statutory duty to secure “positive activities for young people”. 
 
Particular reference was made to the original concerns and reasons for 
the review, key points that emerged from discussions, delays associated 
with the review and the recommendations for the Cabinet to consider. 
 
Councillor Burton, a member of the Scrutiny Review Group, referred to the 
report’s valuable information and the conclusions drawn.  There was 
clearly a need for a more coherent co-ordinated approach in meeting the 
new legal duty to secure access for young people in a range of positive 
activities. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were raised and clarified:- 
 
- Targeted age range and whether this should include young people 

from the age of eleven. 
- Activities provided by the voluntary and community sector and the 

need for this to be evaluated. 
- Children and Young People’s Services to collate and audit activities 

across the borough for young people. 
- Inequality of youth provision across the borough. 
- Entitlement to provision and access to facilities. 
- Lack of clarity as to how Area Plans were linked to youth service 

planning and the apparent gaps. 
- Usefulness of a directory of provision. 
- Financial and geographical constraints on provision. 
- National measures in the new Comprehensive Area Assessment 

regarding young people’s participation in positive activities. 
- Launch of Wentworth South’s Youth Area Assembly. 
- Further work required. 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the review, together with the findings and 
recommendations, be supported. 
 
(2) That the review and its recommendations be forwarded to Cabinet for 
consideration. 
 

38. CENTRE FOR PUBLIC SCRUTINY CONFERENCE REPORT  
 

 Consideration was given to the report presented by Cath Saltis, Head of 
Scrutiny Services, which detailed the findings from the recent Centre for 
Public Scrutiny Conference on the 10th June, 2008.  
 
The Conference was attended by Councillors Glyn Whelbourn, Jane 

Page 115



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 27/06/08 
 

 

23T 

Austen, Hilda Jack, Colin Barron and Scrutiny Officers, Cath Saltis, 
Angela Power and Sioned Mair-Richards. 
 
The conference opened with three main keynote speakers:- 
 
• A Voice for Those Who Pay - Sir Michael Lyons, Chair, BBC Trust.  
 
• Public Involvement in Health - Meredith Vivian, Acting Director, 

Patient and Public Empowerment, Department of Health.  
 
• Scrutiny of Public Service Partnerships - John Tizard, Director, 

Centre for Public Service Partnerships.  
 
• John Healey M.P., Minister for Local Government. 
 
There were also a series of workshops throughout the day to choose from 
including:- 
 
• Building Relationships for locally accountable health and care. 
• Strategic Commissioning and Holding Commissioners to Account. 
• International Scrutiny. 
• Mapping Local Services. 
• Party Politics and Scrutiny. 
 
The Party Politics and Scrutiny workshop was led by Sioned Mair-
Richards and challenged the belief that scrutiny “should not be political”. 
The workshop examined how scrutiny could be independent, objective, 
not be influenced by political considerations, but remain political by 
nature. For scrutiny to have legitimacy and for its recommendations to 
have influence it must be able to demonstrate that its work was aimed at 
objectives other than political victory. However this did not mean giving up 
an understanding of the political context of issues under scrutiny or 
political implications of recommendations. Political awareness was still 
key to effective scrutiny.  
 
The afternoon seminar by the Democratic Health Network on Strategic 
Commissioning was also particularly useful.  This was a workshop 
focusing specifically on health commissioning and how to hold 
commissioners to account, drawing attention to the complex aspects of 
commissioning and what the eleven competencies for “world class 
commissioning” were. The workshop was useful for untangling exactly 
what commissioning was and what it entailed, making it clear that the 
involvement of Members and the community should be very clear in the 
commissioning, process. In terms of scrutinising commissioning, the 
workshop was helpful to point out that it needed to be made manageable 
for Members by focusing on particular aspects of the process, such as 
service user engagement or the needs assessment and not trying to take 
on a whole Commissioning Strategy in one go. 
 
Scrutiny Advisers for the Adult Services and Health Scrutiny Panel hoped 

Page 116



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 27/06/08  
 

 

24T 

to put aspects of this learning into practice.  
 
Councillor Austen suggested that further information be sought from 
Cardiff regarding their scrutiny of the Local Strategic Partnership in Wales. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the outcomes of the conference be noted. 
 
(2)  That further information be sought from Cardiff City Council on their 
scrutiny of their Local Strategic Partnership. 
 

39. MINUTES  
 

 Resolved:-  (1)That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th June, 2008 be 
approved as a correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 
(2) That with regard to Minute No. 27 (Yorkshire South Tourism), it was 
noted that a meeting had been held in Doncaster and a further one was 
anticipated in Rotherham shortly.  The Yorkshire South Tourism Board 
had intended to seek PLC status, but this may not be practical.   
 
It was hoped that there would be the opportunity for sub-regional scrutiny 
of this organisation. Further information would be provided in due course. 
 

40. WORK IN PROGRESS  
 

 Members of the Committee reported as follows:- 
 
(a) Councillor McNeely was to have a meeting with the Scrutiny Adviser 

regarding the work programme for the year. 
 
 It was also suggested that the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny 

Panel had enough capacity for other departments of the Council to 
report on the role of their own area in a twenty minute slot for each 
meeting. 

 
There was nothing further to report from other Scrutiny Panels. 
 

41. CALL-IN ISSUES  
 

 There were no formal call in requests. 
 

Page 117



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 11/07/08 
 

 

1T 

PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
11th July, 2008 

 
Present:- Councillor McNeely (in the Chair); The Mayor (Councillor G. A. Russell); 
Councillors Austen, Boyes, Burton, Gilding, J. Hamilton, Jack, P. A. Russell and 
Swift. 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Whelbourn.  
 
42. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 Councillor Boyes declared a personal interet in item 46 below (Yorkshire 

South Tourism) being a member of the Yorkshire South Tourism Board. 
 

43. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

 There were no questions from members of the public or the press. 
 

44. PARTNERSHIP COMMUNICATIONS  
 

 Vince Roberts, Rotherham Partnership Manager, gave a presentation 
relating to proposals for a partnership newspaper for Rotherham. 
 
The presentation covered :- 
 
- Reports presented to : 
 

• approved by Cabinet 12th March, 2008 
• approved by Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) Board  20th March, 

2008 
• regular updates to LSP and Chief Executive Officer Group 

 
- Newspaper Project 
 
- Procurement process 
 
- Editorial content 
 
- Advertising and income generation 
 
- Governance arrangements 
 
- Launch event and broader marketing 
 
- Key messages 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 
- staffing resources 

Page 118



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 11/07/08  
 
2T 

 
- newspaper a replacement for Rotherham Matters 
 
- need to ensure the newspaper was clear and user friendly 
 
- newspaper format 
 
- parish councils as consultees to the proposals 
 
- discussions with parish councils regarding providing content for the 

newspaper 
 
- balance of newspaper content 
 
- impact of advertising in the newspaper on other organisations 
 
- underwriting of the newspaper 
 
- financing/budget arrangements for the newspaper 
 
- monitoring of the newspaper from an overview and scrutiny point of 

view 
 
- main risks associated with the project 
 
- editorial control 
 
Resolved:- That the information be noted and Vince be thanked for his 
informative presentation. 
 

45. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2008 - 2011  
 

 Stuart Booth, Director of Central Finance, presented the submitted report 
relating to the above and gave presentations relating to the Revenue 
Budget Outturn 2007/08 and the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2008-
2011. 
 
The presentations covered:- 
 
(a) Revenue Budget Outturn 2007/08 
 
- summary by directorate 
 
(b) Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
 
- agenda 
 
- MTFS principles 
 
- Integration of Plans/Strategies/VFM 

Page 119



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 11/07/08 
 

 

3T 

 
- Innovations 
 
- National Policy Agenda 
 
- Local Priorities 
 
- Spending Pressures 
 
- 2008/09 budget and indicative budget requirements for 2008/10 and 

2010/11 
 
- Resources 
 
- Summary statement of resources 
 
- Summary resources and spend 
 
- Indicative efficiency gains and savings targets 
 
- Indicative cash limit budgets 
 
- Key outcomes 
 
- Next Steps 
 
Discussions and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 
- school meals provision 
 
- alignment of MTFS with Corporate Plan/Community Strategy 
 
- financial climate and risks regarding building projects 
 
- value for money as a central theme 
 
- risks associated with partners not delivering 
 
- monitoring of partners 
 
- fuel costs and budgetary provision 
 
- Learning Skills Council 
 
- South Yorkshire County Council residual debt 
 
- Aston Customer Service Centre progress 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the information be noted. 

Page 120



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 11/07/08  
 
4T 

 
(2) That the MTFS be supported as far as this Committee is concerned 
and forwarded to full Council on 23rd July, 2008 for approval. 
 

46. YORKSHIRE SOUTH TOURISM  
 

 Further to Minute No. 194 of the meeting of this Committee held on 25th 
April, 2008, Bronwen Moss, Scrutiny Adviser, presented briefly the 
submitted report relating to progress in respect of the above and 
indicating that, since the last report, officers and members of the four 
regional local authorities had held a further meeting on 24th June, 2008. 
 
Discussed at that meeting was an overview of achievements by Yorkshire 
South Tourism (YST) given by the Chief Executive, Richard Jones. Also 
discussed was a revised protocol of proposed scrutiny arrangements. 
 
The revised protocol of proposed scrutiny arrangements and the minutes 
of the meeting held on 24th June, 2008 were submitted. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 

- frequency of proposed joint committee meetings : it was 
considered one or two meetings  per year would be insufficient 

 
- representation on the joint committee 

 
Resolved:- (1) That the information be noted. 
 
(2) That the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of this Committee, together 
with Councillor Doyle, be this Authority’s representatives on the joint 
committee. 
 
(3) That the view of this Committee, that the joint committee should meet 
four times per year, be forwarded accordingly. 
 

 
(Councillor Boyes declared a personal interest in the above item being a member of 
the Yorkshire South Tourism Board) 
  
47. YEAR AHEAD FINAL UPDATE 2007/08  

 
 Julie Slatter, Head of Policy and Performance, presented briefly the 

submitted report which provided a final update on the 63 commitments 
outlined in the 2007/08 Year Ahead Statement – “Transforming the 
Borough Together”. The report focused on the progress of each individual 
commitment and offered an overview of how many were achieved, 
ongoing, partially achieved or deferred. 
 
The process would assist in the continual improvement in aligning 

Page 121



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 11/07/08 
 

 

5T 

investment to achieve the vision of the Council. 
 
There were no risks around non-delivery of Year Ahead commitments 
including impact on achievement of corporate plan objectives, reputation 
and service delivery. Risks had been mitigated by Directorates throughout 
the year. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 

- monitoring of those commitments not yet achieved 
 
- progress relating to Aston cum Aughton Customer Service Centre 
 
- monitoring of the YES Project and development progress 
 
- developing and introducing a detailed local community call for 

action 
 
- need for discussions on the implications of the White Paper at 

Cabinet and this Committee 
 
- progress relating to the exploration of trust status as an option for 

the management of Cultural Services 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the achievements for 2007/08 be noted. 
 
(2) That a report be submitted to the next meeting of this Committee 
clarifying the timeframe with regard to Aston cum Aughton Customer 
Service Centre. 
 

48. YEAR AHEAD 2008/09  
 

 The Chief Executive presented briefly the submitted report which 
introduced the Year Ahead Statement “Pride In Our Borough” for 2008/09. 
 
The Year Ahead Statement for 2008/09 was entitled “Pride In Our 
Borough” as it was a theme which reflected the Council’s commitment to 
improving outcomes for all residents and responding to their needs to 
improve overall satisfaction levels. 
 
The Year Ahead work was resourced as it reflected the Council’s 
Corporate Plan and Budget/Medium Term Financial Strategy. The printing 
of the document and supporting work and dissemination would be met 
from the Chief Executive’s Directorate budget. 
 
Risks in not meeting the commitments would be mitigated through 
monitoring the risk register, performance management and taking 
necessary action. A report of the first six months progress would be 
produced in November, 2008. 

Page 122



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 11/07/08  
 
6T 

 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 
- reconstitution of the six Our Future groups 
 
- future political arrangements 
 
- implications of White Paper 
 
- timescales regarding the current review of parish councils and 

concerns regarding lack of feedback from the consultation process 
 
- commitment regarding the refurbishment of Aston Library 
 
- Ward based records 
 
- need for Ward based facilities as well as investment, expenditure and 

initiatives 
 
- need for a good database for members locally to utilised available 

resources 
 
- importance of accessibility issues regarding facilities 
 
- review into the use of school buildings and availability of facilities for 

use by the community 
 
- concerns regarding instances of excessive fees charged for the use of 

facilities within school buildings 
 
- building schools for the future a real opportunity to build in options for 

public use 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the information be noted and the Year Ahead 
Statement for 2008/09 be approved as far as this Committee is 
concerned. 
 
(2) That information on the refurbishment of Aston Library be reported 
back to this Committee as part of the report on Aston cum Aughton 
Customer Service Centre. 
 

49. MINUTES  
 

 Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting held on 27th June, 2008 be 
approved as a correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 

50. WORK IN PROGRESS  
 

 Members of the Committee reported as follows:- 

Page 123



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 11/07/08 
 

 

7T 

 
(a) The Mayor reported that the latest meeting of the Children and Young 
People’s Services Scrutiny Panel had considered :- 
 
 -  2007 End of Key Stage 3 Statutory Test Results 
 
 - 16-19 NEETs Fund Manager : Commissioning Process 
 
 - Children and Young People’s Services : Business and 

Support Plan for Integrated Services 
 
 - Rotherham Adoption Inspection and Action Plan 
 
 - Looked After Children 
 
(b) Councillor McNeely reported that the latest meeting of the Sustainable 
Communities Scrutiny Panel had considered :- 
 
 - Update on Garage Sites 
 
 - Outturn budgets for Neighbourhoods 
 
 - Out of hours policy regarding stray dogs 
 
(c) Councillor Jack reported that the latest meeting of the Adult Services 
and Health Scrutiny Panel had considered and agreed the Panel’s work 
programme. 
 
(d) Councillor Austen reported that the Democratic Renewal Scrutiny 
Panel was to carry out a short sharp follow up review on the 24th July, 
2008 regarding relations with parish councils. 
 
(e) Councillor Boyes referred to consideration of a report on flooding at a 
recent area assembly meeting and expressed concern at the lack of 
understanding regarding borough and parish council members particularly 
with regard to proposals for communications and ward boundaries. 
 
Cath Saltis indicated that a comprehensive report was to be submitted to 
this Committee in September, 2008 and the need for an integrated plan 
regarding communications to all members, borough and parish, was vital. 
 
The potential for a ward profile section in the proposed community 
newspaper was suggested. 
 

51. CALL-IN ISSUES  
 

 There were no formal call in requests. 
 
 

Page 124



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 25/07/08 
 

 

1T 

PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
25th July, 2008 

 
Present:- Councillor Whelbourn (in the Chair); The Mayor (Councillor G. A. Russell); 
Councillors Austen, Boyes, Burton, Jack, McNeely, P. A. Russell and Swift. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Barron, Gilding and 
J. Hamilton.  
 
52. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting. 

 
53. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
 There were no questions from members of the public or the press. 

 
54. CONSULTATION AND INVOLVEMENT FRAMEWORK  

 
 Zafar Saleem, Community Engagement and Cohesion Manager, gave a 

presentation relating to the above entitled “An overview of Consultation 
and Community Involvement” (CCI). 
 
The presentation covered:- 
 

- Content 
 
- Partnership CCI Framework 
 
- CCI Toolkit 
 
- CCI Database 
 
- Annual Plan and Review 
 
- Training 
 
- Future 

 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 

- number of consultations 
 
- database content/accessibility to it and training for the use of it 
 
- responsibility/structure for inputting information onto database 
 
- training to improve the quality assurance framework 
 

Page 125



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 25/07/08  
 
2T 

- definition of consultation 
 
- trigger for consultation 
 
- specifying criteria for consultation 
 
- need to acknowledge change was not always necessary 
 
- places and faces campaign 
 
- citizen control 
 
- ensuring no duplication/overlap of consultation/questionnaire 

surveys 
 
- feedback reflecting on the value of the consultants used 
 
- feedback on how public are treated as part of a consultation 

exercise 
 
- importance of information sharing to avoid duplication of effort 
 
- value for money considerations and need to consider work done 

already 
 
Resolved:- That the information be noted and progress reports be 
submitted to this Committee on a six monthly basis. 
 

55. COMMISSIONING FRAMEWORK - NEXT STEPS  
 

 Deborah Fellowes, Policy External and Regional Affairs Manager, 
presented the submitted report which set out proposals that would lead to 
the adoption and implementation of the Corporate Commissioning 
Framework across the activities and business of the Council. It provided a 
summary of key issues that needed to be addressed and proposals to 
establish a Commissioning Group to develop an action plan and specific 
project plans to support implementation of the Commissioning 
Framework. 
 
The Corporate Commissioning Framework had been approved by 
Cabinet/Corporate Management Team at its meeting on 22nd April, 2008. 
This report set out proposals for implementation of the framework, 
building on the proposals approved in April, 2008. 
 
The report covered:- 
 

- Use of Resources 2008/09 
 
 � managing finances 
 � governing the business 

Page 126



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 25/07/08 
 

 

3T 

 
- Creating Strong, Safe and Prosperous Communities Statutory 

Guidance : Draft for consultation November, 2007 
 
- Principles  to underpin commissioning activity 
 
- Partnership approach 
 
- Corporate Needs Assessment 
 
- Commissioning priorities for 2008/09 
 
- Awareness raising, training and competency development 
 
- Links to Procurement Strategy 
 
- Commissioning Directors’ Group 

 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 

- need for training/awareness raising regarding commissioning 
 
- value for money implications from the Council’s and partners’ 

procurement processes 
 
- Children’s Trust Arrangements 
 
- commissioning for quality, efficiency and value for money, 

decommissioning services when necessary 
 
- providing timely information to providers and working effectively 

with them 
 
- supporting a thriving, diverse and sustainable voluntary and 

community sector 
 
- transparency of funding 
 
- need for a framework to encourage small groups to join in the 

process 
 
- agreed set of priorities for all partners 
 
- reporting arrangements and monitoring of such  
 
- governance risks 
 
- effect of joint commissioning on area plans 

 

Page 127



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 25/07/08  
 
4T 

Resolved:- (1) That the proposed implementation of a corporate approach 
to commissioning be noted. 
 
(2) That the draft principles for commissioning, set out in Appendix 1 to 
the report, be noted. 
 
(3) That the proposal to consult with partners on adopting the Council’s 
Corporate Commissioning Framework as a partnership commissioning 
framework be noted. 
 
(4) That the priorities for taking forward a commissioning approach in 
2008/09 be noted. 
 
 
(5) That the development of a programme of training and awareness 
raising for officers and Members be supported. 
 
(6) That it be noted that the Our Future Group 2 was to be reconvened to 
oversee delivery and support development of this project. 
 
(7) That progress reports be submitted to this Committee on a six monthly 
basis. 
 

56. NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL FUND (NRF) TRANSITIONAL 
FUNDING COMMISSIONING PLANS  
 

 Deborah Fellowes, Policy External and Regional Affairs Manager, 
presented the submitted report relating to the above. 
 
Cabinet had already approved the commissioning process and six themes 
under the NRF Transitional Funding. Summaries of the proposed projects 
within the six transitional themes that were recommended were contained 
within the report. The report also contained an update on other projects 
still to be considered and a new timescale for these. 
 
The new process incorporated the key findings from both the scrutiny 
review of NRF Commissioning and the internal valuation of it. 
 
Discussion and a question and answer session ensued and the following 
issues were covered:- 
 

- Devolved Streetscene project and local delivery from a value for 
money angle 

 
- community cohesion and activity to support locally 

 
- need to develop linkages between programmes 

 
- importance of area assemblies and area plans 

 

Page 128



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 25/07/08 
 

 

5T 

- potential for levering Housing Pathfinder monies into the 
devolved streetscene project 

 
- funding timescales 

 
Resolved:- (1) That the projects summarised in Appendix 1 to the report 
and the proposed action for each in Table A of the report be noted. 
 
(2) That it be noted that the projects and proposals would be considered 
by the Rotherham Partnership Board in August, 2008. 
 
(3) That the progress and new timescales for consideration of outstanding 
projects be noted. 
 
(4) That it be noted that future progress reports were to be considered by 
the Cabinet Member for Communities and Involvement and the Cabinet 
on an annual basis. 
 
(5) That progress reports be submitted to this Committee on a six monthly 
basis. 
 

57. SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT  
 

 Further to Minute No. 13 of the meeting of this Committee held on 23rd 
May, 2008, Cath Saltis, Head of Scrutiny Services, presented the 
submitted Annual Report 2007/08 describing the activities and 
achievements over the past year. 
 
Resolved:- That the content and structure of the Annual Report 2007/08 
be approved, commended to Council and published/distributed 
accordingly. 
 

58. MINUTES  
 

 Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting held on 11th July, 2008 be 
approved as a correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 

59. WORK IN PROGRESS  
 

 Members of the Committee reported as follows:- 
 
(a) Councillor Boyes reported that the Regeneration Scrutiny Panel had 
agreed its work programme which was to include reviews regarding 
school sport and also the image of Rotherham. 
 
Reference had also been made to the issue of single use plastic bags, an 
initiative from the Youth Cabinet’s taking over of Performance and 
Scrutiny Overview Committee on 11 Million Takeover Day. 
 
Resolved:- That the Youth Cabinet be invited to a future meeting of 

Page 129



 PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 25/07/08  
 
6T 

Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee for feedback on the 
initiatives raised at the ‘takeover’ meeting. 
 
(b) Councillor Austen reported that the Democratic Renewal Scrutiny 
Panel was to undertake a review of the implementation of the Parish 
Charter. 
 
(c) The Mayor reported that reviews were progressing at the Children and 
Young People’s Services Scrutiny Panel. 
 
(d) Councillor Jack reported the following in respect of the Adult Services 
and Health Scrutiny Panel :- 
 

- receipt of a presentation on the ambulance service 
 

- discussions regarding patient transport services 
 

- the new Domestic Violence Co-ordinator was starting soon 
 

- co-optees had enjoyed their participation in the Social Services 
Visits 

 
 

60. CALL-IN ISSUES  
 

 There were no formal call in requests. 
 

 
(The Chairman authorised consideration of the following item to enable arrangements 
to be made) 
  
61. BASE BUDGET REVIEWS - SCRUTINY REPRESENTATION  

 
 The Committee considered scrutiny representation at the forthcoming 

Base Budget Review meetings. 
 
Resolved:- That scrutiny representation on Base Budget reviews be as 
follows:- 
 
(a) Neighbourhoods and Adult Services – Area Based Grants – 10th 
September, 2008 at 1.00 p.m. – Councillors Austen and McNeely. 
 
(b) Highways – 17th September, 2008 at 2.00 p.m. – Councillors Boyes 
and Swift 
 
(c) Office Accommodation – 24th September, 2008 at 2.00 p.m. – 
Councillors Boyes and Whelbourn. 
 
(d) Children and Young People’s Services – Area Based Grants – 16th 
October, 2008 at 9.00 a.m. – Councillors Austen and Burton. 

Page 130



PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE - 25/07/08 
 

 

7T 

 
(e) Culture and Leisure – Week commencing 13th October, 2008 (date to 
be agreed) – Councillors Jack and Swift. 
 
(f) Residential and Homecare Services – 20th October, 2008 at 2.00 p.m. 
– Councillors Austen and McNeely. 
 
(g) Supporting People – 21st October, 2008 at 9.30 a.m. – Councillors 
Austen and McNeely. 

 
 

Page 131


	Agenda
	9 Forward Plan 1st June-31st October, 2008
	10 Service Plan 2008/11
	NAS Service Plan

	13 Chesterhill Avenue Intensive Neighbourhood Management Pilot - Progress and Impact
	14 Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods
	Minutes , 28/07/2008 Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods

	15 Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel
	16 Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee
	Minutes , 11/07/2008 Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee
	Minutes , 25/07/2008 Performance and Scrutiny Overview Committee


